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To Our Shareholders Investing to create growth and

make Energizer stronger company has been business

as usual since we became an independent company in

2000 We have made acquisitions that brought us market

leading brands and formed the basis of our Personal

Care Division We have generated organic growth

through both innovation and geographic expansion

We have continued to innovate creating new products

that consumers love We have invested to increase our

operating efficiency and have focused on strengthening

our balance sheet And throughout our eleven-year history

as public company we have maintained our strategic

discipline despite volatile economic conditions and

competitive challenges

In little more than 11 years Energizer has transformed itself from battery

compaxy with $1.9 billion in annual sales to diversified consumer goods

company with more than $4.6 billion in sales compound annual revenue

growth rate of more than percent And we are not just larger but also stronger

with well balanced portfolio powerf iii brands and strong
international

operations We have expanded into the fast growing personal care space and our

Personal Care segment now contributes slightly more than half of the companys
sales and profits Furthermore through both organic growth and acquisitions

we have
portfolio

of brands that are No or No.2 in market share positions

2011 Year of Investment

We labeled 2011 the Year of Investment to reaffirm our willingness to

make investments important to Energizers future in the midst of economic

uncertainty In 2011 those investments included

The
global launch of Schick Hydro new wet shave system that gives us

new platform for growth
The

restructuring of our battery operations which increased our

manufacturing efficiency and simplified our business model and

The
acquisition of American Safety Razor ASR which made us leader in

private-label razors and added manufacturing capacity

Ward Klein

Chief Executive Officer

SEGMENT BREAKDOWN

Sales

53%

Profit

50%
Personal Care Products
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major focus of our Year of Investment was the

continuing roll-out of Schick Hydro new shaving

system with technological innovations that are

redefining the wet shave category Our distribution

build was our fastest ever with the April 2010 debut

of Hydro in the United States closely followed by

launches in Japan in August 2010 and in major

Western European markets in October 2010

BRANDS
U.S MARKET SHARE

12.5%

7.7%

cccc Lu hug 14/112010 52-weeks ending 10/29/11

Mens Systems
Value Share

Source Nielsen Scanseack TrouT U.S FOMo

HYDRO MARKET LAUNCH

CANADA GERMANY NEW ZEALAND

THIRD DIAllER

AUSTRIA SINGAPORE

INVESTING

THIRD SUMTER FOURTH OUARTER FIRST QUARTER SECOND OUARTER FOURTH OUARTER

USA JAPAN FRANCE AUSTRALIA SWITZERLAND BENELUX

UK TAIWAN SPAIN
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ihese investments had significant impact on our 2011 results but we

believe they make us stronger competitor in increasingly challenging markets

which should deliver benefits going forward and lead to return to meaningful

earnings growth

The Global Launch of Schick Hydroa major focus of our Year of Investment

was the continuing roll-out of Schick Hydro new shaving system with

technological innovations that are redefining the wet shave category Our

distribution build was our fastest ever with the April 2010 debut of Hydro in

the United States closely followed by launches in Japan in August 2010 and in

major Western European markets in October 2010

The magnitude of the investment in the Hydro launch is reflected in our

spending on advertising and promotion which was 11.3
percent

of net sales

11.9 percent excluding ASR as compared to 10.3 percent
of net sales in 2009

Consumers who
try Hydro generate repeat rates that are the

strongest we have

ever experienced in the wet shave market And the positive reception to Hydro

is
driving

market share gains for Schick wet shave products In the U.S Schicks

value market share of mens systems has increased nearly
five share points and

our total manual shave value market share has increased 1.5 points since the

Hydro launch Schick Hydro is more than product it is growth platform we

expect to leverage with product add-ons just as we did with Quattro following

its introduction in 2003

We continue to roll out Hydro in new markets with recent launches in

Austria Switzerland and Spain By fiscal-year end we had launched Hydro for

men in all of our major markets

Restructuring Our Battery Operations The
restructuring

of our battery

manufacturing operations included closing an alkaline production facility in

Switzerland and carbon zinc product facility in the Philippines and reducing

production capacity in other locations Total restructuring costs for the

fiscal
year were $79 millionmost of which was related to manufacturing

capacity rationalization

The restructuring improves our positioning in market with declining

unit sales and intensifring competition It is expected to generate annual

savings estimated at $30 to $35 million by the end of fiscal 2012 improve our

productivity
and capacity utilization and create simpler business model

The ASRAcquisition Our
acquisition

of ASR for cash price of $301 million

broadened our wet shave product portfolio enhancing our ability to deliver total

category solutions to our retail customers expanded our manufacturing capacity

and provided greater scale With approximately half of ASR sales outside the

United States we see opportunities to accelerate growth in developing markets

We are pleased with ASRs results since its acquisition in November 2010

ASR is the third-largest manufacturer and distributor of wet shave products

and leading supplier of private-label razors and blades with
majority

share of

the private
label segment

SHAVE PREP

Edgea and Skintimate continue

to be the U.S market share leaders

in shave prep
The addition of

Hydro Gel to the shave prep

portfolio has been largely

incremental to the business

helping grow our total U.S dollar

share of the shave
prep category

FEMININE CARE

Playtex Sporta grew tampon

share behind sales growth on

larger pack sizes and the launch of

Super Plus absorbency tampons

S2-wed ending October 29 2011 veiem 52-week ending April 32010 Sower Nielsen Scantrsck1Totol U.S FDMx
References to market shares represent U.S dollar

share for 52 weeks at reported by Nielsen DMx
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Over the
years Energizer has been able to BATTERY AND LIGHTING PRODUCT PLANTS AND FACILITIES

maintain competitive manufacturing cost

structure by developing lean culture and

investing in cost reduction and equipment

performance improvements In order

to align our manufacturing footprint to

meet todays market needs we closed our

ES TIN
zinc manufacturing facility

in the

Philippines and our alkaline manufacturing

lfl
facility

in Switzerland during fiscal 2011

EFFICIENCY

ANTICIPATED ANNUAL SAYINGS BY THE END OF FISCAL 2012

530-535

MILLION

COST OF RESTRUCTURING IN FISCAL 2011

579M

Maryville Mo Garrettsville and Marietta Ohio St A/bans and

Bennington Vt Asheboro NC Wa/kerton Canada

Egypt Sri Lanka Malaysia Singapore Indonesia

Bogang China Tianjin China Kenya iiyiart
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2011 Financial Results

Our fiscal 2011 results were as expected Revenues increased 9.4
percent to

$4.6 billion In addition to the revenue contributions from Hydro and ASR the

drivers of top-line growth included favorable currencies along with
strong

results

in disposable razors and our two sun care brands Our international businesses

which operate in more than 160 countries continue to be
strong contributors

representing
50

percent
of revenues

Reflecting the impact of our Year of Investment earnings per
diluted

share decreased 35
percent to $3.72 On an adjusted basis non-GAAP diluted

earnings per
share were down percent to $5.20

Leading Businesses Built on Strong Brands

Our businesses share important strengths well-known and respected

brands with global reach and strong international manufacturing and sales

organizations

Personal Care Including the contributions of Hydro and ASR 2011 sales for

our Personal Care segment increased 19.6
percent to $2.4 billion and segment

profit increased 11.4 percent to $408 million

In Wet Shave we achieved solid gains from our disposable razors under

both the Schick and Wilkinson Sword brands We have continued to launch

and support line extensions for both mens and womens disposable products and

ASR strengthened our presence in the growing value segment
Our Edge and Skintimate shave preparation brands continue to grow in

the U.S We see additional opportunities
for shave prep growth internationally as

we continue to introduce the Hydro shave system in new markets

With
greater awareness of sun damage and aging populations driving

five-year category growth of approximately percent
in the United States and

percent globally skin care is an increasingly important source of growth for us

Our two leading sun care brands Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tropic combined

lead the U.S sun care market Internationally our sun care brands have grown in

the
range

of 15 to 20 percent per year since we acquired them in 2007

Household Products In fiscal 2011 Household Products revenues were

essentially
flat at $2.2 billion and segment profit declined percent to

$411 million due to continued
category softness increased retailer trade spending

and higher commodity costs

Battery
sales continue to be pressured by an ongoing decline in devices

powered by replaceable rather than built-in rechargeable
batteries Recent

studies have indicated that an increasing number of devices are using built-in

rechargeable battery systems particularly in developed markets We believe this

continues to create negative impact on the demand for primary batteries

Our ability to maintain our global market share leadership position in this

challenging
environment is reflection of the strength

of our Eveready

and Energizer brands and the staying power after 23 years
of the iconic

Energizer Bunny

ii
SUN CARE

Our two sun care brands

Banana Boat and Hawaiian

Tropics combined lead the

U.S sun care market

INFANT CARE

The Diaper Genie brand

continues to be the U.S market

leader in diaper pails

EVERYDAY USE BATTERIES

Energizer Max batteries our

flagship alkaline brand deliver

dependable long-lasting power for

the devices consumers use daily

References to market shares represent U.S dollar

share foe 52 weeks as eepoeted by Nielsen IDMoSe recondilation in Finandal Ronalta section of
Management

Discussion and Analysis
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ASR NET SALES CONTRIBUTION FISCAL 2011

The addition of American Safety

Razor to our Schick Wilkinson

Sword wet shave business broadens

our product portfolio enhances

our ability to deliver total category

solutions to our retail customers

and provides us with greater scale

to compete in an increasingly

competitive marketplace

S262M 528M

ASR CASH ACQUISITION PRICE

S301MIN VESTING

GROWTH
TOTAL WET SHAVE MARKET SHARE

Units3l%
Value

26%

ASR5%

ASR14%

\\ 18% 21%

Source Market shares based on Nielsen ending August 2011 aggregate
of U.S canada France UK

Gerteatty Italy Spain Japan

ASR CONTRIBUTION TO FISCAL 2011 PERSONAL CARE SEGMENT PROFIT
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key accomplishment during 2011 was our success in countering

downward price pressure
in the United States we ended large packages with

free batteries that in effect discounted prices and we initiated price increases on

and 9-volt batteries

Product initiatives included new graphics and packaging for Energizer

batteries anda range of new flashlights We also expanded our portable power

products with comprehensive new line of Energizer chargers and cables that

leverage the USB industry standard

Investing for the Future

During decade of change we have remained focused on our mission Through

innovation to simplify and enhance the lives of our customers and consumers

better than anyone else We have supported that mission with an emphasis

on innovation and agility through decentralized decision making and an

unwavering commitment to our values

Our mission and values guide bow we run our businesses which incorporate

environmental social and economic commitments to our stakeholders An

example includes the Energizer Now Thats Positivenerg campaign
launched during 2011 which combines focus on our industry-leading products

with our commitment to support innovative programs
and

partnerships
that can

make
positive impact

Finally in 2011 we resumed our practice of providing value directly to

shareholders through share repurchases With strengthened balance sheet and

continuing strong
cash flow we resumed share repurchases buying 3.7 million

shares in fiscal 2011

While the economy continues to pose difficult challenges we are confident

that our investments position Energizer to continue to meet our long-term

objective of EPS growth in the mid-to-high single digits We know that our

ability to create value for our investors customers and communities rests on the

skill and dedication of our colleagues
and the support and

insight
of our Board

of Directors and we are truly grateful for their contributions

If

LITHIUM BATTERIES

Energizer Ultimate Lithium is

the worlds longest lasting AA and

AAA battery in high tech devices

lasting up to eight times longer

than Energizer Max creating

up to eight times less waste

Results vary by camera

Use fewer batteries create less waste

FLASHLIGHTS

Energizers state-of-theart

portable lighting products have

bright LEDs extended run times

rugged housings and increased

functionality

h4 11V

Ward Klein

Chief Executive Officer

Energizer Holdings Inc

November 222011

ADVERTISING

Now Thats Positivenergytt

is our new global advertising

campaign for the Energizer

brand highlighting the

performance and
responsibility

benefits of our products
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EXECUTIVE UFFVCERS

From left to right

David Hatfield

President and Chief Executive Officer

Energizer Personal Care

PeeerJ Conrad

Vice President Human Resources

DanielJ Sescicifer

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Gayle Seratmann

Vice President and General Counsel

WardM Klein

Chief Executive Officer

Joseph McClanatlsan

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Bill Armsexong551

Rrtitrd Executive Vice President

and Chief Operating Officer

Cargill Animal Nutrition

David Hoover541

Chairman of the Board and

Retired Chief Executive Officer

Ball Corporation

John Huntert

Retirrd Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer Soluria Inc

John lUein115t1

President Randolph College

Ward Klein0

Chief Executive Officer

Energizer Holdings Inc
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Chief Executive Officer and President

NestlØ Purina PetCarr Company

Patrick Mulcahy541

Chairman of the Board

Energizer Holdings Inc and

Retired Chief Executive Officer

Energizer Holdings Inc

Pamela NicholsonO2

President and Chief Operating

Officer Enterprise Rent-A-Car

John Roberismassi

Retired Executive Director Civic

Progress
St Louis and Retired

Managing Partner of Mid-South

Region Arthur Andersen LLP

Aadit Committee

Enrcntivr Committee

Nominating
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Compentation Commiurr

Finance Ovnrsighe Committee
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William Fox

Vice President and Treasurer

Mark LaVigne

Vice President and
Secretary

JohnJ McColgan

Vice President and Controller

ROARD OF DIRECTORS



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF

THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30 2011

Commission File No 001-15401

Energizer
ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC

Incorporated in Missouri IRS Employer Identification No 43-1863181

533 Maryville University Drive St Louis Missouri 63141

Registrants telephone number including area code 314-985-2000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Energizer Holdings Inc New York Stock Exchange Inc

Common Stock par value $.01 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

Yes1I NoD

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Act

YesD NolI

indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to

file such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days

YesIl NoD

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant
to Rule 405 of Regulation S-I 232.405 of this chapter

during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files

Yes ESJ No
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 229.405 of this chapter is

not contained herein and will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information

statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or

smaller reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting Company

in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act



Large accelerated filer Fl Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Yes No ll

The aggregate market value of the voting common equity held by nonaffiliates of the registrant as of the close of business on

March 31 2011 the last day of the registrants most recently completed second quarter $4.90 1860442

For purpose of this calculation only without determining whether the following are affiliates of the registrant the registrant

has assumed that its directors and executive officers are affiliates and ii no party who has filed Schedule 3D or 3G is

an affiliate Registrant does not have class of non-voting equity securities

Number of shares of Energizer Holdings Inc Common Stock ENR Stock .01 par value outstanding as of close of

business on November 16 2011 66903283

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of Energizer Holdings Inc 2011 Annual Report Parts and II of Form 10-K

Portions of Energizer Holdings Inc Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement Proxy Statement for our Annual

Meeting of Shareholders which will be held January 30 2012 The Proxy Statement will be filed within 120 days of the end of

the fiscal year ended September 30 2011 Part III of Form 10-K



Forward-Looking Statements

This document contains both historical and forward-looking statements Forward-looking statements are not based on historical

facts but instead reflect our expectations estimates or projections concerning future results or events including without

limitation statements regarding future earnings investment or spending initiatives cost savings related to our restructuring

project the impact of certain price increases anticipated advertising and promotional spending the estimated impact of foreign

currency movements raw material and commodity costs category value and future volume sales and growth in some of our

businesses These statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking words or phrases such as believe

expect anticipate maycould intend belief estimate plan likely will should or other similarwords

or phrases These statements are not guarantees of performance and are inherently subject to known and unknown risks

uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict and could cause our actual results performance or achievements to

differ materially from those expressed in or indicated by those statements We cannot assure you that any of our expectations

estimates or projections will be achieved

The forward-looking statements included in this document are only made as of the date of this document and we disclaim any

obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent events or circumstances Numerous factors

could cause our actual results and events to differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements

including without limitation

Energizers ability to improve operations and realize cost savings including cost savings anticipated from restructuring

activities

Energizers ability to timely implement strategic initiatives in manner that will positively impact our financial condition

and results of operation

The impact of strategic initiatives on Energizers relationships with its employees its major customers and vendors

The impact of raw material and other commodity costs

The impact of foreign currency exchange rates and offsetting hedges on Energizers profitability for the year with any

degree of certainty

The success of new products and the ability to continually develop new products

Energizers ability to predict consumption trends with respect to the overall battery category and Energizers other

businesses

Energizers ability to continue planned advertising and other promotional spending may be impacted by lower than

anticipated cash flows or by alternative investment opportunities

Energizers effective tax rate for the year could be impacted by legislative or regulatory changes by federal state and local

and foreign taxing authorities as well as by the profitability or losses of Energizers various subsidiary operations in both

high-tax and low-tax countries and

Prolonged recessionary conditions in key global markets where Energizer competes could result in significantly greater

local currency movements and correspondingly greater negative impact on Energizer than what can be anticipated from the

current spot rates

In addition other risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we consider immaterial could affect the accuracy
of

any such forward-looking statements The list of factors above is illustrative but by no means exhaustive The risk factors set

forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K in the section entitled Risk Factors could affect future results causing our results

to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements

All forward-looking statements should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent uncertainty Additional risks and

uncertainties include those detailed from time to time in Energizers publicly filed documents



PART

Item Business

General

Energizer Holdings Inc incorporated in Missouri in 1999 is one of the worlds largest manufacturers and marketers of

primary batteries portable lighting and personal care products in the wet shave skin care feminine care and infant care

categories On April 2000 all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Energizer were distributed in tax-free spin-off

to shareholders of Ralston Purina Company

Energizer is the successor to over 100 years of expertise in the battery and portable lighting products industry Its brand

names Energizer and Eveready have worldwide recognition for quality and dependability and are marketed and sold in more

than 165 countries

On March 28 2003 we completed the acquisition of the Schick-Wilkinson Sword SWS business from Pfizer Inc SWS is

the second largest manufacturer and marketer of mens and womens wet shave products in the world Its portfolio of products

include Quattro for Women Intuition Lady Protector and Silk Effects Plus womens shaving systems and Hydro Quattro and

Protector mens shaving systems as well as the Quattro Xtreme and Slim Twin/Exacta disposables SWS has over 75
years

of history in the shaving products industry with reputation for high quality and innovation in shaving technology SWS

products are sold in more than 140 countries

At the beginning of fiscal 2008 we completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Playtex Products Inc

Playtex leading manufacturer and marketer of well-recognized branded consumer products in North America Its portfolio

of products include Playtex feminine care products Playtex infant care products Diaper Genie diaper disposal systems Wet

Ones pre-moistened wipes Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tropic sun care products and Playtex household gloves

On June 2009 we completed the acquisition of the Edge and Skintimate shave preparation brands from S.C Johnson

Son Inc SCJ This added U.S market leading shave preparation brands to our existing wet shave product portfolio

On November 23 2010 we completed the acquisition of American Safety Razor LLC Delaware limited liability

company ASR as we acquired substantially all of the assets of ASR including the assets of its U.S subsidiaries and the

stock of its non-U.S subsidiaries and assumed substantially all of the liabilities of ASR and its U.S subsidiaries for cash

purchase price of $301 million ASR founded in 1875 is the leading global manufacturer of private labellvalue wet shaving

razors and blades and industrial and specialty blades

Our subsidiaries operate number of manufacturing and packaging facilities in 14 countries on five continents as listed in

Item below and as of September 30 2011 employ almost 5000 colleagues in the United States and approximately 10000 in

foreign jurisdictions exclusive of certain third-party contracted labor arrangements

When we use the terms Energizer the Company we us or our in this Annual Report on Form 10-K we mean

Energizer Holdings Inc and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis unless we state or the context implies otherwise

We use Energizer Schick Wilkinson Sword Playtex Edge Ski ntimate Personna and the Energizer Schick Wilkinson

Sword Playtex Edge and Skintimate logos as our trademarks or those of our subsidiaries Product names appearing throughout

in italics are trademarks of Energizer Holdings Inc or its subsidiaries This Annual Report on Form 10-K also may refer to

brand names trademarks service marks and trade names of other companies and organizations and these brand names
trademarks service marks and trade names are the property of their respective owners

Unless we indicate otherwise we base the information concerning our industry contained or incorporated by reference

herein on our general knowledge of and expectations concerning the industry Our market position market share and industry

market size is based on our estimates using our internal data and estimates based on data from various industry analyses our

internal research and adjustments and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable We have not independently verified data

from industry analyses and cannot guarantee their accuracy or completeness In addition we believe that data regarding the

industry market size and our market position and market share within such industry provide general guidance but are

inherently imprecise Further our estimates and assumptions involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on

various factors including those discussed in the Risk Factors section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K These and other

factors could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the estimates and assumptions



Retail sales for purposes of market size market position and market share information are based on retail sales in U.S

dollars

Industries

We manufacture and sell products in five distinct product categories battery and lighting products wet shave skin care

feminine care and infant care Our two largest categories by revenue are battery products and wet shave The battery category

comprises two primary competitors Energizer with its Energizer and Eveready brands and Procter Gamble with its Duracell

brand We estimate Energizer and Proctor Gamble collectively represent approximately 70% share in the markets in which

we compete The wet shave category comprises two primary competitors Procter Gambles Gillette and Energizers
Schick-

Wilkinson Sword which we estimate collectively represent more than 80% of the global wet shave market For information

about net sales earnings before income taxes depreciation and amortization total assets and capital expenditures
of each of our

segments and geographic segment information including net sales to customers and long-lived assets refer to Note 19 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Personal Care

The Personal Care division includes Wet Shave products sold under the Schick Wilkinson Sword Edge Skintimate and

Personna brand names Skin Care products sold under the Banana Boat Hawaiian Tropic Wet Ones and Playtex brand names

and Feminine Care and Infant Care products sold under the Playtex and Diaper Genie brand names

We manufacture and distribute Schick and Wilkinson Sword razor systems composed of razor handles and refillable blades

and disposable shave products for men and women We market our wet shave products in more than 140 countries worldwide

SWS primary markets are the U.S Japan and the larger countries of Western Europe We estimate our overall share of the wet

shave category for these major markets at 21% in fiscal 2011 and 20% in 2010 and 2009 We currently maintain the global

market share position in wet shaving Category blade unit consumption has been relatively flat for number of years However

product innovations and corresponding increased per
unit prices have accounted for category growth The category is extremely

competitive with competitors vying for consumer loyalty and retail shelf space

On June 2009 we completed the acquisition of the Edge and Skintimate shave preparation brands from SCJ This added

U.S market leading shave preparation products including shaving gels and creams to our wet shave portfolio

SWS has gained recognition for its innovation and development of new products designed to improve the shaving

experience including the introduction of the Intuition womens system
in 2003 unique system incorporating three-bladed

razor surrounded by skin conditioning solid which lathers shaves and provides extra moisture in one step In 2003 SWS

introduced the Quattro mens shaving system the first four blade razor system for men In 2010 SWS introduced Schick

Hydro new mens shaving system which incorporates new technologies including innovative skin protectors that act to

smooth skin between blade tips and an advanced hydrating gel reservoir that lubricates throughout the shaving process
Schick

Hydro is available in three- and five-blade models Additionally the Company launched new line of Schick Hydro shave gels

which coupled with the Schick Hydro razor delivers complete skin comfort system that goes beyond hair removal to care for

mens skin

On October 2007 Energizer acquired Playtex leading North American manufacturer and marketer in the skin feminine

and infant care product categories with diversified portfolio of well-recognized branded consumer products

In Skin Care we market sun care products under the Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tropic brands We believe these brands on

combined basis hold leading market share position in the U.S sun care category The sun care category in the U.S is

segmented by product type such as general protection tanning and babies as well as by method of application such as lotions

and
sprays

We compete across this full spectrum of sun care products We also offer Wet Ones the leader in the U.S portable

hand wipes category and Playtex household gloves the branded household glove leader in the U.S

In feminine care we believe Playtex is the second largest selling tampon brand overall in the U.S We offer plastic

applicator tampons under the Playtex Gentle Glide and Playtex Sport brands and Playtex Personal Cleansing Cloths pre

moistened wipe for feminine hygiene

In infant care we market broad range
of products including bottles cups and mealtime products under the Playtex brand

name We also offer line of pacifiers including the Ortho-Pro and Binky pacifiers We believe our Playtex Diaper Genie

brand of diaper disposal systems leads the U.S diaper pail category The Diaper Genie brand consists of the diaper pail unit

and refill liners The refill liners individually seal diapers in an odor-proof plastic film



On November 23 2010 Energizer acquired ASR the leading global manufacturer of private label/value wet shaving razors

and blades and industrial and specialty blades In wet shave ASR manufactures distributes and sells complete line of private

label value wet shaving disposable razors shaving systems and replacement blades These wet shave products are sold

primarily under retailers store name or under value brand names such as Personna Matrix Magnum Mystique Solara and

GEM

Household Products

Energizers Household Products division manufactures and markets one of the most extensive product portfolios in

household batteries specialty batteries and lighting products

In household batteries we offer batteries using carbon zinc alkaline rechargeable and lithium technologies These products

are marketed and sold in the price premium and performance segments This allows us to penetrate the broad range of the

market and meet most consumer needs We distribute our portfolio of household and specialty batteries and portable lighting

products through global distribution network which also provides platform for the distribution of our personal care

products

The battery category is highly competitive as brands compete for consumer acceptance and retail shelf space Pricing actions

in response to rising material costs have raised retail prices over time However pricing actions are not always available to

fully offset material cost increases especially in highly competitive markets

We continually engage in ongoing reviews of all of our categories Recent studies have indicated that an increasing number

of devices are using built-in rechargeable battery systems particularly in developed markets We believe this continues to

create negative impact on the demand for primary batteries This trend coupled with aggressive competitive activity in the

U.S and other markets could put additional pressure on segment results going forward See Energizer Holdings Inc

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition Segment Information Household

Products for further discussion of actions taken by Energizer relating to this trend

In an effort to diversify our Household Products portfolio Energizer has leveraged its long history of innovation Since

Energizers invention of the first cell battery in 1893 we have been committed to developing and marketing innovative new

products for the portable power and portable lighting products market Energizers track record includes the first to market the

Alkaline battery the first mercury-free Alkaline battery the first mercury-free Hearing Aid battery and the longest lasting AA
and AAA battery for high-tech devices Ultimate Lithium

Consistent with our long history of innovation we introduced new line of power solutions in late 2011 for consumers

most critical portable electronic devices Consumers have become accustomed to an unplugged lifestyle where mobile devices

are critical in everyday life We believe consumers are looking for universal easy-to-use solutions solutions that address their

needs for longer battery life the ability to charge on the go and increased convenience in the way they charge their devices

from faster charge times to reducing clutter In late fiscal 2011 we introduced new line of chargers and cables that leverage

the USB industry standard to bring convenient and portable charging to the home office and car This complements our 2010

introduction of the worlds first Qi chee-certified Inductive Charging portfolio Energizers inductive charging pads and

sleeves enable consumers to charge wirelessly on the worlds only wireless power standard Qi The Wireless Power

Consortiums Qi standard continues to gain momentum and device manufacturers are beginning to launch this technology in

cellular phones

In addition Energizer has strong lighting products business that has evolved with changes in consumer tastes and

demands We are leveraging our expertise in lighting design brand development and distribution capabilities to expand the

household lighting product solutions available in the marketplace

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used by Energizer electrolytic manganese dioxide zinc silver nickel acetylene black

graphite steel cans nylon brass wire separator paper and potassium hydroxide for batteries and steel zinc various plastic

resins synthetic rubber resins soap based lubricants and various packaging materials for wet shave products and certain

naturally derived fibers resin-based plastics and certain chemicals for the Playtex product lines are sourced on regional or

global basis Although the prices of zinc nickel electrolytic manganese dioxide and resins in particular have fluctuated over

time Energizer believes that adequate supplies of the raw materials required for its operations are available at the present time

Energizer of course cannot predict the future availability or prices of such materials These raw materials are generally



available from number of different sources and the prices of those raw materials are susceptible to currency fluctuations and

price fluctuations due to transportation government regulations price controls economic climate or other unforeseen

circumstances In the past Energizer has not experienced any significant interruption in availability of raw materials

We believe we have extensive experience in purchasing raw materials in the commodity markets From time to time

management has taken positions in various ingredients to assure supply and to protect margins on anticipated sales volume

Sales and Distribution

Energizers products are marketed primarily through direct sales force but also through exclusive and non-exclusive

distributors and wholesalers In the U.S and Canada Household Products and Personal Care each has dedicated commercial

organization reflecting the scale and importance of these businesses Outside the U.S and Canada the commercial teams

market our full portfolio of product offerings Energizer distributes its products to consumers through numerous retail locations

worldwide including mass merchandisers and warehouse clubs food drug and convenience stores electronics specialty stores

and department stores hardware and automotive centers and military stores

Although large percentage of Energizers sales are attributable to relatively small number of retail customers in fiscal

2011 only Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its subsidiaries as group accounted for more than ten percent of Energizers annual

sales For fiscal year 2011 this customer accounted for in the aggregate approximately 19.5% of Energizers sales Because of

the short period between order and shipment date generally less than one month for most of our orders the dollar amount of

current backlog is not material and is not considered to be reliable indicator of future sales volume

Patents Technology and Trademarks

Energizer owns number of U.S Canadian and foreign trademarks which Energizer considers of substantial importance

and which are used individually or in conjunction with other Energizer trademarks These include Eveready Energizer

Energizer Max Schick Wilkinson Sword Intuition Hydro Quattro Xtreme Protector Lady Protector Silk Effects ST Slim

Twin Exacta Edge Skintimate Personna Capri Matrix3 MS Magnum Bump Fighter Speed3 Burma-Shave Mystique

Banana Boat Hawaiian Tmpic Avotriplex Sunsure Sunsure Protectin design UV Protect design Binky Diaper Genie

Litter Genie Drop-Ins The First Sipster Lil Gripper Coolster Gentle Glide 3600 Protection design Get on the Boat

Habiscus Floral design HandSaver Insulator Insulator Sport NaturaL atch Natural Shape Love Every Moment design

Most Like Mother Twist Click design Ortho Pro Sipster Sport VentA ire Ventaire Advanced Crystal Clear Wet Ones

and the Energizer Bunny and the Energizer Man character As result of the Playtex acquisition Energizer also owns royalty-

free licenses in perpetuity to the Playtex and Living trademarks in the United States Canada and many foreign jurisdictions

related to certain feminine hygiene baby care gloves and other products but excluding certain apparel related products

Energizers ability to compete effectively in the battery and portable lighting wet shave skin care feminine care and infant

care categories depends in part on its ability to maintain the proprietary nature of its technology and manufacturing processes

through combination of patent and trade secret protection non-disclosure agreements licensing and cross-licensing

agreements Energizer owns or licenses from third parties considerable number of patents patent applications and other

technology which Energizer believes are significant to its business These relate primarily to battery product and lighting device

improvements additional battery product features shaving product improvements and additional features plastic applicators

for tampons baby bottles and nipples disposable liners and plastic holders for the nurser systems childrens drinking cups

pacifiers sunscreen formulations diaper disposal systems and breast pump products and improvements and manufacturing

processes

As of September 30 2011 Energizer owned directly or beneficially approximately 1400 unexpired United States patents

which have range of expiration dates from June 2011 to December 2028 and had almost 400 United States patent

applications pending It routinely prepares additional patent applications for filing in the United States Energizer also actively

pursues foreign patent protection in number of foreign countries As of September 30 2011 Energizer owned directly or

beneficially approximately 2800 foreign patents and had approximately 1700 patent applications pending in foreign

countries

We rely on trademark trade secret patent and copyright laws to protect our intellectual property rights We cannot be sure

that these intellectual property rights will be effectively utilized or if necessary successfully asserted There is risk that we

will not be able to obtain and perfect our own intellectual property rights or where appropriate license from others intellectual

property rights necessary to support new product introductions



Seasonality

Sales and operating profit for Household Products tends to be seasonal with increased purchases of batteries by consumers

during the December holiday season and increases in retailer inventories during autumn In addition natural disasters such as

hurricanes can create conditions that drive increased needs for portable power and spike battery and flashlight sales The wet

shave business does not exhibit significant seasonal variability

Customer orders for sun care products are highly seasonal which has historically resulted in higher sun care sales to

retailers during the late winter through mid-summer months

Competition

The Household Products and Personal Care businesses are highly competitive both in the United States and on global

basis as large manufacturers with global operations compete for consumer acceptance and increasingly limited retail shelf

space Competition is based upon brand perceptions product performance customer service and price

Our principal battery competitors in the U.S are Duracell International Inc subsidiary of Procter Gamble Company
and Spectrum Brands Inc We believe private-label sales by large retailers has some impact on the market in some parts of the

world Duracell and Panasonic are significant competitors in South and Central America Asia and Europe and local and

regional battery manufacturers in Asia and Europe also compete for battery sales

The global shaving products business comprised of wet shave blades and razors electric shavers lotions and creams is

growing consumer product segment worldwide The wet shave segment of that business the segment in which we participate

is further segmented between razor systems and disposable products Geographically North America Western Europe and

Japan represent relatively developed and stable markets with demographic trends that result in stable predictable number of

shaving consumers We believe that those markets will rely primarily on new premium priced product introductions for growth

as category blade unit consumption has been relatively flat for number of years As result of demographic trends however

there is growth trend predicted for the wet shave segment in Latin American Asian and Eastern European countries Our

principal competitors in the wet shave business worldwide are Procter Gamble Company which owns the Gillette brand and

is the leading company in the global wet shave segment and Bic Group which competes primarily in the disposable segment

The markets for skin care feminine care and infant care products are also highly competitive characterized by the frequent

introduction of new products accompanied by major advertising and promotional programs Our competitors in these product

lines consist of large number of domestic and foreign companies including Procter Gamble Company and Kimberly-Clark

Corp in feminine care Merck Co Inc and Johnson Johnson in skin care and variety of competitors in the fragmented

infant care market In feminine care we believe private label sales by large retailers in the U.S have been growing

Governmental Regulation and Environmental Matters

Energizers operations are subject to various federal state foreign and local laws and regulations intended to protect the

public health and the environment

The Company has received notices from the U.S Environmental Protection Agency state agencies and/or private parties

seeking contribution that it has been identified as potentially responsible party PRP under the Comprehensive

Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and may be required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to

eight federal Superfund sites It may also be required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to two state-designated sites

and certain international locations Liability in the U.S under the applicable federal and state statutes which mandate cleanup is

strict meaning that liability may attach regardless of lack of fault and joint and several meaning that liable party may be

responsible for all of the costs incurred in investigating and cleaning up contamination at site However liability in such

matters is typically shared by all of the financially viable responsible parties through negotiated agreements Negotiations with

the U.S Environmental Protection Agency the state agencies that are involved on the state-designated sites and other PRPs are

at various stages with respect to the sites Negotiations involve determinations of the actual responsibility of the Company and

the other PRPs at the site appropriate investigatory and/or remedial actions and allocation of the costs of such activities among
the PRPs and other site users

The amount of the Companys ultimate liability in connection with those sites may depend on many factors including the

volume and toxicity of material contributed to the site the number of other PRPs and their financial viability and the

remediation methods and technology to be used



In addition the Company undertook certain programs to reduce or eliminate the environmental contamination at the

rechargeable battery facility in Gainesville Florida which was divested in November 1999 Responsibility for those programs

was assumed by the buyer at the time of the divestiture In 2001 the buyer as well as its operating subsidiary which owned and

operated the Gainesville facility filed petitions in bankruptcy In the event that the buyer and its affiliates become unable to

continue the programs to reduce or eliminate contamination the Company could be required to bear financial responsibility for

such programs as well as for other known and unknown environmental conditions at the site Under the terms of the

Reorganization Agreement between the Company and Ralston Purina Company however which has been assumed by an

affiliate of The Nestle Corporation Ralstons successor is obligated to indemnify the Company for 50% of any such liabilities

in excess of $3 million

Under the terms of the Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement between Pfizer Inc and the Company relating to the

acquisition of the SWS business environmental liabilities related to pre-closing operations of that business or associated with

properties acquired are generally retained by Pfizer subject to time limitations varying from years to 10 years following

closing with respect to various classes or types of liabilities minimum thresholds for indemnification by Pfizer and maximum

limitations on Pfizers liability which thresholds and limitations also vary with respect to various classes or types of liabilities

Many European countries as well as the European Union have been very active in adopting and enforcing environmental

regulations In addition certain regulations have been enacted or are being considered in North America and certain European

and Latin American countries with respect to battery recycling programs As such economies develop it is possible that new

regulations may increase the risk and expense
of doing business in such countries

Accruals for environmental remediation are recorded when it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of

the liability can be reasonably estimated based on current law and existing technologies These accruals are adjusted

periodically as assessments take place and remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes

available

It is difficult to quantify with certainty the potential financial impact of actions regarding expenditures for environmental

matters particularly remediation and future capital expenditures for environmental control equipment Nevertheless based

upon the information currently available the Company believes that its ultimate liability arising from such environmental

matters taking into account established accruals of approximately $20 million for estimated liabilities at September 30 2011
should not be material to the business or financial condition of the Company Total environmental capital expenditures and

operating expenses are not expected to have material effect on our total capital and operating expenditures consolidated

earnings or competitive position However current environmental spending estimates could be modified as result of changes

in our plans changes in legal requirements including any requirements related to global climate change or other factors

Certain of Energizers products are subject to regulation under the Federal Food Drug and Cosmetic Act and are regulated

by the U.S Food and Drug Administration FDA
The FDA adopted in June 2011 final rule setting forth testing requirements and labeling standards for sunscreen products

The rule results in new testing requirements and revised labeling for the Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tropic product lines as

well as competitors products by June 19 2012 Energizer does not expect the costs of complying with these changes to be

material

Available Information

Energizer regularly files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission SECincluding annual reports

on Form 10-K and quarterly reports on Form lO-Q as well as from time to time current reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports The SEC maintains an Internet site containing these reports and proxy and information

statements at www.sec.gov These filings are also available free of charge on Energizers website at www.energizer.com as

soon as reasonably practicable after their electronic filing with the SEC Information on Energizers website does not

constitute part of this Form 10-K

Other Matters

Additional descriptions of the business of Energizer in response to Item and the summary of selected financial data

appearing under ENERGIZER HOLDINGS NC MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION and appearing under ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Note 19 Segment Information are included in Exhibit 13 attached hereto

and incorporated herein by reference This information will also appear in the Energizer Holdings Inc 2011 Annual Report



Item 1A Risk Factors

The following risks and uncertainties could materially adversely affect our business results of operations consolidated

financial condition and cash flows Energizer may amend or supplement the risk factors described below from time to time by
other reports it files with the SEC in the future

Energi zer faces risks associated with global economic conditions and credit markets

Unfavorable global economic conditions increased unemployment levels and uncertainty about the future economic

prospects could reduce consumer demand for our products as result of reduction in discretionary spending of the consumers

or shift of purchasing patterns to lower-cost options such as private label Similarly our retailer customers could reduce their

inventories shift to different products or require us to lower our prices Declining financial performance by certain of our

retailer customers could impact their ability to pay us on timely basis or at all These general risks were heightened recently

as economic conditions globally deteriorated significantly and the recovery in most developed markets remains sluggish

Worsening economic conditions could harm our sales and
profitability Additionally disruptions in credit markets could

increase our cost of borrowing If we are not able to access debt capital markets at competitive rates or terms and conditions

our ability to implement our business plan and strategy will be negatively affected

If Energizer cannot continue to develop new products in timely manner and at favorable margins it may not be able to

compete effrctively

The battery portable lighting products wet shave skin care feminine care and infant care industries have been notable for

the pace of innovations in product life product design and applied technology and our success depends on future innovations

The successful development and introduction of new products such as Schick Hydro and line extensions face the uncertainty
of retail and consumer acceptance and reaction from competitors as well as the possibility of reducing the sales of our existing

products There can be no assurance that our investments in research and development will lead to innovation and that we can

recover the costs of such investments or that our competitors will not introduce new or enhanced products that significantly

outperform Energizers or develop manufacturing technology which permits them to manufacture at lower cost relative to

ours If we fail to develop and launch successful new products we may be unable to grow our business and compete

successfully

Competition in Energizers industries may hinder our ability to execute our business strategy achieve profitability or

maintain relationships with existing customers

The categories in which Energizer operates including battery portable lighting products wet shave skin care feminine care
and infant care are mature and highly competitive both in the United States and on global basis as limited number of large

manufacturers compete for consumer acceptance and limited retail shelf space At times our retailer customers have sought to

obtain pricing concessions or better trade terms and because of the highly competitive environment in which we operate as

well as increasing retailer concentration their efforts can be successful resulting in either reduction of our margins or our

relative disadvantage to lower cost competitors Competition is based upon brand perceptions product performance and

innovation customer service and price Energizers ability to compete effectively may be affected by number of factors

including

Energizers primary competitor in batteries wet shave and feminine care products The Procter Gamble Company
has substantially greater financial marketing and other resources and greater market share in certain segments than

Energizer does as well as significant scale and negotiating leverage with retailers and suppliers

Energizers competitors may have lower production sales and distribution costs and higher profit margins than

Energizer which may enable them to offer aggressive retail discounts and other promotional incentives

our competitors may be able to obtain exclusive distribution rights at particular retailers or favorable in-store

placement and

we may lose market share to private label brands sold by retail chains which are typically sold at lower prices than our

products
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The performance of the primary battery product category may be impacted by further changes in technology and device

trends which could impair Energizers operating results and growth prospects

We believe an increasing number of devices are using built-in rechargeable battery systems particularly in developed

markets We believe this continues to create negative impact on the demand for primary batteries This trend could put

additional pressure on segment results going forward Development and commercialization of new battery or device

technologies not available to Energizer could also negatively impact our results and prospects

Energizer is subject to risks related to its international operations including currency fluctuations which could adversely

affect our results of operations

Energizers businesses are currently conducted on worldwide basis with almost 50% of our sales in fiscal 2011 arising

from foreign countries and significant portion of our production capacity located overseas Consequently Energizer is

subject to number of risks associated with doing business in foreign countries including

the effect of foreign income and withholding taxes U.S tax treatment of foreign source income and losses and other

restrictions on the flow of capital between countries

our ability to utilize foreign based cash for various strategic needs could result in significant income tax expenses

which are not currently provided since we intend and plan to permanently reinvest these earnings in our foreign

affiliates to fund local operations fund pension and post retirement liabilities and to fund capital projects

social legislation in certain countries

the possibility of expropriation confiscatory taxation or price controls

adverse changes in local investment or exchange control regulations

hyperinflationary conditions in certain economies

political or economic instability government nationalization of business or industries government corruption and

civil unrest

legal and regulatory constraints

tariffs and other trade barriers and

difficulty in enforcing contractual and intellectual property rights

Almost 50% of Energizers sales in fiscal 2011 were denominated in local currencies but reported in U.S dollars and high

percentage of product costs for such sales are denominated in U.S dollars Therefore the strengthening of the U.S dollar

relative to such currencies can negatively impact our reported sales and operating profits

Energizers business is subject to regulation in the U.S and abroad

The manufacture packaging labeling storage distribution advertising and sale of our products are subject to extensive

regulation in the U.S including by the Food and Drug Administration the Consumer Product Safety Commission the

Environmental Protection Agency and by the Federal Trade Commission with respect to advertising Similar regulations have

been adopted by authorities in foreign countries where we sell our products and by state and local authorities in the U.S New

or more restrictive regulations or more restrictive interpretations of existing regulations could have an adverse impact on our

business Legislative and regulatory changes by taxing authorities in both high-tax and low-tax countries have an impact on

our effective tax rate and we may be subject to additional costs arising from new or changed regulations relating to health care

and energy Additionally finding that we are in violation of or not in compliance with applicable laws or regulations could

subject us to material civil remedies including fines damages injunctions or product recalls or criminal sanctions Even if

claim is unsuccessful is not merited or is not fully pursued the negative publicity surrounding such assertions could jeopardize

our reputation and brand image and have material adverse effect on our businesses as well as require resources to rebuild our

reputation

We must comply with various environmental laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate including those
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relating to the handling and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes recycling of batteries and the remediation of contamination

associated with the use and disposal of hazardous substances release of such substances due to accident or an intentional act

could result in substantial liability to governmental authorities or to third parties We have incurred and will continue to incur

capital and operating expenses and other costs in complying with environmental laws and regulations including remediation

costs relating to our current and former properties and third party waste disposal sites It is possible that we could become

subject to additional environmental liabilities in the future that could cause material adverse effect on our results of operations

or financial condition

The resolution of Energizers tax contingencies may result in additional tax liabilities which could adversely impact our

cash flows and results of operations

Significant estimation and judgment is required in determining our provisions for income taxes in the U.S and jurisdictions

outside the U.S In the ordinary course of our business there are transactions and calculations in which the ultimate tax

determination is uncertain We are regularly under audit by tax authorities and although we believe our tax estimates are

reasonable the final outcome of tax audits and related litigation could be materially different than that reflected in our historical

income tax provisions and accruals There can be no assurance that the resolution of any audits or litigation will not have an

adverse impact on future operating results

Changes in production costs including raw material prices could erode Energizers profit margins and negatively impact

operating results

Pricing and availability of raw materials energy and shipping and other services needed for our business can be volatile due

to general economic conditions labor costs production levels import duties and tariffs and other factors beyond our control In

the past substantial increases in the cost of number of raw materials have been partially offset by price increases However
there is no certainty that Energizer will be able to offset future cost increases especially given the competitive environment

This volatility can significantly affect our production cost and may therefore have material adverse effect on our business

results of operations and financial condition

Energizer has substantial level of indebtedness and is subject to various covenants relating to such indebtedness which

limits its discretion to operate and grow its business

Energizers current debt level remains at almost $2.4 billion We may be required to dedicate substantial portion of our

cash to debt service thereby reducing funds available to fund working capital capital expenditures acquisitions and

investments and other general corporate purposes Our failure to make scheduled interest payments or to repay or refinance the

indebtedness at maturity or obtain additional financing as needed could have material adverse effect on our business

Additionally many of our debt instruments are subject to certain financial and other covenants including debt ratio tests

We may be in breach of such covenants in the event of future declines in our operating cash flows or earnings performance

foreign currency movements or other unanticipated events In the event of such breach our lenders may be entitled to

accelerate the related debt as well as any other debt to which cross-default provision applies and we could be required to seek

amendments or waivers under the debt instruments or to refinance the debt There is no assurance that we would obtain such

amendments or waivers or effect such refinancing or that we would be able to do so on terms similar to our current debt

instruments The covenants and financial ratio requirements contained in our debt instruments could also increase our

vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes

in our business and the markets in which we operate place us at competitive disadvantage as compared to our competitors

that have greater financial flexibility and limit among other things our ability to borrow additional funds

Our credit ratings are important to our cost of capitaL

The major credit rating agencies periodically evaluate our creditworthiness and have given us specified credit ratings These

ratings are based on number of factors which include our financial strength and financial policies We aim to maintain our

current ratings as they serve to lower our borrowing costs and facilitate our access to sources of capital on terms that we
consider advantageous to our business Failure to maintain our credit ratings could adversely affect the interest rate in future

financings liquidity competitive position and access to capital markets

Impafrment of our goodwill and other intangible assets would result in reduction in net income

Energizer has material amount of goodwill trademarks and other intangible assets as well as other long-lived assets

which are periodically evaluated for impairment in accordance with current accounting standards Declines in our profitability
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andlor estimated cash flows related to specific intangible assets as well as potential changes in market valuations for similar

assets and market discount rates may result in an impairment charge which could have an adverse impact on our operating

results and financial position

Loss of reputation of our leading brands could have an adverse effect on our business

We depend on the continuing reputation and success of our brands particularly the Energizer Eveready Schick Wilkinson

Sword Edge Skintimate Playtex Diaper Genie Wet Ones Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tropic brands The success of these

brands can suffer if our marketing plans or new product offerings do not have the desired impact on our brands image or ability

to attract consumers Further our operating results could be adversely affected if one of our leading brands suffers damage to its

reputation due to real or perceived quality issues

Loss of any of our principal customers could significantly decrease our saks and profitability

Wal-Mart together with its subsidiaries is our lamest customer accounting for approximately 19.5% of net sales in fiscal

2011 Generally sales to Wal-Mart and our other top customers are made pursuant to purchase orders and we do not have

supply agreements or guarantees of minimum purchases from them As result these customers may cancel their purchase

orders or reschedule or decrease their level of purchases from us at any time The loss or substantial decrease in the volume of

purchases by Wal-Mart or any of our other top customers would harm our sales and profitability Additionally increasing

retailer customer concentration could result in reduced sales outlets for our products greater negotiating pressures and pricing

requirements on Energizer

Energizers manufacturing facilities or supply channels may be subject to disruption from events beyond our control

Operations of our manufacturing and packaging facilities worldwide may be subject to disruption for variety of reasons

including availability of raw materials work stoppages industrial accidents disruptions in logistics loss or impairment of key

manufacturing sites product quality or safety issues licensing requirements and other regulatory issues and acts of war

terrorism pandemics fire earthquake flooding or other natural disasters The supply of our raw materials may be similarly

disrupted There is also possibility that third party manufacturers which produce significant portion of certain of our

products could discontinue production with little or no advance notice or experience financial problems or problems with

product quality or timeliness of product delivery resulting in manufacturing delays or disruptions regulatory sanctions product

liability claims or consumer complaints If major disruption were to occur it could result in delays in shipments of products

to customers or suspension of operations

failure of key information technology system could adversely impact our ability to conduct business

We rely extensively on information technology systems including some which are managed by third-party service

providers in order to conduct business These systems include but are not limited to programs and processes relating to

communicating within Energizer and with other parties ordering and managing materials from suppliers converting materials

to finished products shipping products to customers processing transactions summarizing and reporting results of operations

and complying with regulatory legal or tax requirements The information technology systems could be damaged or cease to

function properly due to the poor performance or failure of third-party service providers catastrophic events power outages

security breaches network outages failed upgrades or other similarevents If our business continuity plans do not effectively

resolve such issues on timely basis we may suffer interruptions in conducting our business which may adversely impact our

operating results

Energizers business involves the potential forproduct liability and other claims against us which could affect our results of

operations andfinancial condition

We face exposure to claims arising out of alleged defects in our products including for property damage bodily injury or

other adverse effects We cannot assure you that our product liability insurance covers all types of claims particularly claims

that do not involve personal injury or property damage that such claims will not exceed the amount of insurance coverage or

that we will be able to maintain such insurance on acceptable terms if at all In addition to the risk of monetary judgments not

covered by insurance product liability claims could result in negative publicity that could harm our or our products reputation

Additionally we do not maintain product recall insurance As result product recalls or product liability claims could have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

13



We may experience losses or be subject to increased funding and
expenses related to our pension plans

The funding obligations for Energizers pension plans including those assumed in the ASR acquisition are impacted by the

performance of the financial markets interest rates and governmental regulations If the investment of plan assets does not

provide the expected long-term returns interest rates change or if governmental regulations change the timing or amounts of

required contributions to the plans we could be required to make significant additional pension contributions which may have

an adverse impact on our liquidity our ability to comply with debt covenants and may require recognition of increased expense

within our financial statements

If Energizer fails to adequately protect its intellectual property rights competitors may manufacture and market similar

products which could adversely affect our market share and results of operations

In fiscal 2011 the vast majority of our total revenues were from products bearing proprietary trademarks and brand names
In addition Energizer owns or licenses from third parties considerable number of patents patent applications and other

technology Accordingly Energizer relies on trademark trade secret patent and copyright laws to protect our intellectual

property rights There is risk that Energizer will not be able to obtain and perfect or maintain our own intellectual property

rights or where appropriate license intellectual property rights necessary to support new product introductions In addition

even if such rights are protected in the United States the laws of some other countries in which Energizers products are or may
be sold do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States We cannot be certain that

our intellectual property rights will not be invalidated circumvented or challenged in the future and Energizer could incur

significant costs in connection with legal actions relating to such rights If other parties infringe our intellectual property rights

they may dilute the value of our brands in the marketplace which could diminish the value that consumers associate with our

brands and harm our sales

We may not be able to continue to identify and complete strategic acquisitions and effectively integrate acquired companies

to achieve desired financial benefits

We have completed four significant acquisitions since becoming an independent company in 2000 including most recently

the acquisition of ASR in fiscal 2011 We expect to continue making acquisitions if appropriate opportunities arise However
we may not be able to identify and successfully negotiate suitable strategic acquisitions obtain financing for future acquisitions

on satisfactory terms or otherwise complete future acquisitions Furthermore our existing operations may encounter unforeseen

operating difficulties and may require significant financial and managerial resources which would otherwise be available for

the ongoing development or expansion of our existing operations

Even if we can complete future acquisitions we face significant challenges in consolidating functions and effectively

integrating procedures personnel product lines and operations in timely and efficient manner The integration process can be

complex and time consuming may be disruptive to our existing and acquired business and may cause an interruption of or

loss of momentum in the business Even if we can successfully complete the integration of acquired businesses into our

operations there is no assurance that anticipated cost savings synergies or revenue enhancements will be realized within the

expected time frame or at all

The integration of Energizers andASRs businesses may not be successful or anticipated benefits from the acquisition may
not be realized

The integration of the operations of the recently acquired ASR business with Energizers business will continue to require

significant amount of time and attention as well as financial resources Furthermore ASR offers private label products

product group in which we have limited experience

Even if we are able to successfully combine the two business operations it may not be possible to realize the full benefits of

the increased sales volume and other benefits that are currently expected to result from the acquisition or realize these benefits

within the time frame that is currently expected The benefits of the acquisition may also be offset by operating losses relating

to changes in commodity pricing or in increased competition or by risks and uncertainties relating to the combined companys

private label and branded products If we fail to realize the benefits we anticipate from the acquisition our results of operations

may be adversely affected

Additional descriptions of risk factors impacting Energizer appearing under ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION are included in Exhibit 13 attached hereto which will also appear in the Energizer Holdings Inc 2011

Annual Report to Shareholders

14



Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

list of Energizers principal plants and facilities as of the date of filing Management believes that the Companys
production facilities are adequate to support the business efficiently and that the properties and equipment have been well

maintained

HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS
North America Asia

Asheboro NC Bogang Peoples Republic of China

Bennington VT Cimanggis Indonesia

Garrettsville OH Ekala Sri Lanka

Marietta OH Johor Malaysia

Maryville MO Jurong Singapore

St Albans VT Tianjin Peoples Republic of China

Walkerton Ontario Canada

Westlake OH Africa

Alexandria Egypt

Nakuru Kenya

PERSONAL CARE

North America Europe

Milford CT Nove Modlany Czech Republic

Verona VA Solingen Germany

Obregon Mexico

Mexico City Mexico South America

Knoxville TN Sao Paolo Brazil 11
Dover DE Santa Catarina Brazil

Sidney OH

Ormond Beach FL

Allendale NJ 13
Racine Wisconsin 10

Asia

Nazareth Israel

Guangzhou Peoples Republic of China

ADMINISTRATIVE AND

EXECUTIVE OFFICES

St Louis Missouri Mississauga Ontario Canada

Shelton CT Cedar Knolls NJ

In addition to the properties identified above Energizer and its subsidiaries own and/or operate sales offices regional

offices storage facilities distribution centers and terminals and related properties

Leased Two plants and separate packaging facility Research facility Less than 20% owned interest Bulk

packaging or labeling Three facilities one of which is leased Two facilities one of which is leased Facility is owned
but land is leased Two facilities 10 Outsourced Shave prep manufacturing 11 Outsourced Personal Care Mfg
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Item Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to number of legal proceedings in various jurisdictions arising out of the

operations of the Company business Many of these legal matters are in preliminary stages and involve complex issues of law

and fact and may proceed for protracted periods of time The amount of liability if any from these proceedings cannot be

determined with certainty However based upon present information the Company believes that its ultimate liability if any

arising from pending legal proceedings asserted legal claims and known potential legal claims which are likely to be asserted

should not be material to the Companys financial position taking into account established accruals for estimated liabilities

These liabilities however could be material to results of operations or cash flows for particular quarter or year

See also the discussion captioned Governmental Regulation and Environmental Matters under Item above

Item Removed and Reserved

Item 4a Executive Officers Of The Registrant

list of the executive officers of Energizer and their business experience follows Ages shown are as of December 31

2011 Executive officers are appointed by and hold office at the discretion of our Board of Directors subject to the terms of

any employment agreements

Ward Klein- Chief Executive Officer of Energizer since January 2005 Prior to his current position he served as President

and Chief Operating Officer from 2004 to 2005 and as President International from 2002 to 2004 Mr Klein joined Ralston

Purina Company in 1979 He also served as President and Chief Operating Officer Asia Pacific and PanAm from 2000 to

2002 as Vice President Asia Pacific for Energizer from March to September 2000 as Vice President and Area Chairman

Asia Pacific Africa and Middle East for battery operations from 1998 to 2000 as Area Chairman Latin America from 1996-98

as Vice President General Manager Global Lighting Products 1994-96 and as Vice President of Marketing 1992-94 Age 56

Joseph McClanathan- President and Chief Executive Officer Energizer Household Products since November 2007 Prior

to his current position and title he served as President and Chief Executive Officer Energizer Battery from 2004 to 2007 and

President North America from 2002 to 2004 Mr MeClanathan joined the Eveready Battery division of Union Carbide

Corporation in 1974 He served as Vice President North America of Energizer from 2000 to 2002 as Vice President and

Chairman North America of Eveready Battery Company Inc from 1999 to 2000 as Vice President ChiefTechnology Officer

from 1996 to 1999 and as Vice President General Manager Energizer Power Systems division from 1993 to 1996 Age 59

David Hatfield- President and Chief Executive Officer Energizer Personal Care since November 2007 Prior to his current

position and title he served as President and Chief Executive Officer Schick-Wilkinson Sword from April to November 2007

as Executive Vice President and ChiefMarketing Officer Energizer Battery from 2004 to 2007 as Vice President North

American and Global Marketing from 1999 to 2004 Age 51

Daniel Sescleifer- Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Energizer since October 2000 Mr Sescleifer

served as Vice President and Treasurer of Solutia Inc from July-October 2000 as Vice President and Treasurer of Ralcorp

Holdings mc from 1996 to 2000 and as Director Corporate Finance of Ralcorp Holdings Inc from 1994 to 1996 Age 49

Gayle Stratmann- Vice President and General Counsel of Energizer since March 2003 Ms Stratmann joined Eveready

Battery Company Inc in 1990 Prior to her current position she served as Vice President Legal Matters Operations of

Eveready Battery Company Inc since 2002 From 1996 to 2002 she served as Assistant General Counsel Domestic Ms

Stratmann has notified the Company that she will retire from the Company in the first half of calendar 2012 Age 55

Peter Conrad- Vice President Human Resources of Energizer since March 2000 Mr Conrad joined Eveready Battery

Company Inc in 1997 Prior to his current position he served as Vice President Human Resources from 1997 to 2000 Mr

Conrad served as Vice President Human Resources for Protein Technologies International Inc former subsidiary of Ralston

Purina Company from 1995-97 Age 51
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PARITU

Item Market for RegistiantS common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purahases ofquity Securites

Stock hstcd on thc Nev York Stock hxchange As of September 30 2011 there were approximately 1500

hi holders of recoid of the NR Stock

he blowing table set forth the
range

of market prices for ENR Stock for the period Irom Octob 2009 to September

30 2011 No disidends weic declared ci paid ENR Stock during that
peri

and the Company does not curie rtly intend to

pay dividends durn fiscal ycar 2012

Market Price Range

FYZOII fY2OIO

Second Quaiter 61 60 75 97 53 88 65 74

M44
ourth Qr irtcr 64 92 84 94 49 72i0

There have hrc ii no unregistered offerings of registrants equity securities during the period covered by this Annual Repo

on oiin 10

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities The following table reports purchases of equity sec iritics during ftc fourth quarter of

fisesl 2011 by Lnerg icr and any affiliated purchasers puisuant to SEC rules including any treasury shares withheld to satisfy

iipl yec ithholding obligations UOI1 vesting of restricted stock and the execution of net cx we ses

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITII

Total Number of Average price paid
Pr Qd

_____
Shares purchased per shareg

July 201 1July31 2011 1298 7608

\ugu 0l ugus1 11 2011 1439 7466

Septembet 201 September 30 2011
______ ________ 251$ 6503

Vs Oh et th at table the number oharcs withheld in Ouiittioi1 with Lmpluyec vlthhodHIg uuiigatioiis ws
folk 3351 in July 8431 in Auc st and 86 in September

othei haie of comm stock were purehised during the quarter ended Septerthei 30 7011 Subsequent to the end if

us al which ended Se tember 2011 and through November 20 2011 the omp ny iepurchasc an additional 08

sha of it corn no sb it cost of pproximatcly $56

Ihe fullowin1 graph compares the cumulative year total return provided to shaicholders on Lnergi er Holdings Incs

coini xn stock tel sti to the cumulative total ieturns of the SP Midcap 400 index and the SP Housci old Products index

ins estm nt of $100 with reinvestment of all dividends is assumed to have been made in our cc mmon stock and in each ol

the indese on 307006 and its ielative perborinance is tracked through 9/30/2011 Ihese in hees arc mdi dm1 only for

ompai tit puiposc as icquned by Sceurities and Exchange Commission rules and do not necessarily reflect managements

opinion tInt such md ces arc in appiopi ate measure of th relative perform inee of the ornmon Stock They aie not intended

to ye at possibk future per tominanee of the Common Stock
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$190

$190

$140

$120

sic

$60

$60

$40

$20

$0

Energizer Holding Inc sPMldcap 400 SP Household Products

$100iavosted on 9/30106 ri stock or ridex includirrO re nvestrnent of diidends

Fiscal year ending September 30

Copynght 2011 SP dision of The McGraw-F-fill Ccmpanies Inc Al rights reserved

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Ener9izer Holdings Inc the SP Midcap 400 Index

and the SP Household Products Index

9/06 9/07 9/08 9109 9/10 9/11

Years are updated other info is not 9/06 9/07 9/08 9/09 9/10 9/11

Energizer Holdings Inc 100.00 126.97 195.50 142.06 117.00 118.57

SP Midcap 400 100.00 106.56 126.55 105.44 102.16 120.33

SP Household Products 100.00 108.86 125.07 127.12 113.67 122.05
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Item Selected Financial Data

See ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC SUMMARY SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION included

as part of Exhibit 13 attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

See the information appearing under ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION included as part of Exhibit 13 attached

hereto and incorporated by reference herein

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

See the information appearing under ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and

Positions included as part of Exhibit 13 attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements of Energizer and its subsidiaries together with the report thereon of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the supplementary data under ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited are included as part of

Exhibit 13 attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

We maintain comprehensive set of disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our filings under the

Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported accurately and within the time periods specified in the SECs

rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Energizers management including its Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures As of

September 30 2011 an evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of our management

including our ChiefExecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our

disclosure controls and procedures Based on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

concluded that as of September 30 2011 the design and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were effective

to provide reasonable assurance of the achievement of the objectives described above They have also determined in their

evaluation that there was no change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended

September 30 2011 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over

financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Report of the Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm of the Energizer Holdings Inc is included as part of Exhibit 13 attached hereto and incorporated by reference

herein

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item appearing under the Section captioned Executive Officers of the Registrant in Item

4a Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the information which will be in our Proxy Statement under the captions

information about Nominees and other Directors Information about Nominees and other Directors Board of Directors

Standing Committees and Information about Nominees and other Directors Board of Directors Standing Committees

Committee Charters Governance and Codes of Conduct is hereby incoxporated by reference

The information required by this item with respect to Section 16a beneficial ownership reporting compliance is set forth in

our 2011 Proxy Statement under the caption Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and is incorporated

herein by reference

The Company has adopted business practices and standards of conduct that are applicable to all employees including its

Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Controller The Company has also adopted

code of business conduct applicable to the Board of Directors The codes have been posted on the Companys website at

www.energizerholdings.com under About Energizer-Codes of Conduct In the event that an amendment to or waiver from

provision of one of the codes of ethics occurs and it is determined that such amendment or waiver is subject to the disclosure

provisions of Item 5.05 of Form 8-K the Company intends to satisfS such disclosure by posting such information on its website

for at least 12-month period

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item which will be in our Proxy Statement under the captions Director Compensation

Executive Compensation Board of Directors Standing Committees Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider

Participation and Nominating and Executive Compensation Committee Report is hereby incorporated by reference The

information contained in Report of the Nominating and Executive Compensation Committee shall not be deemed to be

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to the liabilities of the Exchange Act except to the extent that

the Company specifically incorporates such information into document filed under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act

Item 12 Security Owners/up of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this item which will be in our Proxy Statement under the captions Stock Ownership

Information and Equity Compensation Plan Information is hereby incorporated by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item which will be in our Proxy Statement under the captions Director Independence

and Certain Relationships and Related Transactions is hereby incorporated by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item which will be in our Proxy Statement under the caption Item Ratification of

Appointment of Independent Auditor is hereby incorporated by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Documents filed with this report

Financial statements included as Exhibit 13 attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income -- for years ended September 30 2011 2010 and
2009

Consolidated Balance Sheets -- at September 30 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -- for
years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity--at September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial statements of the Registrants 50% or less owned companies have been omitted because in the aggregate
they are not significant

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules not included have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the

financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K Pursuant to the Instructions to Exhibits certain instruments

defining the rights of holders of long-term debt securities of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are not
filed because the total amount of securities authorized under any such instrument does not exceed 10 percent of the

total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis copy of such instrument will be furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Energizers Post-
Effective Amendment No to Form 10 filed April 19 2000

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger among Energizer ETKM Inc and Playtex Products Inc dated July 12
2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 13
2007

2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of May 10 2009 by and between S.C Johnson Son Inc
Wisconsin corporation and Energizer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Energizers Current

Report on Form 8-K filed May 11 2009

2.4 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2010 by and between American Safety Razor LLC
Delaware limited liability company and Energizer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Energizers
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 13 2010

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Energizer Holdings Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of

Energizers Amendment No to Form 10 filed March 16 2000

3.2 Amended Bylaws of Energizer Holdings Inc restated as of April 25 2011 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 27 2011

4.1 Rights Agreement between Energizer Holdings Inc and Continental Stock Transfer Trust Company as

Rights Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Energizers Post-Effective Amendment No to

Form 10 filed April 19 2000

4.2 Indenture dated as of May 19 2011 by and among Energizer Holdings Inc the guarantors named therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company N.A as trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 19 2011

4.3 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 19 2011 by and among Energizer Holdings Inc the

guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company N.A as trustee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 19 2011

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 16 2011 by and among Energizer Holdings Inc the

guarantors named therein and Goldman Sachs Co Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated and JP Morgan Securities LLC as representatives of the Initial Purchasers named therein

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 19 2011

10.1 Tax Sharing Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of Energizers Post-Effective Amendment
No to Form 10 filed April 19 2000
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10.2 Energizer Holdings Inc Incentive Stock Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Energizers

Post-Effective Amendment No to Form 10 filed April 19 2000

10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreements with Executive Officers and Directors incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 of Energizers Post-Effective Amendment No ito Form 10 filed April 19 2000

10.4 Executive Long Term Disability Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Energizers Post-

Effective Amendment No to Form 10 filed April 19 2000

10.5 Executive Group Personal Excess Liability Insurance Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of

Energizers Post-Effective Amendment No ito Form 10 filed April 19 2000

10.6 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated September 23 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10i

of Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended September 30 2002

10.7 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated September 23 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10u
of Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended September 30 2002

10.8 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated January 27 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10i of

Energizers Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the Quarter Ended December 31 2002

10.9 Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement between Pfizer Inc and Energizer Holdings Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 0vi of Energizers Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended December

31 2002
10.10 Form of Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement dated May 19 2003 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 0u of Energizers Amended Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30

2003

10.11 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated May 19 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0iii of

Energizers Amended Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30 2003

10.12 Energizer Holdings Inc Note Purchase Agreement dated as of June 2003 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 0viii of Energizers Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30 2003

10.13 Amended and Restated Prepaid Share Option Transaction Agreement between Energizer Holdings Inc and

Citigroup Global Markets Limited dated as of August 28 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10i

of Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended September 30 2003

10.14 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated January 26 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 of

Energizers Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the Quarter Ended December 31 2003

10.15 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated October 19 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of

Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25 2004

10.16 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated January 14 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of

Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 19 2005

10.17 Form of Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement dated January 14 2005 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.2 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 19 2005

10.18 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option dated January 25 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of

Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 27 2005

10.19 Non-Competition and Non-Disclosure Agreement with J.P Mulcahy incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.3 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 27 2005

10.20 2005 Note Purchase Agreement dated September 29 2005 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of

Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 29 2005

10.21 2006 Note Purchase Agreement dated July 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Energizers

Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 2006

10.22 Form of Term Loan Credit Agreement dated December 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 2007

10.23 2009 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and restated

effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 of Energizers Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended September 30 2008

10.24 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15 2007
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10.25 Form of 2007 Note Purchase Agreement dated October 15 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 17 2007

10.26 Form of 2008 Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of October 13 2008

10.27 Amended Executive Officer Bonus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Energizers Current

Report on Form 8-K filed October 15 2008

10.28 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Energizer and Klein incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 2008

10.29 Form of Change of Control Employment Agreements as amended December 31 2008 incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2009

10.30 Energizer Holdings Inc 2000 Incentive Stock Plan as amended and restated incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2009

10.31 Form of Amendment to Certain Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreements incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.3 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2009

10.32 Energizer Holdings Inc 2009 Incentive Stock Plan approved January 26 2009 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit of Energizers Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed February 2009

10.33 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 10 2009

10.34 Third Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of May 2009 among Energizer

Receivables Funding Corporation as seller Energizer Battery Inc as servicer Energizer Personal Care

LLC as sub-servicer The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ LTD New York Branch as administrative agent

and agent Gotham Funding Corporation as conduit and Victory Receivables Corporation as conduit

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 2009

10.35 Amendment No to Third Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of May
2009 among Energizer Receivables Funding Corporation as seller Energizer Battery Inc as servicer

Energizer Personal Care LLC as sub-servicer The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ LTD New York

Branch as administrative agent and agent Three Pillars Funding LLC Gotham Funding Corporation and

Victory Receivables Corporation as conduits and Sunlrust Robinson Humphrey Inc as an agent

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 2009

10.36 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 of Energizers Amended Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15 2009

10.37 Form of Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of

Energizers Amended Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15 2009

10.38 Form of Retention Stock Option Award incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Energizers Amended
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15 2009

10.39 The summary of revisions to the Companys director compensation program and the resolution authorizing

personal use of corporate aircraft by the chief executive officer is hereby incorporated by reference to

Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 2009

10.40 Amendment No to Third Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of May
2010 by and among Energizer Receivables Funding Corporation as seller Energizer Battery Inc as

servicer Energizer Personal Care LLC as sub-servicer The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ LTD New
York Branch as administrative agent and agent Three Pillars Funding LLC Gotham Funding Corporation

and Victory Receivables Corporation as conduits and Sunlrust Robinson Humphrey Inc as an agent

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Energizers Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the period

ended June 30 2010

10.41 Form of Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 of

Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended September 30 201

10.42 Form of Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement for Chief Executive Officer incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.53 of Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended September 30
2010

10.43 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.54 of Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended September 30 2010
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10.44 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement for Chief Executive Officer

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 of Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Year ended

September 30 2010

10.45 First Amendment to the 2009 Restatement of the Energizer Holdings Inc Deferred Compensation Plan

effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 of Amendment No to

Energizers Annual Report for the Year ended September 30 2010 on Form 10-KIA filed May 16 201

10.46 Amendment No to 2009 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Deferred Compensation Plan effective

as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 of Amendment No to Energizers

Annual Report on Form lO-KIA filed May 16 201

10.47 2009 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Executive Savings Investment Plan effective as of January

2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 of Amendment No to Energizers Annual Report on

Form 10-K/A filed May 16 201

10.48 Amendment No to 2009 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Executive Savings Investment Plan

effective as of January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 of Amendment No to

Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed May 16 201

10.49 Amendment No to 2009 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Executive Savings Investment Plan

effective as of January 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 of Amendment No to

Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed May 16 2011

10.50 2010 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated October 15

2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 of Amendment No to Energizers Annual Report on

Form 10-K/A filed May 16 201

10.51 2009 Restatement of Energizer Holdings Inc Financial Planning Plan dated effective as of January 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 of Amendment No to Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-

K/A filed May 16 201

10.52 Energizer Holdings Inc Executive Health Plan 2009 Restatement effective as of January 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.56 of Amendment No to Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-

K/A filedMay 162011

10.53 Amended and Restated 2009 Incentive Stock Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Energizers

Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 21 201

10.54 Waiver and Amendment No to Third Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as

of February 24 2011 by and among Energizer Receivables Funding Corporation as seller Energizer

Battery Inc as servicer Energizer Personal Care LLC as sub-servicer Three Pillars Funding LLC as

conduit and committed purchaser Gotham Funding Corporation and Victory Receivables Corporation as

conduits The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd New York Branch as an agent committed purchaser

and administrative agent and Sunlrust Robinson Humphrey Inc as an agent incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Energizers Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the Quarter Ended March 31 2011

10.55 Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of May 2011 among Energizer Holdings

Inc Missouri corporation the institutions from time to time parties thereto as lenders and JPMorgan

Chase Bank N.A in its capacity as Administrative Agent Bank of America N.A and The Bank of

Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd as co-syndication agents and Citibank N.A and Suntrust Bank as co

documentation agents incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Energizers Current Report on Form 8-

filed May 201

10.56 Amendment No to Third Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of May
2011 by and among Energizer Receivables Funding Corporation as seller Energizer Battery Inc as

servicer Energizer Personal Care LLC as sub-servicer Three Pillars Funding LLC as conduit and

committed purchaser Gotham Funding Corporation and Victory Receivables Corporation as conduits The

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd New York Branch as an agent committed purchaser and

administrative agent and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey Inc as an agent incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 2011

10.57 Purchase Agreement dated as of May 16 2011 by and among Energizer Holdings Inc the guarantors

named therein and Goldman Sachs Co Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated and JP

Morgan Securities LLC as representatives of the Initial Purchasers named therein incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 19 2011

10.58 The summary of Energizers 2011 Annual Cash Bonus Award Program and 2011 Executive Officer Salaries

is hereby incorporated by reference to Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 19 201

10.59 Energizer Holdings Inc Executive Health Plan for Retired Employees restated effective January

2011
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10.60 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 of Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 21 2011

10.61 Form of Restricted Stock Equivalent Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of

Energizers Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 21 2011

13 Portions of the Energizer Holdings Inc 2011 Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended September
30 2011 incorporated by reference herein

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Section 302 Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

101 Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Form 10-K are the following documents formatted in eXtensible Business

Reporting Language XBRL Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income for the

years ended September 30 2009 2010 and 2011 ii Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30 2010

and 2011 iii Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30 2009 2010 and

2011 iv Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the
years ended September 30 2009 2010

and 2011 and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended September 30 2011 In

accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-I the XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 to this Annual

Report on Form 10-K shall not be deemed to be filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act
and shall not be deemed filed or part of any registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of Section

11 or 12 under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to

liability under those sections except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing The
financial information contained in the XBRL-related documents is unaudited and unreviewed

Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Denotes filed herewith

The Asset Purchase Agreement has been included to provide investors and shareholders with information regarding its

terms It is not intended to provide any factual business or operational information about Energizer or ASR The Asset

Purchase Agreement contains representations and warranties that the parties to the Agreement made solely for the benefit of

each other The assertions embodied in such representations and warranties are qualified by information contained in

confidential disclosure schedules that ASR provided to Energizer in connection with execution of the Asset Purchase

Agreement These disclosure schedules contain information that modifies qualifies and creates exceptions to the

representations and warranties set forth in the Asset Purchase Agreement Moreover the representations and warranties in the

Asset Purchase Agreement are subject to materiality standards which may differ from what may be viewed as material by

investors and shareholders ii in certain cases were used for the purpose of allocating risk among the parties rather than

establishing matters as facts and iiiwere only made as of the date of the Asset Purchase Agreement and are modified in

important part by the underlying disclosure schedules Accordingly investors and shareholders should not rely on such

representations and warranties as characterizations of the actual state of facts or circumstances Moreover information

concerning the subject matter of such representations and warranties may change after the date of the Asset Purchase

Agreement which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in Energizers public disclosures Pursuant to

Item 601b of Regulation S-K schedules have been omitted and will be furnished supplementally to the SEC upon request
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC

By /s/ Ward Klein

Ward Klein

Chief Executive Officer

Date November 22 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
Title

/s/Ward Klein

Ward Klein principal executive officer Chief Executive Officer

Is/Daniel Sescleifer

Daniel Sescleifer principal financial officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Is/John McColgan

John McColgan controller and principal accounting officer Vice President and Controller

/51J Patrick Mulcahy

Patrick Mulcahy Chairman of the Board of Directors

IsIR David Hoover

David Hoover Director

Is/John Klein

John Klein Director

Is/W Patrick McGinnis

Patrick McGinnis Director

Is/Pamela Nicholson

Pamela Nicholson Director

Is/John Roberts

John Roberts Director

/s/John Hunter

John Hunter Director

Is/Bill Armstrong

Bill Armstrong Director

Date November 22 2011

27



ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC

Dollars in millions except per share and percenta2e data

Exhibit 13

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

The following discussion is summary of the key factors management considers necessary in reviewing Energizer Holdings

Inc.s the Company historical basis results of operations operating segment results and liquidity and capital resources

Statements in this Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations that are not

historical may be considered forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995 See Forward-Looking Statements presented later in this section The Company reports results in two segments

Personal Care which includes wet shave skin care feminine care and infant care products and Household Products which

includes batteries and portable lighting products This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial

Statements and related notes

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

While Energizer Holdings Inc reports financial results in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S

GAAP this discussion includes certain non-GAAP financial measures These non-GAAP measures such as historic and

estimated future operating results net sales and segment profit are adjusted to exclude the impact of certain charges and

recoveries such as foreign currencies the results of operations in Venezuela the acquisition of American Safety Razor ASR
and the related integration and transaction costs the costs associated with restructuring and other realignment activities and

refinancing costs The Company believes these non-GAAP measures which are accompanied by reconciliations to the

comparable GAAP measures provide meaningful comparison to the corresponding reported period and assist investors in

performing analysis consistent with financial models developed by research analysts Investors should consider non-GAAP

measures in addition to not as substitute for or superior to the comparable GAAP measures Further these non-GAAP

measures may differ from similarly titled measures presented by other companies

Company Overview

General

Energizer Holdings Inc incorporated in Missouri in 1999 is one of the worlds largest manufacturers and marketers of

primary batteries portable lighting and personal care products in the wet shave skin care feminine care and infant care

categories On April 2000 all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Energizer were distributed in tax-free spin-off

to shareholders of Ralston Purina Company Operations for the Company are managed via two segments Personal Care Wet
Shave Skin Care Feminine Care and Infant Care and Household Products Battery and Lighting Products

Energizer is the successor to over 100 years of expertise in the battery and portable lighting products industry Its brand names

Energizer and Eveready have worldwide recognition for quality and dependability and are marketed and sold in more than 165

countries

On March 28 2003 we completed the acquisition of the Schick-Wilkinson Sword SWS business from Pfizer Inc SWS is the

second largest manufacturer and marketer of mens and womens wet shave products in the world Its portfolio of products

includes the Quattro for Women Intuition Lady Protector and Silk Effects Plus womens shaving systems and the Hydro

Quattro and Protector mens shaving systems as well as Quattro Xtreme and Slim Twin/Exacta disposable razors SWS has

over 75 years of history in the shaving products industry with reputation for high quality and innovation in shaving

technology SWS products are sold in more than 140 countries On June 2009 we completed the acquisition of the Edge and

Skintimate shave preparation brands from S.C Johnson Son Inc SCJ This added U.S market leading shave preparation

brands to our existing wet shave product portfolio

At the beginning of fiscal 2008 we completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Playtex Products Inc Playtex

leading manufacturer and marketer of well-recognized branded consumer products in North America Its portfolio of products

include Playtex feminine care products Playtex infant care products Diaper Genie diaper disposal systems Wet Ones pre

moistened wipes Banana Boat and Hawaiian Tmpic sun care products and Playtex household gloves

On November 23 2010 we completed the acquisition of ASR as we acquired substantially all of the assets ofASR including

the assets of its U.S subsidiaries and the stock of its non-U.S subsidiaries and assumed substantially all of the liabilities of

ASR and its U.S subsidiaries for cash purchase price of $301 ASR founded in 1875 is the leading global manufacturer of

private label value wet shaving razors and blades and industrial and specialty blades
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Unless we indicate otherwise we base the information concerning our industry contained or incorporated by reference herein

on our general knowledge of and expectations concerning the industry Our market position market share and industry market

size is based on our estimates using our internal data and estimates based on data from various industry sources our internal

research and adjustments and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable We have not independently verified data from

industry sources and cannot guarantee their accuracy or completeness In addition we believe that data regarding the industry

market size and our market position and market share within such industry provide general guidance but are inherently

imprecise Further our estimates and assumptions involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various

factors including those discussed in the Risk factors section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K These and other factors

could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the estimates and assumptions

Fiscal 2011 Developments

American Safety Razor Acquisition

On November 23 2010 we completed the acquisition of ASR as we acquired substantially all of the assets of ASR including

the assets of its U.S subsidiaries and the stock of its non-U.S subsidiaries and assumed substantially all of the liabilities of

ASR and its U.S subsidiaries for cash purchase price of $301 The Company financed this transaction with available cash of

approximately $129 and borrowings from our existing receivable securitization program ASR is part of our wet shave product

group under our Personal Care Segment See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details

Household Products Restructuring

On March 2011 the Company determined that as part of its previously announced restructuring initiative it would close its

carbon zinc battery manufacturing facility in Cebu Philippines and its alkaline battery manufacturing facility in La Chaux De

Fonds LCF Switzerland As of September 30 2011 both facilities have ceased production The carbon zinc and alkaline

batteries previously supplied by the Cebu and LCF facilities are being produced in our remaining battery manufacturing

facilities

For the year ended September 30 2011 the Company recorded pre-tax charges for the Household Products restructuring of

$79.0 which were primarily the result of the announced closing of the Cebu and LCF facilities These charges included

severance and termination related costs of $41.8 accelerated depreciation on property plant and equipment of $16.1 pension

settlement costs of $6.1 and other related exit costs of $15.0 These costs are included as separate line item on the

Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income Total cash paid for the restructuring was approximately $57

in fiscal 2011 and we estimate that the remaining amounts accrued but not paid in fiscal 2011 of approximately $7 will be paid

in the first half of fiscal 2012

In addition to the restructuring charges recorded in fiscal 2011 and noted above the Company expects to record additional

charges related to the Household Products restructuring of approximately $6 in fiscal 2012 which are expected to be more than

offset by gain on the completed November 2011 sale of the former LCF property to third party

We anticipate $30 to $35 of annual pre-tax savings from the restructuring by the end of fiscal 2012 of which approximately

$11 has been realized in fiscal 2011

Japan Earthquake and Related Events

On March 11 2011 an earthquake struck off the northeast coast of Japan triggering tsunami Further compounding the

situation nuclear power plants were damaged causing concerns about the possible meltdown of nuclear reactors and the release

of harmful radioactive materials The events have severely disrupted the Japanese economy the third largest in the world

Japan is the second largest market for our wet shave products with sales of approximately $190 in fiscal 2011 Japan is not

significant battery market for Energizer We estimate that 5% to 10% of our business is in the areas most impacted by the

earthquake and tsunami While there was an initial disruption in our ability to service the affected areas our products are now

back in distribution in the majority of retail locations In addition our wholesale distribution network remains intact in the

affected areas While the long-term impact of the disaster in Japan remains unclear it should be noted that the Company does

not have manufacturing facilities in Japan and assets in Japan are essentially working capital in nature The Company sources

certain materials from Japan At this point we have not had any major supply disruptions or asset impairments We continue

to monitor developments in Japan in the aftermath of the disaster

29



ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC
Dollars in millions except per share and percenta2e data

Senior Notes Offering

On May 19 2011 the Company completed the issuance of $600.0 principal amount of 4.7 0% Senior Notes due May 2021

with interest paid semi-annually beginning November 2011 The majority of the proceeds were used to repay existing

indebtedness including refinancing $475 of private placement notes with maturities ranging from 2011 to 2013 The early

retirement of certain of the private placement notes resulted in make-whole payments totaling $19.9 pre-tax which is reflected

as separate line item on the attached Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income The issuance of the notes extended

the maturities of our long-term debt and reduced the level of scheduled principal repayments in 2012 and 2013

Financial Results

For the year ended September 30 2011 net earnings were $261.2 or $3.72 per
diluted share compared to net earnings of

$403.0 or $5.72 per diluted share in fiscal 2010 and $297.8 or $4.72 per
diluted share in fiscal 2009 Total average diluted

shares outstanding were 70.3 million 70.5 million and 63.1 million for fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively In fiscal 2011
the Company repurchased 3.7 million shares with the majority repurchased in the fourth fiscal quarter We estimate that the

share repurchase positively impacted diluted earnings per share by approximately $0.06 for fiscal 2011

Diluted earnings per share EPS for each fiscal
year were impacted by certain items related to restructuring and realignment

activities costs associated with the acquisition and integration of acquired businesses refinancing activities the devaluation

and implementation of highly inflationary accounting in Venezuela and certain tax adjustments to update prior year provisions

benefits and net deferred tax balances and recognize the tax benefit of certain foreign dividends The impacts of these items on

reported net earnings per diluted share are provided below as reconciliation of net earnings per diluted share to adjusted net

earnings per diluted share which is non-GAAP measure

For The Years Ended

September 30

2011 2010 2009

Diluted EPS GAAP 3.72 5.72 4.72

Impacts net of tax Expense Income

Household Products restructuring 0.89

Early debt retirement duplicate interest 0.21

Other realignment/integration 0.15 0.10 0.13

Acquisition inventory valuation 0.06 0.04

Venezuela VZ devaluationlother 0.03 0.20

PTO Adjustment 0.24

VERO/Separation Costs 0.39

Valuation allowance other tax adjustments 0.14 0.42 0.02

Diluted EPS adjusted Non-GAAP 5.20 5.60 5.06
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Operating Results

Net Sales

Net Sales Total Company

For the Years Ended September 30

2011 %Chg %Chg

80.7 2.1

101.4 2.5

23.3 0.6%

89.7 2.2

4248.3 6.2

Net sales for fiscal 2011 were $4645.7 an increase of $397.4 or 9.4% as compared to fiscal 2010 due primarily to the

inclusion of ASR and the favorable impacts of currencies On an organic basis net sales for the fiscal year increased 1% as

higher sales in Personal Care due in part to the Schick Hydro launch higher sales of disposable razors and stronger Skin Care

revenue were offset by declines in Household Products and legacy mens razor systems

Net sales for fiscal 2010 were $4248.3 an increase of $248.5 or 6.2% as compared to fiscal 2009 including the favorable

impact of currencies of approximately $100 and year-over-year
increase of approximately $90 from the full year ownership

of the Edge and Ski ntimate shave preparation brands The total year growth was also positively impacted by the Schick Hydro

launch in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 The devaluation and difficult economic conditions in Venezuela resulted in

reduction in net sales of approximately $23 in fiscal 2010 Net sales for both Personal Care and Household Products grew

approximately 2% on an organic basis in fiscal 2010

For further discussion regarding net sales in Personal Care and Household Products please see the section titled Segment

Results provided below

Gross Profit

Gross profit dollars were $2145.7 in fiscal 2011 an increase of$126.4 or 6.3% as compared to $2019.3 in fiscal 2010 and

$1858.6 in fiscal 2009

Gross Margin as percent of net sales for fiscal 2011 was 46.2% down 130 basis points as compared to fiscal 2010 This

decrease was due primarily to the inclusion of value priced ASR products which reduced gross margin by approximately 130

basis points during the period In addition higher commodity costs primarily in batteries and higher coupon and trade

promotion related to the Schick Hydro launch were offset by favorable currencies and product mix

Gross margin as percent of net sales was 47.5% in fiscal 2010 and 46.5% in fiscal 2009 The margin percentage increase in

fiscal 2010 was due primarily to favorable currencies excluding Venezuela which added approximately 90 basis points

Selling General and Administrative

Selling general and administrative expenses SGA were $856.1 or 18.4% of net sales as compared to $765.7 or 18.0% of

net sales for fiscal 2010 The dollar increase of $90.4 was due to the inclusion of approximately $49 of expenses related to

ASR which were not incurred in the prioryear the unfavorable impact of currencies of approximately $19 investments in

growth initiatives of approximately $12 and approximately $10 in higher pension expenses due primarily to the actuarial

impact of lower market discount rates on the value of pension liabilities ASR expenses in fiscal 2011 included approximately

$13 million of non-recurring transaction/integration expenses SGA increased $23.1 in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal

2009 due primarily to the impact of annual merit increases and support of growth initiatives

Advertising and Promotion

For fiscal 2011 advertising and promotion AP was $524.0 an increase of $62.7 as compared to fiscal 2010 AP as

percent of net sales for fiscal 2011 was 11.3% as compared 10.9% of net sales in fiscal 2010 Excluding the net sales and AP
related to ASR which has relatively low level of consumer spending in comparison to our other products AP as percent

Net sales prior year 4248.3

Organic change 42.0 1.0

Impact of currency 108.4 2.6

Change in VZ post devaluation 15.3 0.4%

Incremental impact of acquisitions 262.3 6.2

Net sales current year 4645.7 9.4

2010

3999.8

2009

4331.0

164.3

224.3

57.4

3999.8
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of sales was 11.9% for fiscal 2011 up approximately 100 basis points as compared to fiscal 2010 due primarily to support for

the launch of Schick Hydro AP increased $46.8 in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009 due to increased spending

including support of the Companys Schick Hydro launch in April 2010

AP
expense was 11.3% 11.9% excluding the impact of ASR 10.9% and 10.4% of sales for fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively AP
expense may vary from year to year

with new product launches the impact of acquisitions strategic brand

support initiatives the overall competitive environment and the state of the global economy

We expectAP as percent of net sales for fiscal 2012 will track closer to historical rates from fiscal 2010 and 2009 We
remain committed to investing in innovation brand and category development and other growth opportunities

Research and Development

Research and development RD expense was $108.3 in fiscal 2011 $97.1 in fiscal 2010 and $90.5 in fiscal 2009 The

increased expense in fiscal 2011 reflects additional spending in support of the Companys growth initiatives and the inclusion

of ASR which added approximately $7 As percent of sales RD expense was approximately 2.3% in all three fiscal years

presented

nterest Cost of Debt Early Retirement and Other Financing Expense net

Interest expense for fiscal 2011 was $121.4 decrease of $4.0 as compared to fiscal 2010 due primarily to lower
average

borrowings In May 2011 the Company issued $600.0 principal amount of 4.70% senior notes due May 2021 with interest

paid semi-annually beginning in November 2011 significant portion of the net proceeds from the issuance of the senior

notes were used for the early redemption of certain private placement notes This early redemption required notice period

which delayed our repayment of the private placement notes We incurred approximately $3 of duplicate interest expense as

result of this notice period Exclusive of this duplicate cost total interest expense for the lull fiscal year in 2011 was down $7.0

compared to fiscal 2010

As noted previously the Company utilized majority of the proceeds from its Senior Note issuance in May 2011 to repay

existing indebtedness including $475 of private placement notes with maturities ranging from 2011 to 2013 The early

retirement of certain of the private placement notes resulted in make-whole payments totaling $19.9 pre-tax which is reflected

as separate line item on the attached Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income

Other financing expense net was $31.0 in fiscal 2011 due primarily to losses on foreign exchange hedging contracts of

approximately $25 which were more than offset by the impact of favorable currencies included in divisional segment profit

results which were approximately $55 and are detailed later in this discussion

Interest expense for fiscal 2010 decreased $19.3 as compared to fiscal 2009 due primarily to lower average borrowings Other

financing expense net was $26.4 for fiscal 2010 as compared to $21.0 in fiscal 2009 The fiscal 2010 result includes an

exchange loss of $18.3 pre-tax due primarily to the impact of the devaluation of the Venezuela Bolivar Fuerte The year-over-

year change in other financing expense net in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009 was favorable exclusive of the Venezuela

devaluation as the first quarter of fiscal 2009 included significant charge related to the strengthening of the U.S dollar during

the economic crisis This loss was not repeated in fiscal 2010

Income Taxes

Income taxes which include federal state and foreign taxes were 35.7% 25.8% and 33.1% of earnings before income taxes in

fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Income taxes include the following items which impacted the overall tax rate in the

fiscal years indicated

For Fiscal 2011

The Household Products restructuring included significant costs incurred in countries with comparatively low

effective tax rates which has the effect of increasing our overall effective tax rate due to lower tax benefit associated

with these costs

Establishment of an estimated valuation allowance for certain tax loss carryforwards of $4.5 related to costs incurred

from the fiscal 2011 closure of the Swiss plant as part of the Household Products restructuring

Tax expense of $6.9 due to the establishment of valuation allowance for certain foreign tax loss carryforwards

which are no longer likely to be utilized based on recent evaluation

Adjustments were recorded to reflect refinement of estimates of tax attributes to amounts in filed returns settlement of
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tax audits and other tax adjustments These fiscal 2011 adjustments decreased the income tax provision by $1.7 and

tax benefit of $2.6 was recorded in fiscal 2011 associated with the write-up and subsequent sale of inventory

acquired in the ASR acquisition

For Fiscal 2010

$23.5 tax benefit related to the favorable impact of foreign tax credit

Adjustments were recorded to reflect refinement of estimates of tax attributes to amounts in filed returns settlement of

tax audits and other tax adjustments The fiscal 2010 adjustment decreased the income tax provision by $6.1 and

$4.1 tax benefit was recorded in fiscal 2010 reflecting the local tax benefit of the Venezuela devaluation charge

For Fiscal 2009

Adjustments were recorded to reflect refinement of estimates of tax attributes to amounts in filed returns settlement of

tax audits and other tax adjustments This adjustment increased the tax provision by $1.5 in fiscal 2009 and

tax benefit of $1.4 was recorded in fiscal 2009 associated with the write-up and subsequent sale of inventory

acquired in the Edge/Skintimate shave preparation acquisition

The Companys effective tax rate is highly sensitive to the mix of countries from which earnings or losses are derived

Declines in earnings in lower tax rate countries earnings increases in higher tax rate countries repatriation of foreign earnings

or operating losses in the future could increase future tax rates Additionally adjustments to prioryear tax provision estimates

could increase or decrease future tax provisions

Segment Results

Operations for the Company are managed via two segments Personal Care Wet Shave Skin Care Feminine Care and Infant

Care and Household Products Battery and Lighting Products On November 23 2010 which is in the first fiscal quarter of

2011 we completed the acquisition of ASR which is leading global manufacturer of private label/value wet shaving razors

and blades and industrial and specialty blades and is part of the Companys Personal Care segment Segment performance is

evaluated based on segment operating profit exclusive of general corporate expenses share-based compensation costs costs

associated with most restructuring integration or business realignment activities including the Household Products

restructuring activities in fiscal 2011 and amortization of intangible assets Financial items such as interest income and

expense are managed on global basis at the corporate level

The Companys operating model includes combination of stand-alone and combined business functions between the Personal

Care and Household Products businesses varying by country and region of the world Shared functions include product

warehousing and distribution various transaction processing functions and in some countries combined sales force and

management Such allocations do not represent the costs of such services if performed on stand-alone basis The Company

applies fully allocated cost basis in which shared business functions are allocated between the businesses

The reduction in gross profit associated with the write-up and subsequent sale of the inventory acquired in the ASR acquisition

in November 2010 which was $7.0 for fiscal 2011 and the Edge and Skintimate shave preparation acquisition in June 2009

which was $3.7 for fiscal 2009 as well as the related
expenses

and integration costs for each of the acquisitions are not

reflected in the Personal Care segment but rather presented below segment profit as they are non-recurring items directly

associated with the acquisition Such presentation reflects how management evaluates segment performance

In fiscal 2011 the Company recorded expense of $1.8 related to the devaluation of its net monetary assets in Venezuela as

result of accounting for the translation of this affiliate under the accounting rules governing highly inflationary economy
These results reflect an exchange rate of 5.6 Venezuelan Bolivar Fuerte to one U.S dollar In the prior fiscal year the Company

recorded pre-tax loss of $18.3 due primarily to the devaluation of our Venezuela affiliates U.S dollar based intercompany

payable as result of the devaluation of the exchange rate between the U.S dollar and the Venezuelan Bolivar Fuerte These

impacts which are included in other financing on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income are not

considered in the evaluation of segment profit However normal operating results in Venezuela such as sales gross profit and

operating expenses have been negatively impacted on net basis in fiscal 2011 as compared to fiscal 2010 by translating at

less favorable exchange rates primarily in the first fiscal quarter of 2011 and by the impact of unfavorable economic

conditions in the country These operating results remain part of the reported segment totals The segment impacts of the

Venezuela devaluation and the unfavorable economic impact on operating results are shown separately in the tables provided in

the division discussions See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details
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On May 19 2011 the Company completed the issuance of $600.0 principal amount of 4.70% Senior Notes due May 2021

with interest paid semi-annually beginning November 2011 The vast majority of the proceeds of the offering were used to

repay existing indebtedness including the early redemption of certain private placement notes The early retirement of certain

private placement notes resulted in make whole payments totaling $19.9 pre-tax which are reflected as separate line item

on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income as well as the reconciliation of segment results to total

earnings before income taxes See Notes 12 and 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details

This structure is the basis for the Companys reportable operating segment information as included in the tables in Note 19 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009

PERSONAL CARE

Net Sales Personal Care Products

For the years ended September 30

2011 %Chg 2010 %Chg 2009

Net sales prioryear 2048.6 1890.3 1856.7

Organic growth 91.9 4.5 34.8 1.9 56.2

Impact of
currency

53.5 2.6 43.7 2.3 80.0

Change in VZ post devaluation 6.6 0.3% 9.9 0.5%

Incremental impact of acquisitions 262.3 12.8 89.7 4.7 57.4

Net sales current year 2449.7 19.6 2048.6 8.4 $1890.3

Net sales for fiscal 2011 were $2449.7 up $401.1 or 19.6% as compared to fiscal 2010 This increase included 4.5% of

organic sales growth and the remainder was driven by the inclusion of ASR and favorable currencies The full year net sales

growth was driven primarily by

Net sales in Wet Shave increased 29% including the impact ofASR and favorable currencies offset by net sales

decline in Venezuela Organic sales grew 6% in Wet Shave due to the launch of Schick Hydro mens systems and

shave preparations and higher sales of disposable razors which were partially offset by lower sales of legacy mens

systems and

Skin Care net sales increased 9% 7% organic and 2% currencies due to the favorable impact of lower prior year sun

care returns and higher shipments for the current sun care season

Net sales for fiscal 2010 were $2048.6 up $158.3 or 8.4% as compared to fiscal 2009 including approximately $44 of

favorable currencies partially offset by reduced net sales in Venezuela of $10 due to the devaluation of the Bolivar Fuerte and

unfavorable macroeconomic conditions within the country Excluding the impact of currencies and Venezuela sales increased

approximately $35 from organic growth and $90 from the acquisition of Edge and Skintimate including

Wet Shave net sales for fiscal 2010 increased approximately $126 or 11% as compared to fiscal 2009 due to the full

year impact of the Edge and Ski ntimate brands acquisition which added approximately $90 to net sales and the

launch of Schick Hydro

Infant Care sales increased 2% driven by Diaper Genie and cups offset by lower sales of bottles Skin Care sales

increased 3% on higher shipments of Hawaiian Tropic and lower end of season sun care returns partially offset by

lower shipments of Wet Ones as fiscal 2010 volumes returned to more normalized demand post Hi Ni consumption

peaks Feminine Care sales decreased 8% on lower shipments of Gentle Glide due to significant competitive activity

partially offset by continued growth of Sport tampons
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Segment Profit Personal Care Products

For the years ended September 30

2011 %hg 010 oChg 2009

Segment profit pnor year
366.6 34L1 3225

ipeiauuus L9 3.2% 33

Impact of currency
26.9 7.3 24 200

Change in VZ post devaluation 1.2 0.3% 09

Inciemental impact of acquisitions
28.0 7.6 22.5

Segment protitcuiient year
408.4 11.4% 3666 3411

Segment profit for fiscal 2011 was $408/f up $4L8 or 1L4% due to the favorable unpacts of the inclusi of ASR and

currencies Ibis was partially otfset by lower operational results of approximately $12 or 3% drir to ineieascd AP in support

of the Sehkk Ilydro launch partially offset by higher margin from the orgamc sales growth noted above

Segment profit fbr fiscal 2010 was $366 up $25 or 7.5% as compared to fiscal 2009 due to tie lavor able impact of

currencies of approxnnately $25 exclusive of Venezuela xcluding the impact of favorable currencies segment profit was

essentially fiat as higher gi oss mai gin fi om the mcieased sales noted above was offset by higher AP and overhead spending

due in part to the support of tfe April 2010 hIck Hydio launch in North Ameiica and the full year impact of spendmg behir

Edge and Skintimate Ovei all the Venezuela devaluation and ielated deteriomatmon in economic conditions in the countiy did not

have material impact on yearoveiryear segment profit

Looking forward iii Personal are and inclusive of full year of ASR results we expect segment profit growth in fiscal 2012

will he primarily driven by mid single digit organic sales growth We plan to continue to invest in trial gcnerating activities

brand equity nd growth oppnrlunitrt aross all of our Personal Care categories to grow our sales and continue to enhance the

long term health of the business

Finally as noted in our discussion of the ASR acquisition ASR manufactures and sells industrial and specialty blades fhrs is

relatively small product line with annualrzcd sales of less than $50 and cornpsratrrely lower operating margins We are

evaluating the potential sale of this business as it is not strategic and does not integrate well into our existing W4 Shavc

product line We estimate that the carry ng value of the assets that may be sold was approximately 530 at Septemhei 30 201

On November 2011 which is our first fiscal quarter of 2012 the Board of Directors delegated authority to pursue
and

approve potential sale of the industrial blade assets to senior management he rca mew of this potential action remains om

going
and we can pros ide no assurance sat sale will be completed

Net Sales Household Products

For the years ended September 30

2011 %Chg 2010 ofihg 2009

Net sales prior year 2199.7 2109 2474

Organic hange 49.9 2.3% 459 22 220

Impact of currency
54.9 2.5 577 0/f 144

hange in V7 post des aluation 8.7 0.4% 13 00y/

Net sales current year 21960 2% 2199 4/f 2109/f

For fiscal 2011 net sales were 52 1960 essentially flat as compared to $2199.7 for fiscal 2010 Dig mnic sales declined 384

as comparcd to fiscal 2010 due to continued negative category value trends and increased retailer trade spendmg primairly in

the US and Western Fumope We estimate that the dollar value of the battery category in global seasured niarkets declined

in the low single digits in fiscal 2011 ais decline in organic sales on year over year basis was offset by favor able

currencies

For ic 2010 net sale were 52199 up 590 or 43% including approximately $58 of favorable cur encies he currenc

gains were partially ofiet by reduced net sales in Venezuela ol approximately $13 due to the reasons rioted previously
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Lx luding the impact of currencies and Venezuela onanie sales grew due to highei sales volume due rimarily to

disinhution cams

Segment Profit Household Products

Ior the years ended September 30

2011 hg 2010 hg 2009

Segment piofit priol year 451.1 398.6 489

Operations 71.3 15.8% 28.5 14

Impact of currency 28.1 62 30.6 71 76

hange in V/ post dcvaluaiion

Scgrrent profit cunent year 410.6 9.0% 451 13200

Sgmcnt profit for fiscal 2011 was $4106 down $40 or 90% The favorable
impact of currencies was ofLet by operati uhi

results whicn declinea $71 million or Is due piimarily to category value declines increased ietailct trade spending the

unfi orible impact of higher comniodity prices and investments in growth initiatives

Stgment profit ft the year ended September 30 2010 was $451.1 up $52.5 or 13 2/ as compai ed to fiscal 2009 includir

approximately 31 of favorable currencies partially ofiset by lower profit in Venezuela of approximately $1 Lxclusive these

img acts srgment profit increased approximately $29 or 7% operationally due to lower raw material prices and the rnarg ii

impact of higher sales

Looking fo ward in household Products we expect segment profit to stabilize in fiscal 2012 as the favorable impacts of

announced pricing initiatives and incremental restructuring savings are expeeted to ofiset anticipated contmued battery

category chal1encs higher cosis for ommodities and other inflationary ire reaces previously noted hehr th o5ai

category saluc continues to decline overall and this trend remains concern for fiscal 2012 In an effort to offset higher

product cost other operating costs md investments in innovation we recently announced 7% price ineiease on allciline

and carbon zinc products in the effective in hebruaiy 2012

GF NERAL CORPORALE AND OTHER EXP NSES

Lor Fhe Years Ended Scptcmber 10

2011 2010 2009

General corpoi ate expenses 511695 97 583

Suh1otal 1199 1086

ASR costs

erance/othc intep ration 93

Mdo 11I3$1P

Vt RO/separation costs 38

nf
General corporate and other expenses 2194 108 115

General Corporate and Other Expenses

lor fiscal 2011 general corporate expenses including integration/other realignment were $119 an inciease of 11.3 as

compared to fiscal 2010 due primarily to higher corporate compensation expenses most notably iigher stock award

arnortizatio and higher pension expenses due primarily to the deelme in matket disco mt rates which results in an mere

the actuarial value of pension liabilities This was partially offset by lower integration and olhei realignment costs exclusi of
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the Household Products restructuring which is included on separate line in the ahoy table In fiscal 2011 the oinpany

incurred approximately $13 of ASR transr ction and integration expenses
and $7 of costs associated with the writeup and

subsequent sale of the acquired ASR inventory

For fiscal 2010 general corporate expenses including mtegiation/other realignment increased 511 as compared to fiscal

200Q due primarily to higher eniporate compensation expenses including higher annual incentive bonuses and stock award

amortization

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company implemented voluntary early retirement option VERO for eligible U.S

colleagues The decision to accept the cas bcnefits offered under the VERO was at the election ot thc colleague and was

irrevocable Payments under the VIRO were cash only and did not include any enhancement to pension or retirement benefits

In addition the Company implemented reduction in force RIF program primarily in the .S to further adjust the

organizational structure The total charge fbr the VERO and RIF in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2009 was $38.6 and was

included in SGA

Also in fiscal 2009 we recorded favorable adjustment of $24 prctax resulting from change in the policy under which

colleagues earn and vest in the ompanys paid time offP 10 benefit Prior to the change colleagues were granted and vested

in their total P1O days at the beginning the calendar year and received cash payment for unuscd days in the event of

termination during the year As such the value of full year of PTO net of days uscd was accrued at any given ba ance sheet

date As part of review of certain benefit programs this policy was revised in fiscal 2009 to more market policy foi PlO

The revised policy utilizes an am as you go approach tinder which colleagues earn current year P1 on prorata
basis as

they work during the year As result of this change any previously earned and vested benefit under the prior policy was

forfeited and the required liability at the date of the policy change was adjusted to reflect the reviscd benefit

Liquidity and apital Resources

At September 30 2011 the Company had $471 in available cash the vast majority of which was outside of the .8 and

$438 available undci its eummittd deb facilities exclusive of available borrowings under the receivables securitization

prograni

On May 2011 the Company amended md renewed for three year term its existing receivables securitization program

Borrowings under this program which may not exceed $200 receive favorable treatment in the Companys debt compliance

covenants At September 30 2011 $35.0 was outstanding under this facility

On May 2011 the Companys $450 U.S revolving credit facility was renewed foi five year teim This reneal represents

an increase in the amount available under this revolving line of credit as compared to the $275 available undcr the facility prior

to the renewal At Septemhcr 30 2011 there were no outstanding borrowings under this facility

As discussed previously on May 19 2011 the Conipany issued $600.0 principal amount of 4.70 Senior Notes due May 202

with interest payable semiannually beginning November 2011 Fiom liquidity perspective the use of proceeds from this

issuance for the early redemption of certain private placement notes with scheduled maturities through 2013 reduces the

amount of contractual principal repayments required over the next two fiscal yemrs

Operating Activities

Cash flow from operations is the primary funding source for operating needs and capital investments ash flow from

operations was 5412.5 in fiscal 2011 decrease of $239.9 as compared to fiscal 2010 Cash flow from operations was $6524

in fiscal 2010 an increase of 5163.2 as compared to $489.2 for fiscal 2009 ihe decrease in cash flow from operations in fiscal

2011 was due primarily to lower operating cash flow before changes in working capital due primaiily to increased investments

in support of the Hydro launch and the negative impact of the Household Products restructuring he increase in cash llow tro Ti

operations in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009 was due primarily to higher operating cash flow before changes in working

capital

From working capital perspective changes in assets and liabilities used in operations working crpital resulted in negative

cash flow of approximately $110 in fiscal 2011 ihe most significant impact was in accounts payable and other current

liabilities which decreased collectively 1y approximately $120 in fiscal 2011 due primarily to the level of promotional

activities and the timing of payments The unfavorable cash flow impact due to lower levels of accounts payable and other

current liabilities at the end of fiscal 201 was partially offset by lower inventory of approximately $65 due piimarily to

reductions in wet shave as we anniversary the Schick Hydm launch and the impact of hurricanerelated inventory reduction in

the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011
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under our credit facilities will he adequa to meet liquidity requirements prior to the maturity of the ompa ys term loan in

December 2012 although no guat antee can be given in this regard We anticipate that the term loan which matures in

December 2012 will he refinanced in some manner but we can provide no assurances as to the type nature and cost of this

refinancing

he counterparties to long term committed borrowings consist of number of majoi financial institutions rhe Company

continually monitors positions with and credit ratings of counteiparties both internally and by using outside ratings agencies

In fiscal 201 the Company repurchased million shares of Unergizer common stock exclusive of small number of shares

related to the net settlement of certain stock awards for tax withholding purposes fhr total cost of approximately $276 Since

the end of fiscal 2011 and through Nove uber 20 the Company repurchased an additional 0.8 million shares of its common

stock at total cost of approximately $56 All of the shames were purchased in the open market under the Companys cm rent

authorization from its Board of Directors The Company has approximately million shares remaining on this current

authorization to repurchase its common stock in the future Future purchases may be made from time to time on the open

market or through privately negotiated transactions subject to corporate objectives and the discretion of management

summary of the Company contractual obligations at september 30 2011 is shown helow

Less than More than

fotal year l3 years 3-5 years years

Interest on long term debt 625.6 106.6 191.8 150.9 176

Operatingleases
1211 27.8 381 244 308

g1g JLOJt_i____
Total 3445.8 3244 11099 744.4 $12671

Globally total pension contributions foi the Company fiscal 2012 arc estmsated to he appioximately $65.7 he .5 pension plans constitute 80
the total benefit obligations and pl in assets for the Companys pension plans The estimates beyond 2012 represent future pension payments to comply

with bed funding requirements in the .5 only The pr jectecl payments beyond fiscal year 2016 are not eurrentl determinable

The Company has esiimated approximately 83 of ca ettlements assoeiated with unrecognized tax benefits within the nexi year which are included

in the table sbove As of September 30 2011 the Compeny Consolidated Balance Sheet reflects liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $41 .2

excluding $10 of interest and penalties
TL eonO actual obligations table ahos does not include thu liability beyond one year Due to the high degree

of uncertainty regaiding the timing of future cash outflows of liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits beyond one year reasonable estimate of the

period of ssh settlement for peuiods beyonc the next in dye months cannot be made and thus is not included in this table

Purchase obligations set foi th in the table above lepresent contractual obligations that generally have longer terms and are non

routine in nature hr omnpany also has contractual purchase obligations for future purchases which generally extend one to

thiee months These obligations are pririamily individual short-term purchase orders for the purchase of routine goods and

services at fan value that are part of nor iml operations and are reflected in historical operating cash flow trends In addition he

Company has various commitments related to service and supply conti acts that contain penalty provisions for early

termination As of September 30 2011 we do not believe such purchase obligations or termination penalties will has

significant effect on oui results of
operations

financial position or liquidity position in the future As such these obligations

have been excluded Irons the table above

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments and Positions

The market risk inherent in the ompanys financial instruments and positIons represents the potential loss arising fiom adverse

changes in currency rates commodity prices interest rates and the Companys stock price The following risk management

discussion and the estimated amounts generated from the sensitivity analysis are forward-looking statements of market risk

assuming certain adverse market condit ons occur Company policy allows derivatives to be used only for identmf able

exposures and theteibre the ompany does not enter into hedges for trading purposes where the sole objective is to generato

profits

Currency Rate Exposure

significant portion of our product cost is niore closely tied to the dollar and to lesser extent the uro than to the local

currencies in which the product is sold As such weakening of cutrenctes relative to the U.S dollar and to lesser extent he

buro results in margin declines unless mitigated through pricing actions which are nor always available due to the coiuipetit.vc
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ci rironinent Conversely strengthening of currencies relative to the dollar and to lesser cxtcnt the Euro ai impi vc

margin. This margin impact coupled ith thr transation of foreign operating results to the dollir ou fin ncr rep

cu eney has ar im IC on reported crating profits Barr cur rent mar kt cond ions we io not xpe curi cncrcs hivr

saterial impact oa year over year co nparatives fiseil 012 However volatility remains concern as cvdenccd bs the

signiticant strcngthcning of the dolla in September 2011 So ch nges in the value of local currencies in mlatror hc

lollar and to lesser extent the Euro will continue to impact reported sales and segrr ent protitahilit in thc futi and

wr cannot predict the direction or manrtudc of tuture changes

he ompany ger crally views its investments in foreign subs diaries with fun tional curri ney other than hc doll as

long tcrni \s result the ompany does not generally hedge these net investments Capital structuring te hniqucs mcci

manage th oct investment in foreign currencies as necessary Additionally the ompany attcmpts to limit its LA liii itt

onetary liabili ies ni countries with unstable currencies

lrom time Cc time the ornpanv may employ foreign currency hedging techniques in tig te
pc

tential Ic sses in carom or
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intercoi ipany horrowmgs xtemnal puichssc transactions md intercompany dir idcnds an rcrs ire fees with fbrein cu mm

ma alr Ii dgcd he prrrary urrencim to hico thc Companys fo igr aflilmt tic spored include tli ollat

li trio the Yen tI British pound the anadian dollar and thc yustralian doll mm

Th tipanv uses natural hedging techniqucs sri ms offsetting like foreign currency cash ws an forcign cur cn

derrra with durations of generally one year or less including forward exch ingc contracts crtain the foreign exct

contrac hare wn designated and are ace tunted for as tush Ii hedges

he ompa iy enters into foreign currency derrvatmre contracts to hcdec certain existing balancc she exposures Any wse on

these cc ntmacts would be fully offset by exchange gains the underlying exposures thus they are riot subject gnrlia it

market isk he change in fair value ol the foreign urienc ontiacts for fiscil 2011 and 2010 resulted in iconw 54 and

cxpensc of rcspcctively and was mc corded in Other financinf exoense net on the Con akd Staimmnr ni of Fi nm

antI oinpr ehcr sivc Income In addition the omnpany has entered into series foaw id curi cmicy cc rttr act to hr dpe the carl

flow uncertainty of for wasted inventory purchases due to sh mt term curm ney Out tua ion these trani aetoris are mcc It ed It

as cash flow hedges The Company had an unrealized prc ix gain on thesc forward currency intracts aecoun ed for cash

flow hedg included in Accumulated other contprehensrvc loss on the onsolicltted Balance Sheets of 533 an los SI

at Sd tc uhcr 30 II arid 2010 wpc tivelf ontract maturities for these hr dges extend into 1013

he on party has investments in Venezuelan affiliate Vene ucla is considered highly mnflr tim nary under jA\P iri anuar

2011 In addition the conversion of teal monetary assets to dollars is restricted by the \/encuclan overnm mit We
cor tinuc to nioriror this situation including the impact such rcstn idioms may have our future humn ss or matrons is

tim mc wc are unable to predict with any degree of certainty how recent and future develop ncnts in Venezuela will afleet our

\er ezueha operations if at all At September 30 2011 the Company had app oximnate ly 519 in net nione art assets in

mezuela Iue to the lcvel of uncertainty in Venezuela we cannot predict the cxchrnge rate that will ultmnmatl be ad

co ivert our local curre net monetary assc Cs to dollars nn the future

Our ibmirty to ffeet rely manage sales and profit levels in nezuela will he nnpaeted by scm ml factors Iciding the

omnpai ability to mitigate the effect of any potential future dcv mluatio further ictionis the Venezuel in wcinrn

cc rnonnic conditions in Venezuela such as inflation and consumer ending thc avail mbrhity of maw nimtc rmals utilities id

nergy and the future state of exchange controls Venezuela including the availtt
nlrty of dollars it the oflicial ci gn

cxch inge rate

urn March II 2011 an ear LhquaKc stnum onf the northeast coast ot Japan triggering tsunt or urther npot Ii Ii tOt

situation nuclea porver plants were damaged causing concerns about the possrhle mneltdownt of nude ir rca ors am tIme

of bar rnfyrl radroactmve materials Ihe tnagne events have severely disrupted the Japanese ceonor ty the third hiryc st in hc

omi my rs party to rem em foreign exchange hr dgmng contracts for the Japan sc Yen whmeh arc cc mote tom as Ii

lb hc gs These contracts hedge the rariabnhmty of cash flows resulting from chanmcs to foreign ctmrmcncf exchan

icE to he cash settlement of fcmtune mtventc ry pumchascs The contracts are cstahhmshcd arid ba ed on ecast Intuit

in err ory purchases At Septcnmnbcm 30 2011 the omnparry had pre tax loss of appmoxmnimately $7 in chided in Ac cu nulated

Cthm omnprehensime oss on the Balance Sheet related to hedging contracts in Japa Ihi loss relates to fbrcigmi el ante

contracts aecocnntecl for as cash flov hedges with maturities throukhornt fnscal 2012 As of ptem the 10 OII lit it tO
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maturities extending into fiscal 2013 are not material As noted previously we continue to monitor activities in Japan and to

date have not seen any material change in inventory purchasing to meet future consumer demand However reduction of

forecasted inventory purchases may result in portion of current or future foreign exchange contracts to no longer qualify as

cash flow hedges This may result in an acceleration of the recognition of the amounts included in Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income in the consolidated balance sheet At this time we consider these forecasted inventory purchases to be

probable

Commodity Price Exposure

The Company uses raw materials that are subject to price volatility At times hedging instruments are used by the Company to

reduce exposure to variability in cash flows associated with future purchases of zinc or other commodities The fair market

value of the Companys outstanding hedging instruments included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets was an unrealized pre-tax loss of $6.2 and pre-tax gain of $1.0 at September 30 2011 and 2010

respectively Over the next twelve months approximately $5.6 of the loss included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss

will be included in earnings Contract maturities for these hedges extend into fiscal year 2012 There were iS open contracts at

September 30 2011

Interest Rate Exposure

At September 30 2011 and 2010 the fair market value of the Companys fixed rate debt is estimated at $1969.3 and $2077.5

respectively using yields obtained from independent pricing sources for similar types of borrowing arrangements The fair

value of debt is greater than the carrying value of the Companys debt by $104.3 and $242.5 at September 30 2011 and 2010

respectively 10% decrease in interest rates on fixed-rate debt would have increased the fair market value by $48.1 and $18.9

at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

regarding the Companys debt

The Company has interest rate risk with respect to interest expense on variable rate debt At September 30 2011 the Company

had $503.5 of variable rate debt outstanding of which $300 is hedged via interest rate swap agreements as disclosed below As

result after giving effect to the hedged amount hypothetical one percentage point increase in variable interest rates would

have an annual unfavorable impact of approximately $2 on the Companys earnings before taxes and cash flows based upon

the current variable debt level at September 30 2011

During fiscal 2009 the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements with two major financial institutions that fixed the

variable benchmark component LIBOR of the Companys interest rate on $300 of the Companys variable rate debt for the

next year at 1.9% These hedging instruments are considered cash flow hedges for accounting purposes The Company had an

unrealized pre-tax loss on these interest rate swap agreements included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets of $4.7 and $7.8 at September 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

Stock Price Exposure

At September 30 2011 the Company held share option with major financial institution to mitigate the impact of changes in

certain of the Companys unfunded deferred compensation liabilities which are tied to the Companys common stock price

The fair market value of the share option was $3.4 and $2.9 as included in other current liabilities at September 30 2011 and

2010 respectively The change in fair value of the total share option for fiscal 2011 and 2010 resulted in expense of $0.6 and

income of $0.6 respectively and was recorded in SGA Period activity related to the share option is classified in the same

category in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as the period activity associated with the Companys deferred

compensation liability which was cash flow from operations

Seasonal Factors

The Companys Household Products segment results are typically impacted in the first quarter of the fiscal year by the

additional sales volume associated with the December holiday season particularly in North America First quarter sales

accounted for 30% 32% and 31% of total Household Products net sales in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively In

addition natural disasters such as hurricanes can create conditions that drive exceptional needs for portable power and spike

battery and lighting products sales

Customer orders for the Companys sun care products are highly seasonal which has historically resulted in higher sun care

sales in the second and third quarters of our fiscal year and lower sales in the first and fourth
quarters of our fiscal year As

result sales operating income working capital and cash flows for the Personal Care segment can vary significantly between

quarters of the same and different years due to the seasonality and timing of orders for sun care products

Other factors may also have an impact on the timing and amounts of sales operating income working capital and cash flows
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They include the timing of new product launches by competitors or by the Company the timing of advertising promotional

merchandising or other marketing activities by competitors or by the Company and the timing of retailer merchandising

decisions and actions

Environmental Matters

The operations of the Company like those of other companies are subject to various federal state foreign and local laws and

regulations intended to protect the public health and the environment These regulations relate primarily to worker safety air

and water quality underground fuel storage tanks and waste handling and disposal The Company has received notices from the

U.S Environmental Protection Agency state agencies and/or private parties seeking contribution that it has been identified as

potentially responsible party PRP under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and

may be required to share in the cost of cleanup with respect to eight federal Superfund sites It may also be required to share

in the cost of cleanup with respect to state-designated sites or other sites outside of the U.S

Exclusive of the impact of the acquisition of ASR accrued environmental costs at September 30 2011 were $7.1 of which

$1.6 is expected to be spent in fiscal 2012 This accrual is not measured on discounted basis In addition the Company has

accrued environmental costs included in the ASR opening balance sheet at the time of acquisition of approximately $13 of

which approximately $1 is expected to be spent in fiscal 2012 The ASR liability was measured at the time of the acquisition

using discount rate of 4%

It is difficult to quantif with certainty the cost of environmental matters particularly remediation and future capital

expenditures for environmental control equipment Nevertheless based on information currently available the Company
believes the possibility of material environmental costs in excess of the accrued amount is unlikely Total environmental capital

expenditures and operating expenses are not expected to have material effect on our total capital and operating expenditures

consolidated earnings or competitive position However current environmental spending estimates could be modified as

result of changes in our plans changes in legal requirements including any requirements related to global climate change or

other factors

Inflation

Management recognizes that inflationary pressures may have an adverse effect on the Company through higher material labor

and transportation costs asset replacement costs and related depreciation and other costs In general the Company had been

able to offset or minimize inflation effects through other cost reductions and productivity improvements through mid-2005

thus inflation was not significant factor to that point In recent years the cost of zinc nickel steel oil and other commodities

used in the Companys production and distribution have become more volatile Looking forward and based on current market

conditions and our zinc hedging program which has locked in the vast majority of our costs for zinc in fiscal 2012 we expect

meaningful increase in product costs in fiscal 2012 in comparison to fiscal 2011 driven by commodity costs and other

inflationary increases We cannot predict with any degree of certainty the impact of future fluctuations in the costs of

commodities and raw materials

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company identified the policies below as critical to its business operations and the understanding of its results of

operations The impact and any associated risks related to these policies on its business operations is discussed throughout

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition where such policies materially affect

the reported and expected financial results

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP in the U.S requires the Company to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses On an ongoing basis the Company evaluates its estimates including those related

to customer programs and incentives product returns inventories intangible assets and other long-lived assets income taxes

financing pensions and other postretirement benefits and contingencies Actual results could differ from those estimates This

listing is not intended to be comprehensive list of all of the Companys accounting policies

Revenue Recognition The Company derives revenues from the sale of its products Revenue is recognized when title

ownership and risk of loss pass to the customer When discounts are offered to customers for early payment an

estimate of the discounts is recorded as reduction of net sales in the same period as the sale Standard sales terms are

final and except for seasonal sun care returns which are discussed in detail in the next paragraph returns or

exchanges are not permitted unless special exception is made reserves are established and recorded in cases where

the right of return does exist for particular sale

Under certain circumstances we allow customers to return sun care products that have not been sold by the end of the
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sun care season which is normal practice in the sun care industry We record sales at the time the title ownership and

risk of loss pass to the customer The terms of these sales vary but in all instances the following conditions are met

the sales arrangement is evidenced by purchase orders submitted by customers the selling price is fixed or

determinable title to the product has transferred there is an obligation to pay at specified date without any

additional conditions or actions required by the Company and collection is reasonably assured Simultaneous with the

sale we reduce sales and cost of sales and reserve amounts on our consolidated balance sheet for anticipated returns

based upon an estimated return level in accordance with GAAP Customers are required to pay for the sun care

product purchased during the season under the required terms We generally receive returns of U.S sun care products

from September through January following the summer sun care season We estimate the level of sun care returns

using variety of inputs including historical experience consumption trends during the sun care season and inventory

positions at key retailers as the sun care season progresses We monitor shipment activity and inventory levels at key

retailers during the season in an effort to more accurately estimate potential returns This allows the Company to

manage shipment activity to our customers especially in the latter stages of the sun care season to reduce the

potential for returned product The level of returns may fluctuate from our estimates due to several factors including

weather conditions customer inventory levels and competitive activity Based on our fiscal 2011 sun care shipments

each percentage point change in our returns rate would have impacted our reported net sales by $3.0 and our reported

operating income by $2.7

The Company offers variety of programs primarily to its retail customers designed to promote sales of its products

Such programs require periodic payments and allowances based on estimated results of specific programs and are

recorded as reduction to net sales The Company accrues at the time of sale the estimated total payments and

allowances associated with each transaction Additionally the Company offers programs directly to consumers to

promote the sale of its products Promotions which reduce the ultimate consumer sale prices are recorded as

reduction of net sales at the time the promotional offer is made generally using estimated redemption and

participation levels Taxes we collect on behalf of governmental authorities which are generally included in the price

to the customer are also recorded as reduction of net sales

The Company continually assesses the adequacy of accruals for customer and consumer promotional program costs

not yet paid To the extent total program payments differ from estimates adjustments may be necessary Historically

these adjustments have not been material to annual results

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits The determination of the Companys obligation and expense for

pension and other postretirement benefits is dependent on certain assumptions developed by the Company and used by

actuaries in calculating such amounts Assumptions include among others the discount rate future salary increases

and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets Actual results that differ from assumptions made are

recognized on the balance sheet and subsequently amortized to earnings over future periods Significant differences in

actual experience or significant changes in macroeconomic conditions resulting in changes to assumptions may

materially affect pension and other postretirement obligations This has been evident in recent periods as market

discount rates utilized to determine the actuarial valuation of plan liabilities have moved significantly lower This has

resulted in higher actuarial pension liabilities and contributed to higher net periodic pension costs We expect this

trend to continue in fiscal 2012 based on market rates at October 2011 which is the valuation date for the

Companys pension plans In determining the discount rate the Company generally uses the yield on high-quality

bonds that coincide with the cash flows of its plans estimated payouts For the U.S plans which represent the

Companys most significant obligations we consider the Mercer yield curves in determining the discount rates

Of the assumptions listed above changes in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and changes in the

discount rate used in developing plan obligations will likely have the most significant impact on the Companys

annual earnings prospectively Based on plan assets at September 30 2011 one percentage point decrease or

increase in actual asset returns would decrease or increase the Companys pre-tax pension expense by approximately

$8 In addition it may increase and accelerate the rate of required pension contributions in the future Uncertainty

related to economic markets and the availability of credit may produce changes in the yields on corporate bonds rated

as high-quality As result discount rates based on high-quality corporate bonds may increase or decrease leading to

lower or higher respectively pension obligations one percentage point decrease in the discount rate would increase

obligations by approximately $110.7 at September 30 2011

As allowed under GAAP the Companys U.S qualified pension plan uses Market Related Value which recognizes

market appreciation or depreciation in the portfolio over five years so it reduces the short-term impact of market

fluctuations

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets The Company periodically evaluates its long-lived assets including goodwill and
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intangible assets for potential impairment indicators Judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators

including lower than expected cash flows from acquired businesses are based on legal factors market conditions and

operational performance Future events could cause the Company to conclude that impairment indicators exist The

Company estimates fair value using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows This requires management to

make assumptions regarding future income working capital and discount rates which would affect the impairment

calculation See the discussion on Acquisitions included later in this section for further information

Income Taxes Our annual tax rate is determined based on our income statutory tax rates and the tax impacts of items

treated differently for tax purposes than for financial reporting purposes Tax law requires certain items be included in

the tax return at different times than the items are reflected in the financial statements Some of these differences are

permanent such as expenses that are not deductible in our tax return and some differences are temporary reversing

over time such as depreciation expense These temporary differences create deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets generally represent the tax effect of items that can be used as tax deduction or credit in future

years for which we have already recorded the tax benefit in our income statement Deferred tax liabilities generally

represent tax expense recognized in our financial statements for which payment has been deferred the tax effect of

expenditures for which deduction has already been taken in our tax return but has not yet been recognized in our

financial statements or assets recorded at fair value in business combinations for which there was no corresponding tax

basis adjustment

We regularly repatriate portion of current year earnings from select non U.S subsidiaries Generally these non-U.S

subsidiaries are in tax jurisdictions with effective tax rates that do not result in materially higher U.S tax provisions

related to the repatriated earnings No provision is made for additional taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign

affiliates that are intended and planned to be indefinitely invested in the affiliate We intend to and have plans to

reinvest these earnings indefinitely in our foreign subsidiaries to fund local operations fund pension and other post

retirement obligations and fund capital projects

The Company estimates income taxes and the income tax rate in each jurisdiction that it operates This involves

estimating taxable earnings specific taxable and deductible items the likelihood of generating sufficient future taxable

income to utilize deferred tax assets the portion of the income of foreign subsidiaries that is expected to be remitted to

the U.S and be taxable and possible exposures related to future tax audits Deferred tax assets are evaluated on

subsidiary by subsidiary basis to ensure that the asset will be realized Valuation allowances are established when the

realization is not deemed to be more likely than not Future performance is monitored and when objectively

measurable operating trends change adjustments are made to the valuation allowances accordingly To the extent the

estimates described above change adjustments to income taxes are made in the period in which the estimate is

changed

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions with complex tax and regulatory environments which are subject to

differing interpretations by the taxpayer and the taxing authorities At times we may take positions that management

believes are supportable but are potentially subject to successful challenges by the appropriate taxing authority The

Company evaluates its tax positions and establishes liabilities in accordance with guidance governing accounting for

uncertainty in income taxes The Company reviews these tax uncertainties in light of the changing facts and

circumstances such as the progress of tax audits and adjusts them accordingly

Acquisitions The Company uses the purchase method which requires the allocation of the cost of an acquired

business to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition

The excess value of the cost of an acquired business over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is

recognized as goodwill The valuation of the acquired assets and liabilities will impact the determination of future

operating results The Company uses variety of information sources to determine the value of acquired assets and

liabilities including third-party appraisers for the values and lives of property identifiable intangibles and inventories

actuaries for defined benefit retirement plans and legal counsel or other experts to assess the obligations associated

with legal environmental or other claims

Significant judgment is required in estimating the fair value of intangible assets and in assigning their respective

useful lives The fair value estimates are based on historical available information and on future expectations and

assumptions deemed reasonable by management but are inherently uncertain Determining the useful life of an

intangible asset also requires judgment Certain brand intangibles are expected to have indefinite lives based on their

history and our plans to continue to support and build the acquired brands Other intangible assets are expected to have

determinable useful lives Our assessment of intangible assets that have an indefinite life and those that have

determinable life is based on number of factors including the competitive environment market share brand history
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underlying product life cycles operating plans and the macroeconomic environment Our estimates of the useful lives

of determinable-lived intangible assets are primarily based on the same factors The costs of determinable-lived

intangible assets are amortized to expense over the estimated useful life The value of indefinite-lived intangible assets

and residual goodwill is not amortized but is tested at least annually for impairment

However future changes in the judgments assumptions and estimates that are used in our impairment testing

including discount and tax rates or future cash flow projections could result in significantly different estimates of the

fair values in the future reduction in the estimated fair values could result in impairment charges that could

materially affect our financial statements in any given year The recorded value of goodwill and intangible assets from

recently acquired businesses are derived from more recent business operating plans and macroeconomic

environmental conditions and therefore are more susceptible to an adverse change that could require an impairment

charge

During fiscal 2011 we consolidated the Playtex and Wet Shave strategic business units which were both part of our

Personal Care reporting segment to form single business unit During our annual impairment testing in fiscal 2011

we tested goodwill for impairment for both Wet Shave and Playtex individually and in the aggregate
in addition to

testing the goodwill associated with the Energizer reporting unit in our Household Products segment There were no

indications of impairment of goodwill noted during this testing Going forward we will test goodwill for impairment

for two reporting units the combined Personal Care reporting unit and the Energizer reporting unit

In addition we completed impairment testing on indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill which are

trademarks/brand names used in our various businesses No impairment was indicated as result of this testing

However the recorded values of such intangible assets from more recent acquisitions such as the Playtex acquisition

are often more susceptible to an impairment risk if operating results or macroeconomic conditions deteriorate

Playtex indefinite-lived intangible assets exclusive of goodwill represent more than 75% of total indefinite-lived

intangible assets exclusive of goodwill We utilized discounted cash flow model using an excess earnings valuation

technique to test the Playtex trademarks for impairment Key assumptions included discount rate of 9% and

terminal growth rate of 3% While no impairment was indicated during this testing the indicated fair value for two

trademarks Playtex and Wet Ones were relatively close to the carrying value at 114% of the carrying value

approximately $650 for the Playtex trademark and 107% of the carrying value approximately $200 for the Wet

Ones trademark

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See discussion in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to recently issued accounting standards

Forward-Looking Statements

This document contains both historical and forward-looking statements Forward-looking statements are not based on historical

facts but instead reflect our expectations estimates or projections concerning future results or events including without

limitation statements regarding future earnings investment or spending initiatives cost savings related to our restructuring

project the impact of certain price increases anticipated advertising and promotional spending the estimated impact of foreign

currency movements raw material and commodity costs category value and future volume sales and growth in some of our

businesses These statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking words or phrases such as believe

expect anticipate may could intend belief estimate plan likely will should or other similarwords

or phrases These statements are not guarantees of performance and are inherently subject to known and unknown risks

uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict and could cause our actual results performance or achievements to

differ materially from those expressed in or indicated by those statements We cannot assure you that any of our expectations

estimates or projections will be achieved

The forward-looking statements included in this document are only made as of the date of this document and we disclaim any

obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent events or circumstances Numerous factors

could cause our actual results and events to differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements

including without limitation

Energizers ability to improve operations and realize cost savings

Energizers ability to timely implement strategic initiatives in manner that will positively impact our financial condition

and results of operation
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The impact of strategic initiatives on Energizers relationships with its employees its major customers and vendors

The impact of raw material and other commodity costs

The impact of foreign currency exchange rates and offsetting hedges on Energizers profitability for the year with any

degree of certainty

The success of new products and the ability to continually develop new products

Energizers ability to predict consumption trends with respect to the overall battery category and Energizers other

businesses

Energizers ability to continue planned advertising and other promotional spending may be impacted by lower than

anticipated cash flows or by alternative investment opportunities

Energizers effective tax rate for the year could be impacted by legislative or regulatory changes by federal state and local

and foreign taxing authorities as well as by the profitability or losses of Energizers various subsidiary operations in both

high-tax and low-tax countries and

Prolonged recessionary conditions in key global markets where Energizer competes could result in significantly greater

local currency movements and correspondingly greater negative impact on Energizer than what can be anticipated from the

current spot rates

In addition other risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we consider immaterial could affect the accuracy of

any such forward-looking statements The list of factors above is illustrative but by no means exhaustive The risk factors set

forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30 2011 in the section entitled Risk Factors could

affect future results causing our results to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements

All forward-looking statements should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent uncertainty Additional risks and

uncertainties include those detailed from time to time in Energizers publicly filed documents
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Responsibility for Financial Statements

The preparation and integrity of the financial statements of Fnergiier Holdings Inc he ompany are the responsibility Is

management hese statements have been prepared in nformancc with generally ac epted accountIng principles in the nited

States of America and in the opinion of management fairly present the Companys financial
position results of opeia ms and

cash flows

The Company maintains accounting and internal nntrnl systems hich it believes ara adequate to pros ide rasonable

assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that the financial records arc

reliab for
preparing financial statements ftc selection and training of qualified personnel the establishment and

communication of accounting and administrative policies and piocedures and an extensive program of internal udits rre

important elements of these control systems

he report of PricewateihouseC oopeis LLP an independent registered public accounting firm on their audits of the

ace mipanying financial statements app mrs herein This report states that the audits eie made in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boaid United States Ihese standards include study and evaluation

of internal control or the purpose of csiablishmg basis foi reliance thereon relative to the scope of their audits of the financial

statements

The Board of Iimeetors thiough its Audit Committee consisting solely of non management direCors meets periodic s11y with

management internal sudit and the independent auditors to dis uss audit and financial reporting matters To assure

independence Pricewaten houseCoopen has dii ect aec ess to the Audit Committee

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control over financial ri porting The

Companys inteinal control ovei financial reporting is process designed to pros ide riasonable assurance regarding the

id ability of financial reporting and the preparation of finmncial statements in accordance with geneially accepted acer unt ng
principles for cxteraal purposes The Company internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that pertain the maintenance ot records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the oinpany in provide reasonable assurance that transactions are iecorded as necessa to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance mth generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the ompany arc being made only in accordance with authorizations management and directors of the

Company and iiipros ide reasonable assurance regarding pmeventmon or timely detection of unauthomized acquisTion use or

disposition of the ompanys asscis tha could have material cfTct on the financial atatements Internal control over fina rcial

reporting because of its inherent limitations may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of

effe tiveness to future periods are subje to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditm is or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteiiorate Mnnagernent conducted an assessment of the

effi ctivene of the Company internal control over financial reporting based on the narnework set forth in Internal nfr

lrtegrated an iru iucd by the uinnmttcc of Spunsotimig Organnizatmoims of the readway Comm ssmon Basea tue

Company assessmnment management has concluded that internal control over financial reporting as of September30 2011 snas

effective the Companys internal contral over tinanemal reporting as of September 30 2011 has been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their repoit that appears heremm
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

to the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Eneigizer Holdings Inc

In our opimon the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of carnins and

comprehensive income cash flows and iareholders equity present fairly in all matei ml respects
the financial position of

bnergiier Holdings Inc and its subsidiaries at Sep ember 30 2011 and 0l0 and the results of their operations and their cash

flows for each of the three years
in the period ended September 30 2011 in conformity with accounting pimciples generally

accepted in the United States of America Also our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects Tective

internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2011 based on criteria established in Internal ontrol Integratc

rarne oik issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway ommissiori COSO Ihe Companys

management is responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and

for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management

Report on Internal Control ove inancial Reporting Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements am

on the Companys internal control over nancial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducred our audits in

accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that plan and perform the audits to obtain reusonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal

misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits

of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures iii the financial

statements assessing the accounting prirciples used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the desi ln

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed iisk Our audits also included performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary ii the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exteinal purposes
in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles company internal control ovei financial repoiting includes those policies and procedures

thati pertain to the maintenance ofrecrds that in measonahie detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company ii pi
ovide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaiy to

permit preparatiOIi
of financial statemen in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company ama being made only in accordance with authoi izations of management and directors of the

company and ni provide reasonable assurance regarding pievention or timely detection of unauthoriied acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of eflectiveness to future periods are subject to the iLk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures niay deterioi ate

St Louis Missouri
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ENERd1LR HO DINGS INC

CONSOI 1DAED EIALAN 13 SHEIsIS

Dollais in mill ions except par values
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Dollars in millions hare in thousands

Balance at heginnin 01 year

ft fr0ttlITyfA1tS

Lr ding balance

Ad44104 paid uf%iplt

Balance at heginnin of year

NIN otrd8 tom eqf3iy ofildt

Aclivit undei stock plan

Retamed ealnings

it b4onnl QfYP$

Net eanuns

Atfatr dR0piau1 ________

nding balance

60u5104 8MUIY1

Balance at hecinning of year

rN4RRy atk ptaf4tt

Activity under stock plans

istidw ba1aton

ki uniul ited other eoniprehensise loss/income

4Bu8BVC $$t1B afaithI6flL

Balance at beginning ol
ycal

43fI dItH4tlpy ta$oB

boding balance

Pfpots if6tilbfy

Balan at begmnin of year

nding balance net of tax of 8993 2011

873.7 1010 on $59 sn2OO

Defcrr loss on hedging activity

Ba0tieG bogntAts tsf yoag

fetis its

Iat1in baWsee net oftnf BfW31

005 itt nil in 019

alit ttytttuulautd nthes eampsthcrnetke loin

tot il shai holdri equit
_____________

he ihos nanci il stati ments should be mad in conjunctioi with the Notes in onsolidat Financial Statements

2011 2010

DOLL ARS SHARES

2009 2011 2010

1.1 1.1 10 108009 108009 97084

LI II 1.1 108009 108009 10819

1569.5 558.3 10349

24.1 142 10.3

261.2 4030 2978

26130 2353.9 1963.2

1667.6 17024 17193 Q7653 38487 38901

17.9 34.8 169 469 834 114

20.8 640 513

12.1 20.8 640

627 l15 366__

11.7 117 3.1--m-
3.7 154

igg7

21013 2099.6 1762.3
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Basis of Presentation and Use of Isstimates

fin iei ii stateinnts include th accounts of the oi ipany and its majority owned suhsidiaxies \ll siniticant
oh pony tronsaction ar eliminated he ompony has no material equity method or ariable ii terest

repa.at of the financial stateme its in nforrmty ith generally accepted accounting principles the .S iA \i
quircs nergiact Be ldmgs inc and its subsidiaries the ompany to make estimatos and assumptions that afT ted

amounts of asse and habil tics sd sure of contmgent assets and liabilities and the reported nounts of rc enues an

cxpei On an ongoing basis th ompany cialuates ifs est mates including those related to ustomrr piograrns an
inee lives pie ict returns bad debts inventories intangible nd other long lived assets income taxes financing pensions at

oil ci pos retirement be netits contmfc ieies and acqusitions cOal results could dii ci from those estimates

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cr nips ty significant accounting policies which conform to GAAP and are applied oi consisieni II

se tied except as indicated are described below

reign Currency Iranslation Financial statements ol foreign operations where the local unency is the tui ctional cuiien

sri late ci ui1 md of pci exchange rates for assets an liabihties and average exchango tales durir the it In
re ilts of oeiations Related trinslation adjustments arc repoited as component within accumulated other oni it iensi

inc oine in the shareholders equity section of the onsolidated Balance Sheets

Eu fo eigr operations that are eonsideied highly inflatu
nary translation practices differ in that mae itor es properties

aeeuinu at pieciatioii and deprecia ion expense are translated at historical rates of exch ngc and transl tioi adjustnici is

ii ii net ry iss ts and liabilities ire in luded ui earnmgs Ga us and losses from foreign crier cy transactions arc ener
inc lure tin earnings

Lffeetiec January 2011 the financial stitements or our \en zuela subsidiary are consolidated cinder the tales wveri in th

Iran lation of fin incial information in highly inflationary economy based on the use of the blended Natio ial onsen erP cc

hdrx in Ven zaela Under GA an economy is considered highly inflationary if the cumulative iriflatli rate foi th cc yea

pe od ieets ci cx reds 100 pereei subsidiary is considered to be in highly inflationary cc onomy the hnanei il

tat ncnts of the subsidiaiy must be ie measured into our reporting currency US dollar and future exchange gains ird lossc

twin the measurement of rnonetai assets and iabilities are iefleeted in current earnings rather than
rxcluiaely iii

equ tv section of the balance sheet until such time as the conomy is no longer considered highly inflationary fuithrr

imif tuition rega dii the Company Venezuela affiliate see Note of the Notes to onsolidatcd Fin metal taten cuts

inane to 1nstruments and Derivative Seeurities he oinpany uses financial instruments from time to time in the

ma agcinent of foieign cuireney iterest rate and other risks that are inherent to its bcsmeui opemations Such insttumei

not Ii II oi isc ed foi trading purpose

ho cign cad ige instruments including currency foards are used primarily reduce transaction apo Cs 10

lesser extent to manage other translation
exposures instruments used are selectee based on their risk reduction atti ites

ai the related market conditions Ihe Company has designate certain foreign currency contracts as rash ffi hcd ses fbi

aeeounti ig purpo es as of September 31 011

11 omnanv also Ids IF rivative ti.strunwmt ontraem 10 mitidatc ttmse rUk of Jet ned ompeosation hWtic

11 npa us raw materials that are ibje to price latility he Company uses hedging instnrmer ts as it desim it

ducc exposure to van ibihty in cash flows associated with fut ire purchases of imn other ommodities lie unite in ft

desiqna ed as easl flon hedges foi ee tinting purpose at September 30 2011

ie on pony has in1cnest rate risk with respect to inteiesr
expense on variable rate debt During fiscal 00 the anpini

ci tered into interen rate swap agreements which have been designated as cash flow hedges with two ii ajor financial

ii ulior that fixed the irmable hencE mark component IBOR of the Companys interest rate on $300 of the oi
ip iiy

vai icE Ic rate bt through December 2012
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1MOTFS TO CONSOLIDATKI FINA1N IA SAfEMEN ITS

See further discussion in Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

cash Lquivalents icr purposes
of the Consolidated Statei ents of ash Flows cash equisalents are all considered to he

highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased

Accounts Receivable Valuation Accounts receivable are stated at their net realizable value lhe allowance for doubtful

accounts reflects the Companys best estimate of probable losses inherent in the receivables portfolio determined on the basis

of historical experience specific allowan es br know troubled accounts and other currently available information Bad debt

expense
is included in Selling general and administrative expense SCA in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Inventories lnventoiies are alued at the lower of cost or market with cost generally being determined using average cost or

the firsCin first out iWO method

As part of the American Safety Razoi ASR acquisition in fiscal 2011 and the shave preparation acquisition in fiscal 2009 the

Company recorded an increase in the fair value ofS7.0 and $3 respectively to bring the carrying value of the inventory

purchased to an amount which approxim ited the estimated sell nig price
of the fimshed goods on hand at the acquisition

closir

date less the sum of costs of disposal and ieasonable profit allowance for the selling eflhrt of the acquiring entity As

the inventory was sold during the first and second quarter of fiscal 2011 as it relates to the ASR acquisition md during the

fourth quartei as it ielites to the shave preparation acquisition the adjustments were charged to cost of pr ducts sold in the

respective periods

Capitalized Software costs ipitalized software costs arc included in other assets hese costs are amortized using the

straight line method over periods of rela ed benefit ranging from three to seven years Lxpenditures related to capitalized

software are included in the Capital expcnditures caption in the Consolidated Statements of ash Flows \mortization expense

was $5 55.8 and $5 in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 respectimely

Property Plant and quipment net Property plant and equipment is stated at historical costs Property plant and equipme rt

acquired as part of business combination is recorded at fair value Expenditures
for new facilities and expenditures

that

substantially increase the useful life of property including interest during construction are capitalized
and reported in the

Capital expenditures caption in the Consolidated Statements of ash Flows Maintenance repairs and minor renewals are

expensed as incuried When property is etired or othemise disposed of the related cost and accumulated depreciation aic

removed from the accounts and cams oi losses on the disposition are reflected in earnings Depicciation is generally provided

on the straightAine basis by charges to costs or expenses at rates based on estimated useful lives lstinrated useful lives iange

from two to 25 years for machinery and equipment and three to 30 years
for buildings and building improvement

Depreciation expense was $154 5119 and $111.0 in fiscal 2011 2010 arid 2009 respectively

istimated useful live ame pen drcally reviewed and whem appropriate changes are made prospectively
When certain events

or changes in opeiating conditions occur asset lives may he adjusted arid an impairment assessment may be performed on the

recoverability of the carrying amounts

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Ooodwill and mndcfnntc lived mmitarigmbles are not amortized but are aluated annually

for impairment as part of the Companys annual business planning cycle in the fourth quarter or when rndicatoi of potential

impairment are present
he fair value of each rep wting unit is estimated using valuation models that incorporate assumptions

and projections of expected future cash flows and operating plans Intangible assets with finite limes and remaining weighted

average life of approximately thirteen years are amortized on ctraighCline basis over expected limes of veams to 20 years

Sirrh intangibles are also evaluated for impairment mneludind ongoing monitoring of potential impairment indicators

Impairment of Long ived Assets Tb Company reviews long lived assets other than goodwill and other intangible assets

for impairment when events or changes in business cii cumstances indicate that the remaining useful life may wai rant revision

or that the carrying imount of the long ived asset may not he fully mecoxerible The Company performs undiseocrnted cash

flow analysis to determine if impairment exists 11 impairment is determined to exist any related mnrpairment loss is calculatcd

based on fair value Impairment losses on assets to be disposed of if any are based on the estimatcd proceeds to he received

less cost of disposal

Revenue Recognition The Companys revenue is from the sale of its pmoduets Revenue is recognized when title ownership

and risk of loss pass to the customer scounts are offemed to customems for early payment and an estimate of the discounts

recorded as reduction of net sales in tire same period as the sale Our standard sales rernrs aic final arid mcmi mis 01 cxliangc
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inc iot pe mitte in less special exception is made ri servcs are established and rm orded in cases where the right of tu ii

In cx ft pxrtit ulai sale

ride cci tui neiimstanees we allow customers to return un care piodurts that have heei sold by the end the sun care

isor hich is nt nal practice ir tht sun care indus We ecord sales at the time the title ownt iship md risk los as to

di eu om ihe loins oluiese sales vary but in all instances the following conditions are met the sales arianeen cit is

es need by purchase orders submitted by customers the selling price is fixed detennrnahle title to the product ha
Irinslerred flier is an obligition to pay at specified late without any additional conditions oi actro required by thc

onpar nd collcetahility is reasonably assuied Snnultneously with the sale we reduce saks and cost of sik ant servt

sir ounts on our it nsohdsted balance sheet for snircipate returns based upon an estimated etui ii levcl in accordance si ith

iA stt in is are required to pay for the sun care product purchased during the season under the required term le
geneial reecis retuins of U.S sun tire products from Septernher through January toll ni

rig
the summer sun ire in We

rrnatc tF kvt of sun care returns using variety of inputs including historical cx erren consumption trends di np
un tare se ison and inventory positions at key retailers as the sun care season progresses We monit shrpinc nE activity and

rrtoi Ics Is at ke retailers during the season in an effort to identify potential returns isiu rh thc om an to

elprer at tis it to uslori cecislly in the litter
sragt of die sun ire season to duce the pots ntr it ft

etui tied piod ret

hr ompa ry 4f is sanely of
progei os such as constinier coupons and rmilar consunici rebate pr gianis pirmaril to its

ail u4ome designed to promote sales of its products Such programs requr periodic payrirents and allowaris es based en
es rmated iesi It of ccii

progrirns and are iecorded as reduction to net sales Ii ompany terries at the time of

hi strmat olal payments and allowances associated with each transaction Additionally the ornpa iv fTcrs programs
err rctly to eon umers to promote the se Ic of its products Promotrons hich reduce the ultimat consumer sale prices art

cc rdcd as reduction of net sales at se time ths promotional oIler is made generally using est mated redemption srid

rtierpati levi ixes we collect on behalf of overnniental authorities whi are genei ally included iii ftc pric Ii he

cu ncr re also recorded as ieduct on net sales flu ompany rontiriuallv csse he alqvas afa rucl

cu tonier and consumer promotional proerarn costs not yet paid 14 the tent total program pay rnents stills Iron estrir it

id st nnts may he necessary nitally these adjustments have not been material

ldverti ing and Promotion costs he Company advertises arid promotes its products throtrgh sational aird rig onal ri edia

arid expenses such act vines in the year incurred

lair kalues 0/frau maallnstrumeuts ertain financial instruments arc required to be recorded at fair value hangs in

ase rrrptron or estimation methods could aflct the fair value estimates however we do not helevc any such changes would
tave mstenral irsipact on our financial condition results of operations ir cash flows Other financial instru rents rnehudi ig

ca arid cash equivalents and shod term borrowings including notes payable arc mci rded at cost which
apoioxirn itc fir

due fair values of hong term debt and financial instrumne its are disclosed in Note 15 of the Notes to nisolidited

rrians rah tateinents

Rclassijieaiwns ertarri rechassificat ons have been made to the prior year financial staten rents to cot tbrm thrc iiir

nest oration

RentIv Issued Accounting Pronouncements Other than as desc mbed below no new accounting pronouns uncut isse cd or
efictrve drrnin the fiscal year has had or is expected to have material impact on the conss lndatcd financial staterne

In vi sy 12 011 the irnancial Accounting Standards Board IASB issued rims acsountnmig standard update ASt an
ne lea uremncnrs lie new guidance results in consistcnt definition of fair vat us antI irnrnon requniemnents ion

in it erne it ofr rid disclosure about famn value between iAAP and IF RS Ihesc dnscl isurs will lie applied on

pnt pcstnve basis begmnning on January 201

Ui June IC 2011 the lASH issued new ASU to the Presentation of ompm ehrensmve Erie onn lEe new gurdans ehnnniated

II cur remit opti in to repo4 other compr hensive income and ts components in the statement of eh rigs in equity hi ha ml
cites on he ompar as we have hi torrcally reported comp ehensmve income on thc St tements of irnrr an

onpmcb erisnvc Income
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TA MFNTS

1lLaoillionsexLr taeat

On September 15 201 the FASB issued new ASU to Testing Goodwill for impairment new guidance provides an

option to peiform qualitative assessment to deteimine uhethei further impanment testmg is necessary Ihis guidance will

he applied on prospective
basis beginning on January 12012

American Safety Raior acquisition

On November 23 2010 we cot ipleted th acquisition of ASR as we acquired substantially all of the assets fASR including

the assets of its US subsidiaries and the stock of its non subsidiaries and assumed substantially all of the liabilities of

ASR and its subsidiaries for cash urchase price of $301 Company financed tins transaction uith available cish

approximately $129 and bmroings from our existing ieccivable securitization program ASR Is part of our Personal are

Segment ASR provides an important stiategic fit and opportunity foi the Personal Care business as it competes in the value

segment of the wet shave category
the Companys legacy Wet Shave product line focuses on branded uet shave products

ASR founded in 875 is leading global manufac urer of private label/value wet shaving razors and blades and industrial an

specialty blades

As of September 30 2011 the puiehase price allocation fot the SR acquisition is complete We have ileterinined the lir

values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed for pumoses of allocating the puichase price in aecoidaimcc witi accounting

guidance for business combinations For puioses of the allocation the Company has estimated Ian value adjustment for

invento based on the estimatcd selling price of the finished goods acquired at the closing date less the sum ofa costs of

disposal and reasonable profit allowance for the selling effort of the acquiring entity The fair value adjustment the

acquired eq npment was established usin cost and market approach ftc fair values ol the identifiable intangible assets were

estimated using vamious valuation methods including discounted cash flows using both an income and cost appioach In

accordance with fair value measurement guidance the ompany detennined that the nonhnancial assets and liabilities

summarized belou arc derived froni significant unobservable inputs Level inputs

i\t Sepmhei ti1 ilie allocation of the purchase price is as fbllows

Cub
33

made receivables net

ldcntifiahle nitangible assets
122.3

Other assets
51

Proorty pfant
und tmspMut ht

Accounts payable and other liabilities
101

tnom tues pyab1C
60

Pension/Other Postretireinent Benefits
12

Nt uaet sCquim4

purchased identifiable intangible assets are as follows

otal Fstimated Life

ustmu kttionghips
944 20 yurs

echnology and patents
20 years

lradpuernes Branda yur

otal
1223

for tax purposes ioodw ill will be amoitized ovei 15 years

Piofoima rev enur an operating
results for ASR are not included as they are not considered material to the Consolidated

Financial Statements
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sh4je up ceo tggfiata

Household Products
Restructuring

The inpany ntinually rcviews its Personal are and llot si hold Pioducts husnu ss models to identi1 potethial

improv ments and ost savm On Novcr iber 2010 whicl wa the first quartel of fisc 201 th Boai of Duecti the
ard au horized Household Prodr cts program designed to iecelerate investment in both geog aphic and product growth

opportumfies streamline ow orldwidc manufactur
in6 peretions and unpios the The icy of our admuiistra ive pcrations

Board authoi ized broad restructuring plan and dele ated authoi ity to management to determine the final plan with

IC5f eel to th initiatives

On Marc 2011 the mpany deLerinined that as part of it previously announced stiucturin initiative it would lose its

arhon zinc hattciy manufacturing facility in ebu hilippine and its alkaline battery manufacturing facility in haux Dr

Fonds Switzerland caibon inc and alkalinc tie rim previously supplied the ebu and far ilitie arc ion

pie duc in our inaining battery manufactuiin lacilitics

At Septciiibcr 30 2011 the ompany recorded pre tax charges Rn the Tlouseh fid roduets restruc wing of 90 which werc

primarily the result the announced losine of the ehu and facilities hse charges mi luded sevcranee and tc snination

related costs of $41 accelerated depicciation on property plant and cqwpment of 816 pcnsion settlement costs of $6 an
other related xit costs of SI Fhese costs are include as sepai rtc line item on he onsolidated Statements of irning
and Cr mprehensivc Income

The following table ummarizes thc ousehold Products rctrueturin activitics in fiscal 011 and the remaining crud
balance at pternber 30 2011

barges to Other ndiug
Fiscal 2011 Inconie IA ash NonA ash Balance

Asset wide downs 16 16
Seicranec leimination Relatcd Costs 41 23 84

Pension Settlement Cost 6.1

Othei Related Lxit Costs IA

bLat
_____ 57 16

The nauy estnrates thit total pee charge of appros mately $80 to 88 will be ineu ied as result of the Ito isehold

Product restructuring initiative inclusive of the $79 ieeoided as of September 30 2011 lhese charges arc expected to

ofTset by gsin on the complete Noi embei 2011 sale of the formei prc pci ty to third party We anticipute $38 to $38 of

an rual pre tax swings horn the re structuring by the end of fiscal of which $11 were realize 3m fi cal 2011

eneiuela

or fiscal 2011 the ompany rece rdr pre tax expense of 81 id ited to the change in the carrying value the net mone Wry
assets of its Venezuelan affiliate undei highls inflationary ice ountn This chaige as include in othei linancln$ expense net

on the olidated Statements off ar rings and oinprehensive Ineorrie

At Decembei 31 2009 is hich is the od of our first fiscal qu irte ef 010 the Conip niy de ew med that the cxc ange rate

waili in the parallel rate inaiket was the appr pliate rated use for the translation oO ur Venezuela affiliates financial

it itenient tIe purpose of consolidation based on the facts arid cireurn tuners of our bus iess including the fact that st tI

time the puiallel rate or irket was the then current nieth used to ettle dollar invoice for newly imported product \s

result the Company recorded pie tax loss net of the impact of certain settlements and adjuitnients piiinar ly as iesulf of

devaluing its dollam based mnte rcomnpan payable of appiovirnately $18 in fiscal 010 which was ncluded in other

financing expeir on the Consolid steel Statements of airiine end 0011 rehensi Income he pre tax loss reflects the

highw local curer ricy expected lobe qumred settle this dollar based obligation due the use of the parallel niaik rate

at that time which wa suhstsntially unfavorable to the th mi official exchange rate his dollar intercompany payible was

rn hl atcw of cur Vene ucla hl3lmate to the ri af rhatas fr oss assuca tF lw mopo tuly goods mx resale
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rsin million dj ceiitiilfe rita

in Venezuela

Ftfectisc January 2010 and continuing through fiscal 2011 the financial statements for our Venezuela subsidiary aie

conolidated under the rules governing the tianslation of financial information in highly inflationary economy based on the

use of the blended National Consumer Price Index in Venezuela Under jAAP an economy is considered highly inflationary if

the cumulitise inflation rate for three year period meets or exceeds 100 percent If subsidiary is considered to be in highly

inflationaiy economy the financial statements of the subsidiary must be re measured into our repoitmg cuirency dollafi

and futuie exchange guns and losses from the re measuiement of monetary assets and liabilities aic reflected in curient

irnings
rather than exclusively in the equity section of the balance sheet until such time as the economy is no longer

considered highly inflationary At September 30 2011 the US dollar value of rnonetaiy assets net of monetaly liabilities

which ss ould be subject to an eai nings impact from translation rate movements for our Venezuela affiliate under highly

inflationaiy accounting was approximately $19

tn Januiry 2010 the Venezuelan government announced its intention to devalue the Bohvar luertc relative to the

doll ir he re iscd official exchange rate for imported goods considered non-essential moved to an exchange rate of 10 to

doliar which was mice the previous official rate prior to the devaluation noted above the Company detmmuied

to this official devaluation that exchangc rates available in the then existing parallel rate market ere the appropriate rate to

use br the translation of our Venezuela affiliates financixl statements so this official desaluation action did not result in my

urther devalrvrtion charges

lii May 2010 the Venezuela government introduced additional exchange controls over securities transactions in ih pres iouslm

mcntioned parallel rate market It established the Central Bank of Venezuela as the only legal intermediary through which

paiallel rate market transactions can be executed and established government control oser the parallel exchange rate which was

et at approximately 60 to US dollar at September 30 2011 At the same time it significantly reduced the notional amount

of transactions that run through this Central Bank controlled parallel rate market mechanism

Since Ibreign exchange is no longer available in the historical parallel rate market the ompany is now using the exchange ratc

uvailable in the entral Bank-controlled parallel iate market as the translation rate for our Venezuela affiliates financial

staicnic nts for the purposes
of consolidation rathei than the official exchange rate as this is the rate at hich the Company is

obtaining dollars for the settlement invoices on new imports Due to the level of uncertainty in Venezuela wc cannot

piech the exchanhe iate that will ultnnately be used to convert our local currency monetary assets to US dollars in the future

result furthei charges reflecting less favorable exchange rate outcome are possible

Our ability to effectisely manage sales and profit levels in Venezuela will be impacted by several hictors including the

Comp nyh ability to mitigate the effect of any potential future devaluation further actions of the Venezuelan gc\emninent

economic ronditions in Venezuela such as inflation and consumer spending the availability of raw materials util ties arid

mneigy intl the futume state of exchange controls in Venezuela including the availability of U.S dollars at the otlicial threigu

xchange iatc or the entral Bank controlled pamallel rate

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

oodw ill ud intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite life are not amoitizecl but reviewed annuall\ for unpairinent of

value or when indicators of potential irupairment are present The Company monitors changing business conditions which

may indicate that the remaining useful life of goodwill and other intangible assets may warrant revision or carryine amounts

nmav icquime adjustment As part of our business planning cycle we performed oui annual impairment test in the fourth quarter

of fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 During seal 2011 we consolidated the Playtex and Wet Shave strategic business units wh icli

were both part of our Personal are reporuing segirierit to form 5iuglc busincss unit During ou animal mrnpairrent testuig mm

fiscal 2011 we tested goodwill for impa iment for both Wet Shave and Playtex individually and in the aggiegate
in addition

tcsting the goodwill associated with the Lnergizer reporting unit in our Household Products segment There werc no

indications of impairment of goodwill noted during this testing Going foiward we will test goodwill for impairment tc two

reporting units the cc inbined Pci sonal are reporting unit arid the nermzei reportmg unit

In addition we completed impairment ft sting on indefinite lived intangible assets other than goodwill which are rademarks

brand names used mu our various product categories No impairment was indicated as result of this testing However the

recorded values of sri intangible assets from more recent acquisitions such as the Playtex acquisition are oftcn more

susceptible to an imp urment sk rf operating results or macroeconomic conditions detem iorate Playtex indefinite lived

imitarm4mble asets cxc usmse of goodwill represent more than 75% of total indefinite lived intangible assets exclusive of
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dv ii We utiliied discounted cash flow model using an excess earnings valuation tccfnique to test the Plnkx
iradem irks for impairment Key assu ptions included discount rate of 9% and terminal

gi
th rc te of \Vhil

impairmint was indicited during this testing the ndicated fan vain for two trademark Playt and Wet Cii Ic ii ldtiVcl

close to the carrying value at of the
carrying value approximately $650 for thi J1a2 te trader irk and 107 of ti

carrying value approximately $200 for the et Onm trademark

The following table represents the carrymg amount of goodwill by egment at St piember 201

0flJMn$
ASR acquisition

biti
I3aixncc xl September 30 2011

FIoschold rsonxl

Products ar lot iiri ifl0I%j-
19 619

____
369 14384 14/Si

lb oinpariy had indefinite lived trademarks and tradcnarnes of $1 70 36 at September 30 2011 and 51701 at Septemi ci

30 201 Changes in indefinite lived tr idemarks and tradena mes are due primarily to changes in forei
gri

eui ene ti md ition

loud amortizable intangible assets at %ptembei 30 201 laie as follows

fehnlog and patents

otal amortizable intangible assets

Gross

arrymg cumulated

Amoc nt Amort ition et

J8 IO2 07

260 1746

Aim rozable intangible assets with weighted axerage remaining
life of approximately thirCen years arc amort ed

stra ght line basis ovcr expected lives years to 20 years

Amortization expense for intangible assets totaled $2L6 for the current ycai Estimated amoitization expense for imortiiihle

intangible assets fo the
years ending Septe nber 30 2012 2013 2014 and 2015 is xpproxiinately $22 $20 in

$1 respeetis ely $15 and $14 for the years ending September 30 2016 md 2011 aid 59 thereafter

Income Taxes

he provisions tin income taxes consisted of the loiloss mg for the years ended Septen her

2010

Deli rrcd

izUnited States Federal 340 01

Btt $4

798

5S

Vo.4 18 125
State

40

Total deferred 264



fhe source of pre tax earnings was

ENERGIZER HOLDINGS IN
NOTES TO ONSOLIDATED IINANCIAL STAFEMENTS

2010 2009

Foreign
214A 3179 24804$4

teconciliation of income taxes with the amounts computed at the statutory federal rate follows

11 2010 009

State income taxes net of uderal tax benefit 45 53 10

1$F1W4 Si

ax benefits special foreign dividend 235

Other taxes including rcpatiiation of foreign earnings 153 38 11.0 20 10.4

b$t44t 11 02

Otheinct t53 51 26 05 24 0.6

Adjustments were recorded in each of the three years to revise previously recorded lax accruals to reflect refinement of tax

attribute estimates to amounts in filed returns and settlement of tax audits and othet tax adjustments
in nuinbei

jurisdictions Such idjustments decreased the income tax provision by 81 and $6J in fiscal 2011 and 2010 respectively and

increased income tax piovision by $1 .5 ir fiscal 2009

Ihe deferred tax assets snd deferred tax abilities recorded on the balance sheet as of September30 for the cars indicated are

as follows and include currtnt and noncut lent amounts

2011 2010

Iepreciation and property differences 1129 100

nIbO S34

Othet tax liabilities 6.6 17

---
1eferred tax assets

çsct4 IMbW 1LI

Defetred and stock related compensation
88.7 71

7ax
21 23

Intangible assels
22.1 27

Pogemtb2i18 tht th 15 7.4

Pension plans
1421 81

11we111017 4os 26

Other tax assets
61 104

Valuation allowance 12.6 11

61
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thc rc aim iatd imnmngs No provision is inada Ibr iddmtmom ml taxes on tindmsttibutcd arnings of oiemgn affiliates that arc

intended and p1cm ed to ba rndalinitaly askd in the all hate We intend to rind have hans to rainy thase aarnins
indeiinieela in ow foreign suhmdiarias fund hoc il opeiatic fund pansion and ott er post iatnernent obligation and fund

capital proj cis Sapt rinbc 011 ap roxim hel 5981 xl foie gn snhsi liar retained earnings was considarad
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sreao rut tax banal it at imvity for ha ye rs cud pLc niber 30 2011 and 2010 ar summ rixad belov

2011 2011

\clditions ased rn urrant yeai tax pc smtions and acqui ition

$htfol yt1tfI tr t3 pOst1
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pet cetaLe dta

The following table sets forth the coinpu ation olbisic and diluted earnings pei
share shares in millnns

IOR HE VI ARS FNDEI
SFPI FMBFR 30

2111

Net ealnings fbr basic and dilutivc carnings pcr share 261 401 297

Weighted avcrage shares basic 71 62Af\
Stock options

02

o4P
loral diluuse securiucs

0.7

Basic net eai nin per share
3.75 76 77

0D per r1re __
4Z

At September 30 2011 appioximtely nullion of thc Companys outstanding restricted stock equisal nts and stock options

were not included in the diluted nct eainings per
share calculation because to do so would have been anti dilutive In th event

thc potentially dilutive securities arc anti dilutisc on net carnings per share fe have the cffectofinc easing earnings per

shace the impact of th potennally diluti\e securi tes is not included in the computation Ihcrc were approximatcly nnlhon

nd nuliun Citi diluti\ sennPies at SepLinbcr 30 010 and 2009 respectively which wcr not me inded the diluted ret

earnings per sharc calculations for the rcinon notcd above

ShareBased Payments

The Companys mcci tic Stock Plan sit initIally adopted by the Boaid of DIrectors in Maich 2000 end appio
ed by

shareholders at thc 2001 nnuil Meeting of Shareholders plan was superseded in Janutry 2009 as thc Board of Directoes

appros cd nen plan which appiov by sharcholders at the 2009 Annual Mceting of Shareholdeis the 2009 Plan New

awards granted attct annary aic issued under the 2009 Plan Under the 2009 Plan awards of rcstrktcd stock iestruted

stock equis lents oi puon to purchasc the ompinys common stock NR stock may be granted to directois officers and

employees he 2009 Plan was amended and resta ed by appeoval of the shareholders at the January 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shai eholders to set the maximum numbu shares authoriied for issuance under the plan to million or purposes
of

detcmiining the number of shares as ailible Rr fiiturc issuance under the 2009 Plan as amendcd and rest ited awards of

iestricted stock and restricted stock cquisalents reduccs the shaies available for future issuancc by 95 oi ceiy one hare

awarded Options awaidcd reduces the numbei of shares available for future issuancc on one toe onc isis Septcmbci 30

20112010 and 2009 there ucie 46 million million and million sharcs rcspctively availabk for futuec awards unccr

the 2009 Plen as amended and restatcd Sincc the oiiginal plan has been superseded rio turther shares under this riginal plan

were available for future awards aflcr th adoption of the 2009 plan as amended and me stated

Options ate giautcd at thc market puce on thc eraut datc and generally have sested ratably ovci three to seven years
Ihese

awards typically base am ixmmnum temm of 10 years
Restimeted stock and restrictcd stoek equisalcnt awaids may also be

granted Option shaics and ices and restricted stock and stock equisalent awards ar sdjusted in conjuncuon wIth stock

splits arid othei iecapitaliz stions so that the boldem is iii the samc economic position before and aftu these equity transactions

The ompany permits cIsiployc deferrals of bonus and in the past permitted defenals ot retainers and tees for directors

under the teims of mts tcfciicd olnpenution Plan Under this plan employecs or directors defeiring amounts into the

Lnetguiei Common Stock net Fund ai credited with number of stock cquivalcnts
based on the fair saluc of UNR stock at

the time of deferral In addition thc participints are credited with an additional nnmhet of stock equivalents equal to 55% fo

employeis and 33 l/3 for diice tors of the amount deferred This additional match vested immediately or dii cc ors and scsts

three years from the date of initial credi ing for employees Fffective January 2011 the 33 3a match foi diiectors was

eliminated ihr future deteuuals Amounts deferued into lie bnergmier Common Stock Unit nod and sested matching deicrials

inLy bc te cthcr misti teat ptI.ois offered under thc plan after specified ictm ic hun priuds At the time of
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çnd
tci minatrc it of employment or for directors it the time of terminatior of service on the Board or at such other time fir

dish ihuhi whir may hr elected in advar cc by the
participant the number of equivalents then vested anc credit to the

participanfs account is deter mined and an amount in ca qual to the fair value of an equivalent number of sha es NR
stock is rid to the participant This plan is reflected in Other liabilities on tl Consolidated Balance Sheets

The onin nvr ses the strair hi lni rnCthod of rngnhzrng cfllrpPrrsatiov cost Fotal cCrnp na on cast eh iged

for the ompany sharethascd compensation arrangements was $373 $28 and $153 for the years mdc Sepiembei 30

201 201 and 2009 respectis ely and was recorded in SGA
expense The total income tax bene lit recognized in Ii

Consolidated Statements of irnings nd ompr hensrve Income for sharethased compensation arrangements was $13 $10

and $5 ft Cr tire years ended September 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectrsely Restricted stock issuancc ar share issued for

stock option exercises under tire Company share based compensation program are generally issued from treasury share

In October 20th the Company granted noinqualified stock options to purchase 26650 shares ofFNR stock to ertair

executives and employees of the ompany The options st or tire third anniversary of the date of thc grant but ma
ccelerane md become exercisable before that date upon the iceipient death or disability or upon change in eontr fi Ii

opt ions remain cx rcisable for 10 years from the date of grant Hoever this term may he reduced under certain circumstances

including ti eerpient termination of employment

of September 30 2011 the ggregr te intrinsic value of stock options outstanding arid stock ptrons exerei if Ic at Si

arid $1 ctrs ely lire aggregate nitrmnsic value oh stock options exercised for mc years ended Septeir her 10 II 2010

and 200 was 58.3 521 arid $9 respectively When valuing new grants Energize uses in implied solatrirty which elleet

the cxpec ed volatility foi per od equal to the expected life of the option No new option swards ma mae granted ni rI iscal

years ended Septemhei 30 2011 mud 2009 Ihe nerglitedamerage fair value of ptmons grrmted fiscal 2010 was $27 00 per

optro his estimated using the Black Scholes optiornprrerng niodel wrth the following weighted average assuirphron

______________ ___________ _____________________ ________
2010

Risk free rntere ratc 9800

xpeetcd Irbe option years

xpccted volatrlrty of LNR stock

xpected dividend yield on FNR stock

\s of Septemher 30 2011 unrecognr compensation costs related to stock optrons granted was whi will he

ogrrizcd in riseal 201 ur outsuarruinig rronqualrfred stoev options the werghteaverage remaining contractual life is

he llo\i mg table summarizes nonqr
alrfied FNR stock op ion activity during the current fiscal

year shares in millions

Weighte \verae
Shares Exercise Truce

Outstanding on October 201 00

Exercised
_______ _______ 0.23 3606

OuLstatlumng no September th 2011 0.17 at in

xercrsab eon September 30 2011 42 97

Restricted Stock Eujriaalermts RSI

In October 2106 the Brand of Directors approsed two grants of RSIa First grant to certain employees included 112 35
shares of which 109000 shares vested The second grant for 303000 shares was awarded ho senior executives and comnusted

ol wo pieces 25% of the tonal restr cted stock equrvalents granted or 69000 net of forfertumes vested on the third

anrirsersary of the date of grant suhomantmally all of the remniarridem of the RS1 did riot vest because the ompariy performance

target ma not achieved

t4



ENERGIZER HOLDINGS INC

NO FES CONSOLIDAI ED HNANCIAL STAt MEN IS

in millions ex Ce ter shariid rqtaedata

In October 20 the Company granted RSI awards to certain employees which included approximately 34 800 shares of

which 210000 vested and granted an additional ii 000 shares all of which fully vested At the same time the ompany

gianted RSF awards to senior executives totaling approximately 268700 shaies which vcsted as follows 2S0 of the total

restricud stock equivalents granted or 67 000 net of forfeitures ested on the third anniversary of the date of grant the

remainder ot the KSI did not st because the Company performance target was not aclne ed

In October 2008 the ompany granted RSF awards to certain employees which included approximately 65200 shaies that it

most cases vest ratably over four years or upon death disability or change of control At the same time the ompany granted

RSE awards to senior executives totaling approximately 374 600 which vested as follows 25 of the total restricted stock

equivalents granted or 91900 net of forfeitures vested on the third annivei sary of the late of grant the remainder of the

RSI did not vest because the Company performance target was not achieved

In February 2009 the Company granted RSF awards to senior executives totaling approximately 96000 shares hcse awards

were granted in lieu ofi each executives continued participation in the 2009 annual cash bonus piogmin ii his her right

ceesc accruals under the Company Supplemental Lxecutive Retirement Plait an exes pen ion plan foi alendar year

2009 end iii his or her right to receive Company matching accruals under the ompanys Fxccutive Sas mgs Investment Plan

an cxcess 401k plan for the 2009 calendar year Vectmg of the equivalents occurred on November 16 2009 and the numbcr

of shares vested which was 142466 was determined based on achievement of individual and ompany performance targets

ftti the period from Octohei 2008 through September 30 2009 The total awaid which vested is amortized over the vesting

period

In October 2009 the ompany granted RSE awards to certain employees which included approximately 766 300 shares that ii

most cases vest ratably over four years upon death disability or change of control At the same time the ornpany granted

two RSE awards to senior executives One grant includes approximately 143900 shares and vests on the third annivei vary of

the date of giant or upon death disability or change of control The second grant includes ipproximately 339700 performance

shares which vests on the date that the Company publicly releases its earnings
for its 2012 fiscal year contingent upon the

Companys compound annual growth rate foi reported earnings per shaie LPS AGR for the three ear period ending on

September 30 2012 ltndei the terms of the performance award 100% of the grant vests if three year EPS AGR of at least

12% is achieved ith smaller percentages vesting if the Company achieves three year
FPS CAGR hctween 5% and 12% Ir

addition the terms of the performance awards provide that the awards vest upon death disahilitl and in some instances upon

change of control Fhe total performance award expected to vest is amortized over the scsting period

In October 2010 the ompany granted RSE awards to certain employees hich included approximately 313 300 shares that

most cascs vest ratably over four years upon death disability or change of cc ntrol the same tune the Company granted

two RSI3 awards to key executives One erant includes approximately 86 700 shares and vests on the third anniversary
of the

date of grant oi upon death disability or change of control ihe second grant includes approxinialely o2 300 shares whicn

vests oir the date that the ompany publicly releascs its earnings for its 201 fiscal year ontingurt upon the Companys EPS

AGR for the three yeai period ending on September 30 2013 Undei the terms ofthe award 110% ofthe grant vests ifan

PS AGR of at least 12% is achieved with smaller percentages vesting if the Company achieves an FPS ACER between 5%

and 12% In addition the terms of the performance awards provide that the awaids vest upon death disability and in some

instances upon change of control fire to al performance award expected to vest vs ill be arnoitized over the vesting period

In Novmber 2010 the Company granted two RSF awards to executive officers One grant includes approximately 47900

shares and vests on the third anniversary
of the date of grant or upon death disability oi change of control The second grant

incluths aplroxiinately 111700 shares uhich vests on the date that the Company publicly relerses its earnings
for its 2013

tisl
yeur contingent upon the Ccn1pan EPS iR for the three eai piicd nding en Septenier lii 013 Inder the

terms of the award 100% of the grant vests if an LPS CAGR of at least 12% is achieved with snraller percentages vesting if

the onpany achieves an FPS CAGR between 5% and 12% In addition the temis of the pcithrmance awards provide that the

awards vest upon death disability and in some instances upon change of control he total perfoirnance av ard expected to vest

will he anrortiied over the vesting period

he onpany records estimated expenst for the pc rforrrranee based grants based on target achics ement for the three year

period fbr each respective program unless evidence exists that difteient ultunate CACJR is likely to occur lair value of the

award is determined usrn the closing share price of the ompanys common stock on the date of thc grant
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Th following table summarizes RS7 aitisity during the euirent yesr shares in millions

Weigl tedAs ci apr
Grant Date lair

Shares Vilue

Nonvested RSF at October 2010 78 75

iranted 78 749

Vested 32

ancelled
____________________________________ __________________

026 104

Nonvested RSE at September 30 2011 L98 699

As of Septcrthcr 30 2011 there was an estimated $54 of total umecohnized compensation costs related to RSE grin ed to

date which will be recognized over weightedaverage period of approximately years he amount recognized wy vary

vesting for portion of the awards depends on the achievement of the established CAR targets Ihe weighted-si erage fair

value for RSI- granted in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 was $749 865 and $63 respectively rh fair value of RSI vested in

fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 was $25 825 and $18 respectively

In oveniher 2011 which is fiscal 2012 the Company granted RSF aw irds to cci tam employees which include

approximately 310 000 shares that in most cases vest ratably over four years or upon death disability or change of cortio At

the same time the Company granted RSE awards to key esecutives One grant includes approximately 30 100 harci and

vests on the third anniversary of the datc of grani or upon death disability or change of control Ihe second grant includ

approximately 305000 shares which vcsts on the date that the Company publicly relesses its earr mgi for its 14 fiscal ar

contingent upon the ompmnys bPS GR for the three year period ending on September sO 2014 Under the ter us of thc

award 100% of the grant vests if an CAGR of at least 12% is achieved with smaller percentages vesting if thc Compiny
achieves an FPS CAGR between 5% and 12% In addition the terms of the performance awirds provide that the awards vest

upon death disability and in some instances upon change of ontrol he total performance award expected vest ill

amortized oser he vesting period The closing stock price on the date of the grant used to determine the award fair sal rev as

$10 18

10 Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits

INc Company has several defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all of its employers in the US and ecrtrin

cnrplcye in other countries Th plais provide retirement benefits based in certain circuiman ci en ycara uf scrvcc ajid

earrrmn As result of the ASR acquisition on November 23 2010 the Company assumed pension and post ietircmermt

obligation and assets including projected benefit obligations fhe transfer of these obligati am and assets ciii he seen ir thi

following tables ihe ASR transfer included on the following table was partially offset by tIe exclusion in fiscal 2011 of

certain plan obligations and plan assets of foreign plans deemed immaterial for rcporting purpose

TI he ornpany also sponsors or participates in number of other non pension srrangemnts including various retir rr ent

and termination benefit plans some of which are required by local law or coordinated with gover irnent-sponsi red plans which

are not significant in the aggregate and therefore are not included in the information piesented in the following bles

Thc omnany currently provides other postretirement henc.fits consisiing of health can and life insurance ncfiis ir cerinn

groups
of retired employees Certain retirees are eligible for fixed subsidy provided by the Company toward their total cost

of health care benefits Retiree contributions for health care benefits are adj irsted periodically to cover the entire increase ui

tal plan costs Cost trend rates no longer materially impact the ompanys future cost of the plan duc to the fixed nature of

the subsidy
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The following tables present the benefit obligation plan assets and funded status of the plans

September 30

the following table piesents the amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Strtcinents of

Shareholders quity

2011

Posti etirement

2011 2010

hange in Projected Benefit Obligation

Bcncfit obligation at beginning of year

Scrvn cost

Interest cost

Plan participants contributions

Actuarial loss cain

Benefits paid net

Plan amcndments

Special termination benefits

Net transter primarily due to acquisition

Foicign_currency cxchange rate changes

Projected Benefit Obligation at end of year

Pension

2010

936

32.7

502

12

812

73

26

10469

289

559

LI

150

781

96

1777

425

444

0.5

27

50

71
7.3

12.5

0.2

13t

44112615 10469 50.5

ngeinPlaiiAssets

ir value of plan assets at beginning of
year

752.8 699

Net transfer primarily duc to acquisition 72.5

Actual return on plan assc 12 81

ornpany contributions 52.7 23.2 20

Plan participants contributions 11 1.2 50

Benefits paid 78.1 57.3 7.3

Eorcign currency exchangc rate cha ges 17

ftir salue of plan assets at end of
year

.0 .8 .7
ided status at end of

yeai S6.5 $4.1 $O
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ini it in nih inpich nsi\ income hi the ai end cml er Oil ar ll ws

hanbes in plan as its and meLt obligations

itrogniird in othe comprehensise loss

Ii ut foi
ign plar nncd irnniatc iial

4mo ins tnktd as componen of

penodic lx nut cost

iiorti lt1crn nt ueallnKnt rcco5nitlon ot

\nx it tat oi ce itailmcnt in 05fl ti ii of pnoi scrv err dit

Po

Pen ion Retn neat

morti ation oi sctlknicrt reconitioi of net loss/gain

ial recoeni cd in hei comprchen ivc inc mu

11

hr 0011 fly cx cts Ii con ihnt 865 it dnsion plan rid 82 to its pa trctiiunci Ian in cal

ftc nipanys cx ted It tnrc niht lynients aic as to ov

or Fhe Years Ending September 30

2Ollto 202

Pensim

86

62

71

84

86

454

hst
Retirement

34

ii

33

32

32

146

he cun ulate her edt obligation for dcl in benefit pension plans was $1235 id 9867 at September 30 201 and

resxcnvc1y he mollowmng tabL snows pension lans ith an accumulated oc mar ohnganor excess of plan assets am

Pcnion

tmount uied in lhe onsol dated

Balan Sb et

Ni orient sut

icnt liab htic

nicuricnt limb litic

ce moui icco mm ed

Amou its feugni ed in Accuniulatid Other

Coir prehensi os

Prio ic tied

2011

12

70
4107

446b

3712

42

01

328O

010

8L7

31

18

ostrel

011 00

41 l1
203
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fflflas in mifflQnseii1cg3tf

______
September 30

2011 2011

ll58TS

Il463 891

air value of plan assets
711 641

Projected benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Pension plan assets in the plan repi esent 80% of assets in all of the Comp my defined hr nefit pension plans lnvestniei

policy for the plan includes mandate to diversify assets and invest in variety of asset classes to achieve that goal fire

US plans assets are currently invested in several binds representing most standard equity and debt security classes he bioid

taiget
allocations are equities including U.S and foreign 56o debt securities bonds 9o and other 5%

Actual rllocations at September 30 2011 approximated these targets The plan held no shares of LNR stock at

September 31 2011 Investment obje fives are similar tor non pension arrangements subject to local iegulaiimls

ftc following table presents pension and postretirment expense

For Th ears nded Septembei 30

Amounts expccted to he amor iicd from aecumul ited othr cornprehcnsm\ loss into net period benefit cost during the year

cmrdiii September 30 2012 are as follow

Net sctuaiial loss/gain

Pm ioi sri vice credit

he folloss ing table presents assumptions which reflect wcightedaveragcs for the component p1 ins usrd iii determining the

abo information

Service cost

Interest cost

xpected return on plan assets

Amortization of unrecognized prio service cost

Amoi iiation of unrecognized transition asset

Recognized net actuarial loss gain

uitailment loss recognized

Special termination bene its recognized

SetLknmcnt lu c..ugnzLd

Net periodic benefit cost

2011

05

2.7

Postretirement

010

05

25

0.1

2011

289

559

63.3

5.6

02

14.5

09

96

52

46.3

Pension

2010

t27

50

621

02

77

226

2009

il7

52

607

29
04

2.9

32

270

2009

04

252.7

1.3

0.8 135

______
Pension Postretirenient

20.5j 19

___
2.6
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rsilIiehareandeta

SSE1S VI FAIR VALUE

QUII

LV1q itt

itti iiational quity

BF

Level Level IotaI

1681 1099 2180

41 1342

95

2180 5970 8150

2010 Pension Benefits

SSF AT FAIR VALUE

FQI FlY

Fquity

Internat onil Equity

DFB1

evel Level otal

1863 945 808

i43 70

ovt

Othei iovt

orpot

tSH ASH FQUIVALLNTS

01 FR

1OlI
_________________

he and SI posrretiremc at assets were classified as evel at September 3u 2011 and 10 especuvety

Pension

September 30

2011 2010 2011

46%

7%

47%

73%

34%

1%

NA

8%

34%

56%

0c

38%

48%

N/A

1%

N/A

Plan ohl palions

Discount iatc

ompensation increas rate

Net periodic her efit cost

iscount late

wted long4erm rate of return on plan

npcnsation increase rate

te expected return on plan assets was determined based on historical and expected .rture returns of the van us asset lisses

inc the rget allocations described below Specifically the expected return on equities US and foreign omhincd is 38

ann thc expccted ri turn on debt securities including higher quality and lowerquality bonds is 05%

Thc foil wing table sets forth the Ian value of the Company pension assets as of Septemb 30 2011 and 010 scgreatcd by

kvn within th fur alue hierarchy Refer to Note 15 of the Notes to onsolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

on Ii value hieiaichy and fair value principles

2011 Pension Benefits

Go

Of/icr Gui

3/ 0/ etc

4NH CASh EQUIVALEN IS

OTL

2304 2104

95 25
612 612

82 723

1962 1962

48

30

73

89 132

68

233 5196 528
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NOTF TO CONSOLIDATED FIrANcIAL STATEMEN IS

rnrnillioshireandercentaedata

There were no Level pension and other postretirement plan assets at September 30 201 and 2010

Our investment objective for defined benefit setirernent plan assets is to satisfy the cm rent and future pension benefit

obligations The investment ph losophy is to achieve this objective through diversification of the retirement plan assets The

goal is to earn suitable return with an api opi iate level of iisk while maintaining adequate liquidity to distribute benefit

payments The diversified asset allocation includes equity positions as well as fixed income allocation The increased

volatility associated with equities is offset with higher expected retuins while the long duration fixed income positions help

dampen the volatility of the overall portfolio Risk exposure is controlled by rehalancmg the retirement plan assets back to

target allocations as needed lrvestment firms managing retirement plan assets carry out ins estnwnt policy within their stated

guidelines Investment performance monitored against benchmark indices which reflect the policy and target allocation of

the retirement plan assets

Effective January 12010 the pension benefit earned to date by active participants under the legay Energizer .8 pension

plan was frozen and future retirement be iefits accrue to active nomASR participants using new retirement accumulation

formula Under this new formula active noa SR participants earn retirement benefit equal to 6% per annum of theii

pensionable earnings during calendar year In addition an interest credit is applied to the benefits earned under this revised

formula at rate equal to 30
year Treasury note Finally active non ASR participants that met certaui age

and service

criteria as of December 31 2009 receive transitional benefit in addition to the pension credit of 6% per annum his

transitional benefit provides an additional pension ciedit of 2% to 4% per annum of pensionable earnings plus the applicable

interest credit through 2014 As part of the ASR acquisition in early fiscal 2011 Energizer assumed the legacy benefits unde

the two fiozen ASR pension plans

In March 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010

the Acts were signed into law in the Urnted States his legislation extends health care coverage to many uninsured

indvdnals and expands coverage to those already nisured We have evaluated the efliact of the Acts on our U.S retiree medical

obligation Under the structure of our plan the Company has limited its financial commitment for the benefits pros
icled

under the plan all costs in excess of the ompanys commitment are allocated to the retirees Any increased costs from the Ats

will also be allocaled to the ietirees and will not change the Companys financial commitment As such we have not added any

additional obligation related to the Acts to the onipanys postretirement benefit obligation

11 Defined Contribution Plan

The Company sponsors defined contribution plan which extends participation eligibility to substantially all U.S employees

other than legacy ASR employ es he Company matches 50% of participants before4ax contributions up to 60o of eligible

compensation Prior to January 12010 after tax contributions not exceeding 1% of participants compensation weie matched

325% by the ompany Amounts chargc to expense during fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 were $9.2 88 and $8

respectively and are reflected in SOA arid Cost of products sold in the Consolidated Statements of Farnings Also included

in the fiscal 2011 expense was $0.9 related to the matching components of two legacy ASR plans These plans were part of the

ASR acquisition that occurred in early fiscal 2011

12 Debt

Notes payable at September 30 2011 and 2010 consisted of notes payable to financial institutions with original maturities of

less than one year
of 556.0 and $24.9 respectively and had weightedaverage interest rate of 100 and 7% respectis ely

The dctail of lorigtei rn debt at Scptenbei 30 for the sear indicated is as follows

Tflfl--
mtt ttii4 nttn$te raogmrtg frof 1% irt6%0 4uiz i3
Senior Notes fixed interest ra of 70 due 2021 600M $0

Total long term debt including curment maturities 23123 288

otal long term debt $2206.5 52.022
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he Company total hoirowings were 82363 at Sptember 30 201 including $503 tied vai iahle internaL iates

tic 30 is hedc ia the niteiest te swap noted below he ompany inaintams total debt facilities of 52 81 cx lusive

of aa labic borrow ugs undei the recei ables smuittization program of which $4382 remained avail ible is of Scpternhri

2011 as reduced by $1 of outstanding lettei credit

On May 192011 he
onipany issued $600 piineipal amount of 4Jo Senior NoDs duc on May 2021 Interes is paysblc

scni anr ually begin ing Novcmbei 2011

lh net proce
ds horn he sale of the notes were used foi repayment of indebtedness and for gener ii corporate purpi ses

ireluding firs and
expenses

ielated to the dLht ofiering hr indebtedness that was repaid iclu ed the llos in

SM Privatc Placement notes with tixtd ntcicst rate of 86c due June 10 2011

Private Placement notes ss ith lived intercst rate of 613% due June 30 2011

$333 fbi the early rcdemptio of certain Private Placc inent notes with fixed interest tes ranging Iro ii 90
due 2011 to 201 his neluded he aym nt of $310 in pirneipal $191 make whole pui irnurn dir to

the early rctirement of the dcl and S34 acetu in crest on the notes at ftc time of the redemMic

882.8 outstanding indebtedness under out $450.0 rcvolvinf credit facility

5144 outstanding indbtedncs undLr our receuxables sccuritiiation progiam and

54 in Ides and expenses relat thc lebt offering

On M.y 62011 the ounpanys 54301 revolving ciadit facility was renewed for five year term Ihis encwal cprcscn

an ire eae the amount available under this vi ing lie of credit is compared to the $25 available undci the tacilit ruo

to the ien val At September30 2011 there cue no oulstai ding borrow rigs undci this facility

During the second quarter of f3s al 009 the Company entered into interest ite swap agrcei uents witf tu major muuan iii

institutu ns that fixed th vat iahk hem iimai component lnuk of the Company inert sti at on $300 or the Conipa

satiable rate dcht through Dcc ember 2012 at an interest rate of 9%

Under the teims of the Conupen sired agreemen the ratio of the flomparys indebtednes to its CBIIDA as med intl

reenrcnt and detailed bek cannot hr rcater ti an 4.00 to and niay not remain abox 50 to for moi th in lou

nseeutii quarteis Ii and sc long is ratio is ahose aO to for any period the brnpa iy iequirnd sy ldito al

jut st cxpc ruse foi thc pet in whir Ii the atio cxceds 50 to he interest rate rn 1rpm md certain fern iry deperir

the undhtc hues to LBIJDA ratio Crud the ompany private placement note agrecments tie ratio if indchtednc

FBI Fl may not rnrn ccl 4.03 to How eveu if the ratio is above 50 to the Comp my is requir to pay ddution 13

hi us Foints in mtcrcs loi th period ii sa hich the iatio exceeds 3.50 In addition under he credit api ern ts the

nrnrni me 311 is di fiord in lii ago e.euuts to .il nf1 ict vpense must xc cd 00 to rnpny oi
indebtednes to its proforn FBI ISA was 92 to and the ratio of its profonina FBI to total rikrest expen was 13rn

is of teinbet 30 hese ratios wet negatively impacted by significant portion of tire pre tax chau assoel ited with

the Ho schold Puoduct est uetuuuuug activities in fiscal 011 such chauges ieducecl FBI IDA as defined in the igueemc

If
oinj any fails to comply with the financial covenants releuucd to aho or with other requirements of the cicdut

agu ements ci privat plac ement note agieements the lenders would have the ight to accelerate tie tatu sty of

Sc celerat on un one of Me fa hOes ould ti igger 055 cl taults on other rrow ings

iudar tluc credit eenuents DA Ic fined net eai nungs as adjusted addbac interest expense incc ta cs

depreciation and amc utr atior all ilw hi Ii are determined in accordance with 1AAI In addition the credit afrccinicnt ahoy

ccrtiin nun chaige such stoel awa rmortiiat and asset writeol8s or impairments te be iclded hick

detcrmini ug BIIDA or purpcwes if indebtedness ratio Severance and oth cash champ incutued as resul of

struetuumg at realig umeist activities as elI as cxp nsc incurued nu acquisition integiatio ac tivitic are in luded is

redueli ins in FBI IDA for alculatiom of the mdc btedncss ratio In the es eat of an acqcnsutu in such as 58 ii fus 01 Fe

LBIITA is calculated on profoima basis to include the trailing twelve month FBIIDA ot the acquired company or hr nc

Total debt calculated in accordance with UAAP hut excludes oLut tunidung boirowings under the ieccIvablc sccunitiwt or

prc tram fill is ilculated in fashion identical to 11311 DA xcept that depuce ation and nor uaatiori ire not hut

lotal tate exp nsc is calculated iii accordance with oAAP

On May II the nupany amended arid reiicw ccl lou thre
yeai tirru its exustunit rere vables sceunitixatiomu progi run

Bo rowiuugs nude tins
pu ogu anu whit hi may not cxc ced $200 receive faa orab Ire utmcnt in the omp ys lebt

Oiilf

nsen rats At Scptmher 30 0lI 53a was ou standing tinder this facility
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the counterparties to long term committed borrowings consist of number of major financial institutions fhe Company

continually monitors positions with and credit ratings of counteiparties
both internally and by using outside ratings Igencie

Aggn gate initurities of long term debt including current maturities at Sctemher 30 2011 are is follows tot the fiscal yeaN

noted 5106.0 in 2012 $5665 in 2013 $140.0 in 2014 $2300 in 2015 $210 in 016 and $l0600 theieafter At this lime

the Company intends to repay only scheduled debt maturities over the course of the next fiscal year with the intent to prcseme

committed liquidity

13 Preferred Stock

lie Companys Articles of Incorporation authorize the ompany to issue
up to 10 million shaies of $00 par value of

pieferred stock Durng the three years ended September 30 2011 theic were no shares of prefci red stock utstanding

14 Shareholders Equity

At September 30 2011 there were 300 million shares of LNR stock authoiizcd of which appioximately
million shares

wcrc reserved fos issuance under the 2000 lncentive Stock Plan and million shares were rescived fbi issuance under thc

2009 lmmcentivc Stmk Plan

Beginning in September 2000 the Con panys ard of Dircetors has approved semies of resolutions authorizing the

rcpurchase of shares of ENR common stock with no commitments by the ompany to repurchase such shares On July 24

2006 the Board of Eiiectors approved thc repurc ase of up to an additional 10 million shares In fiscal 11 the Company

rcpurchased million shares of lnergizer common stock exclusive of small number of shares related to the net settlement

of certain stock awards for tax withholding purposes for total cost of approximately $276 Since the md of fiscal Ol and

threagh amber the onpany rcpurehased add1invil 0.5 million shares of its common stock at total cost of

approximately $56 All of the shares were purchased in the open market under the ompanvs cui rent authorization lrom its

Board of Directors Ihe ompany has approximately million shares remaining on the above noted Board auehoiizatmon to

mepurchase its common stock in the future Future purchases may he made from time to time on the Opel maiket oi thiough

piivately negotiated transactions subject to corporate objectixes and the discretion of mariageincnt

15 Financial Instruments and Risk Management

the market risk inherent in the Companys financial nistrurnents and positions represents the potential bss arising horn advrse

chang iii currency rates rommodity prices interest rates and the Coinpanys stock price ompany policy allows derivatises

to be used only for identifiahlr exposures and therefore the Company does not enter into hedges for trading pm poses where

the sole objective is to generate profits

Concentration of redit Risk Fhe counterpartics to dens atis contracts consist of numbei of inajom financial institutions and

arc generally institutions with which the oinpany maintains lines of credit The ompany does not enter into dermvatisc

contiacts through brokers nor does it trade derivative contracts on any other exchange om ovei the counter maikets Risk of

currency positions and in irk tmmarket valuation of positions re strictly monitored at all times

fhe ompany continually monitors positions with and credit ratings of counterparties both intcmnally arid by using outside

mating agencies the Company has implemented policies that limit the amount of agreements it enters otto with any one party

While nonpcrformanee by these counterparties exposes the Company to potential credit losses sm losses are not anticipated

lie ompany sells to large number of customers piiinanmly in the retail tiadc including those itt mass merchandising

drugstore supermarket and other channels of distribution throughout the world Vial Mart Stores Inc and its subsidiaries

iccounted for 19 5/o 20 irid 2l4o of total net sales in fiscal 20112010 and 2009 respectively pnmniaiily in North

menic he ompanv performs ongoing evaluations of its customers financial condition and cnedmtw orthiness but does riot

generally require collateral the Companys largest customer had obligations to the Company with carrying value of$1 18 Sat

Septembcm 30 2011 While the competitiveness of the retail industry presents an inherent unctatamnty the Company does mt

helicic significant risk of loss from concentration of credit risk exists with respect to accounts receivable

In the ordinary coumse of business the Company eniers into contractual amiangements derivatives to reduce its exposure to

foicmgn curncy interest rate and comnvdmty price
risks 1h seCtinhi helo outlines the tYpes of derivitmves that existed at

Septemnbei 30 2011 and 2010 as well as the Companys objectives and strategies for holding these deitsattve instruments
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Commodity Price Risk The Company uses raw materials that ate subject to pi ice volatility At Imes hedging instruments arc

used the ompany to reduce
exposure to variab hty in cash flows associated with futuie purchases of in or other

commodities Ihe fair market salue of the Companys outstanding hedging instruments included in Accumulated other

comprehensive loss on the onsolidaled Balance Sheets was an unrealized pretax los ofSd2 nd pie tax gan of$I

Scplember 30 2011 and 2010 respectively Over the next twelve months approxinia ely $5.6 of thc loss included in

ccumulated oflic .omprLh nsi lobs sa ll be reogr1izLd in aimngs Contract iuatur tries lot iese nedges extend into fiscal

year 2011 here weie 18 pen conti acts at Septenibem 30 2011 hese hedge contracts cover approximately 90G0 of estimated

zinc punt Ii ises in fiscal 12

oreign Currcn Risk significant oortion of Lnergizer pioduct cost is more losely tic Ito the dollar thar to the

local currencies in which the product is sold As such weikeninig ofcumrencmes ielative to the dollar resul in mamn
declines unless irtigated through pricing actions which are not always avulahle due the

competitive environment

Conversely sti engthening in currencies relative to the dollar and to lesser ext nt the uro can improve margins As

result the Company has entered no series of forward currency contracts to hedge the cash flow unc ertaintv of forecasted

ins entoIy puihases due to short term
currency fluctuations he ompan pnimam foreign af ihates which are expoed to

.S dollar puichascs have the uro the Japinese yen
the British pound flit anadom blUr inctm the AustralIan dolUr tbe

local currencies At September 30 2011 arid 2010 respectivcly the Company had an unrealized pretax gain on thcc forward

currency contracts accounted for as cash flow hedges of $3 and unrealized
pie tax loss of $16.8 included in Accumulated

other compnehensivc loss on the onsolidafed Balance Sheets Assuming lbreign exchange ate versus the dollar re nain

at Septenmbcr 10 2011 levels over the neat twelve months approximately 82 of the pie tax gain inc tided in Accumulated

other comprehensise loss will he included in
earrirngs ontract maturities br these hedge xtencI into fiscal year o13 heie

were 64 open contracts at Septembei 30 7011 with total notional value of approximately 360

Interest Rate Risk
onipany has interest rate misk with respect to uiterest expense on variable rate debt At September 30

2011 the Company had 5503 of variable rate debt outstanding During fiscil 2009 he ompany entered into interest rate

swap agrcrments with two major financial institutions that lived the variable bcnchrnark comnpo rent LIBOR of the

Companys inter st rate on 100 of the omnpanys variable iate debt through December 2012 At September 30 2011 amid

2010 nespctmvely the Company had an unrealized pre tax loss on these interest raft swap agreements of and

nic uded in Accumulated other comprehensive los on the onsolicl ited Balance Sheets

Cash Flow hedges ihe ompany mariitains number of cah floss hedging program as scurscd ahovL to mecluce iisks

rehted to comniodmty foreign currency and interest rate risk ach of these derivative instrument have high correlation to the

uric crlying exposure bOng hedged and have been deemed highly effective for accounting purposes in dfsetting the associated

Derivatives not Designated in Hedging Relationships ftc onipany holds share option witl majom Iinancmal mnstmtut on to

nimugane toe impact of cnangcs in ccrtamn ot the Company deferred compensation Ima rilitre which are tied to th om any
common sto puce Period activity lated to the share option is classified in the same category in the cash flow statement as

the period activity asscciated wmth the Companys deferred compcnsatmon liability which sva ca flow fmom operations

In addition the onipan entcrs into foreign currency derivative contracts hiclr are not designated as Lash flow hedges Or

accounting urpt ses to hedge existing balance she exposures Any losse on these ecntract would be offset by exchange

guns on Ire underlying exposures thu they are not sublect to significant iii riket risk

he follow ng table pros ides fa value as of September 30 2011 and 2010 and the amounts gains nd losses on dci mvative

instruments cIa smfied as cash fit hedges vs of and for the twelve months ended Scptnibei 10 0ll urd 2010 respectivcly

16 Iwclve Months nded
At September 30 2011 Stptemhcr 10 2011

Gam/I oss
i/fl oss Reclassified Ii om

Deres ative dcsign ited as air value Recognit DC into Income

ash low Hedging Relationshmps AssetLiahihty in 13 Effective Portion

br
ign umrtnry uOm itiCtS 33 45 246

runniodity oonira
ci

tnt re late ronu acts

76 66 236
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At September 30 2010

For Twelve Months nded

September 30 2010

ain/I oss

Derivatises designased as

ash Flow Hedging Relationships

oreign cue ency contracts

Commodity contracts

Interest rate contracts

Gam/1 oss Reclassified From

Reognized iso inc1me

in Of 13 Effective Portion rt

168 121

10 IA

112
_______

236 221

All derivative assets are presented in other current assets or other assets

All deiis alive liabilities arc presented in other current liabilities or other liabilities

OCI defined as other eonprehcnsisc income

jain/l oss reclassified to Income was recorded as follows oreign currency contracts in ether financing commodity contracts in 051 01 pioducis Id

bach of these derivatise instruments has gh correlata to the underlying exposure being hedged and has been deemed highly effective in ofiscltin

associated isk The neffeetave portion recognized in income was insignificant
to the twelve months ended September 30 2011

At September 30 2011 $0.2 of gains associated with the Companys commodity contracts were capitalized
to AOCI he loss will be reclassified finn

SOC Ii ito income as result of inventomy ing sold

The fol1oing table provides Lair values as of September 30 2011 and 2010 and the amounts of gains and losses on derivati

instruments not classified as cash flow hedges as of and for the twelve months ended September 30 2011 and 2010

respectively

Derivatives not designated as

ash Flow Hedging Relationships

Share option

nrcmgn currency contracts

Derisatives not designated as

Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Share option

oreign currency contracts

Income Statement

1assification

06 SCA
Oilier fmnanc np

Fair Value Hierarchy Accounting guidance on fair value measurements for certain financial assets and liabilities requires that

asvctv and liabilities carried at fair value be classified in one of the following three categories

Level Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable market based inputs or unobservable Inputs that are corroborated by market data

Lexel nobseivable inputs reflecting the reporting entitys own assumptions or external inputs from inactive nlarkets

Under the fair value accounting guidance hierarchy an entity is required to maximize the use of quoted market prices and

minimize the use of unobservable inputs Ihe following table sets forth the Companys financial assets and liabilities which are

carried at fair value as of September 30 2011 and 2010 that are measuied on recurring basis during the peiiod segiegated by

level within the fair value hierarchy

otal

Fair Value

Asset Liability

or Twelve Months Ended

At September 30 201 September 30 2011

Fair Value Gain/Loss

Asset lability Recognized in Income

34
04 4A

TO

At Septeniber 30 2010

Fair Value

Asset liability

29

For Fwelve Months nded

September 30 2010

Income Statement

Recognized in Income Iassmticition

06

Othem fimmam ir2.8 54

___ 48
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St Septunher 30 211 and 2010 thu ompiny had levi or Ic ci financial assers or h4biIi ies

See Note the Not to naoli fated nanc ral StaeemcnL for furthei discuss on of deter ed compeus ti na Irabiirt es

St Septcmbei 30 2011 and 2010 the lair market ailu of fixed rate lone term debt was 51 969 md 52 077 iepectl el

compared its carryrn value 50 md 51 835 speeti ely he hook value of the xnpany var at Ic te debt

at pn xuuaLs Ian value lire fair vain the Ion term debt is stimatcd using yields ohia ned from irdependerit prrcin

our ces for sinuiai types of hoi rowin rraugcuner ts

Due to the nate rc ol cash and cash equl alcnts and short terni borrosaings including tes payable carrying amount the

balance sheets approximate fair value

St Septemt ci 2011 the fair valuc foreign curr ncv mt rest at sma ip and commodity corit act is the amour th

Company maould recems or pay to terminate the ntract ansidering first quoted mu ikct prices of coo parabk are ci

in the ahsc nec oI quoted market prices such Ia tots as ci st iates currency cxchar ge rates md remaining niaturm

Japan Earthquake and Related Events On Maich II 2011 an earthquake shuck oIl the uortirc st eo at of Japan triogcrmg

tsunami ther compounding tfc situat on nuclear powei lants macme damaged ecu
mrrg

necms abut the possible

mel clown if nuclear reactors and the mc lease of harmful mdmoactmae mat ru Is he at uts have sea ly disrupted the

Japanese conorny the thud largest iii the woi Id

he em ip roy is party to scvcial forcrgri exchange hedgrnk contracts for the Japanese Yen ma hich are accounted for as easl

foam hedges these ntracts hedge th varrabri ty ol r1k fIt ws rc ulting Iroin cham br ago currency achang

related to the i1k settlement of future rnvcntoiy pcrrcha he contracts are es ablis red and based forecast of fut

ma5rte r2 St September 30 2011 the or 0y md t0 loa uf ap0m ima 57 jxCd Acunu05td

Other ompreh nsmve oss on the Balance Sheet tel at to he dgmg contracts in apaii his loss elates to foregi chan

or tiacts am countee fom as cash flow hedges with maturities through ut fiscal 2312 of ptcmhcr 30 2011 cc ntraet mth

maturmhcs extending nito fiscal 2013 arc not material noted pmev ously we continue inoni or activIties in ipari rid Ic

dat have not seen any material change in inventoiy purchasing to meet futuic consum deniand II wever iedu Iron ef

borecas ed rrv nOry purchases rutty result in lortion ofeurment or future foreign cx Ii mnxc contracts to no rngcr quali4s

mst fibs hedges iris may rc ult um an acceleratre of the re cognition of the amount included in Accumulated othe

em iprchensrve income in the conolrd balance sheet At thu tii re ave consider tIc se forecaste macn omv tu ch ise te be

probable

16 nvironirnental and egal Matters

in ernrneni gulauon nodS nvmronmciila klattt is IF peratmous the orupa my life rose ot cit iparimes en

in the ilou child odcmcts and Personal arc businesses arc subJect to vammous fedral state foreign and local lamv aid

regi Ia Ions intended to pmotect the public health and fit- ivirom mncnt hose regulatior relate ararily to other safe rim

and water quality underground fu storage tanks and waste handhrig arid disposal lIt onpan ha recuv ot ccs tori the

Invite mental Protection Agency state igcnci amid or private parties seeking contribution that it has roe id rtrfncd

po entrally responsible mrty RP under the ompreher ye Lnvrror mental Rest onse ornpensatromm and LiablIty an

may he required to shame in the nt ef cleanup with respect eight lederml Superfum el site It nay also he reqcmiicd sic

in the cost ob cleanup am rth meapect to late de mgnaeed aiIm or nthcr sites out md ob the

Ac ucd environmental costs at September30 211 were exclusive of accrtmed mat associated with the reecrt \SI
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acqr isition of hich fi is expected to be spent in fiscal 2012 this accrual is not measured on discounted basis In

additi fl the oripany has acciued environment ii costs ncluded in the ASR opening balance sheet at the time o%icquisition of

approximatdy $1 of hieh appioximat ly is expected to he spent in fiscal 2012 he ASk liability wa measurcd using

discou it rate of 4% It difficult to qua itil with ceitainty the cost ol envnonmental matters particularly rc mcdi ition nd

future capital cxpendi urea for cnvironmental contiol equipment Nevertheless based on information currently available the

ompa iy believes thc po ihility of material ensoic nniental costs in excess of the crued amount is remote

ertai of the Comp iys pioducts ire subject to ri gulatior by the United States For and Diug Adminitrauon IDA
including tampons uid sin care products

legal Prom edmgi The omi iv and its subsidiaries ire parties to number of legal proceedings in viii ious jui isdictions

arising out of the ope is of the Fneigi ci business Many of these legal initters are in piehminai stages and involve

complex issues of law and Ibet and may pioceed for protracted periods of time the amount of liability if airy from the

proceedings cairn Ic determined with certaint However based upon present information the ompanv bclicsea th it its

ultimate liability if any arising romn prudi ig legal prom edings asserted legal el rims and known potential legal claims which

aie likely to be assencd flu icawnaIly likdy to material to th Company 4inancial position rcalt of egeiatimw oi

ah flo va ak ng into icc unt establisi id em ual for estimated liabilities

17 Other ommitments and Contmkenc es

total rcntal expensc less sublcee ientil neome for all operating leases was $326 $305 and 322 in wal 2011 2010 and

2009 spcctivelv future mmnnnum rc nt ii eomnntn ents under noneancellabk operating leases in eflec of September 30

2011 were $2 18 in fiscil 2012 521 tin fiscal 2013 $17 in fiscal 2014 $131 ni fiscal 2015 $11 is it 2016 and $308

theiealIr these lea es ar piir aiily fir olli faeili ies

11
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18 Supplemental Financial Statement Information

The on neills of certain balance sheet eeounts at September 30 for the years indiLated are as Follows

iateiials rnd supplies 95 79

shed pioducts 418A 153

Othcr uncut Assets

Mr4Jn4 iybW

Ikicired income tax henelits 1892 60

rppul expitistir $42

Othet 423 198t4$
Property plant and equipment

Laud

Buildings 297A 78F6

Mliiopt an4xn t44

in trurtion ni rogress
71 --

Ft1 gusa ptpeh1y 1i
cunulstd depreciation l24293 1891

015cr urrent Liabilities

Mcuxcd 4b mtü a4 2LódI 331

\eerued salariL vacations and incentive compensation 1104 11 L5

ketpgtig uaot$ $21 14

esti cturing ieserse

Oc
it il othei current liabilities 7P7

Pens ons and other retirement itefit 497 333

Deterfed ptiarnsu

1ele ied come ax liabilities 453 149

Oihr non cw$anf sa
alctlirliablities 963

llowanee for Doubtful Accounts 2011 010 009wr
PaLace a$ bgiwung utyear $4

Impact iquisitlor
08

PmviLan ebuigad to etq5auLa 44

\rite ills less reeovries lranslation other gr -__



FNERGIZER HOLDINGS INC

rsin mliii xcet hare aenta da ta

Income Tax Valuation Allowance 2011 2010 2009

Provision charged to expense
HA 2.7 1.2

ii
Writeoffs tianslation other 5.2

Supplemental Disclosnre of Cash Flow Information 20111 20 2009

income taxes paid _______ _____ .L 131.5 thfl

19 Segment Information

Operations for the Company are managed via two segments
Personal are Wet Shave Skin Care Feminine Care ann Infant

Care and Household Products Battery and Lighting Products On November 23 2010 which is in the first fiscal quarter

2011 we completed the acquisition of American Safety Razor ASR ASR is leading global manufacturer of private labeli

value wet shaving razors and blades and industrial and specialty blades and is part of the Companys Personal Care segmeni

Segment performance is evaluated based on segment operating profit exclusive of general corporate expenses share-based

compensation costs costs associated th most restructuring integration or business realignment activities including the

Household Products restructuring activ tics in fiscal 2011 and amortization of intangible assets Financial items such as inte est

income and expense are managed on global basis at the corporate level

The Companys operating model includes combination of stand-alone and combined business functions between the Persoial

are and Household Products businesses varyi by country and region of the world Shared functions include produrt

warehousing and distribution various transaction processing functions and in some countries combined sales force and

management Such allocations do not represent
the costs of such services if performed on stand-alone basis The Company

applies fully allocated cost basis in which shaied business functions are allocated between the businesses

he reduction in gross profit associated with the write-up and subsequent sale of thc ins entory acquired in the ASR acquisition

in November 2010 which was $7.0 for fiscal 2011 and the shave preparation acquisition in June 2009 which was $3.7 for

fiscal 2009 as well as the related expenses
and integration costs for each of the acquisitions are not reflected in the Personal

are segment but rather presented below segmert profit as they are non recurring items directly associated with the

acquisition Such presentation
reflects managements view on how it esaluates segment performrnce

For the year ended September 30 2011 the Company recorded expense
of $1.8 related to the devaluation of its net monetar

assets in Venezuela as result of accounting for the translation of this affiliate under the accounting rules governing highly

inflationary economy These results reflect an exchange rate of 56 Venezuelan Bolivar Fuerte to one U.S dollar In the piiom

fiscal year
the Company recorded pre-tax loss of $18.3 due primarily to the devaluation of our Venezuela affiliates U.S

dollar based intercompany payable as result of the official devaluation of the exchange rate between the U.S dollar and the

Venezuclan Bolivar Fuerte These impacts which are included in Other financing on the Consolidated Statemcnts of Farnings

and Comprehensive Income are not considered in the evaluation of segment profit Flowever normal operating results in

Venezuela such as sales gross profit and spending have been negatively impacted in fiscal 2011 on comparative basis to

fiscal 2010 by translating at ss favorable exchange primarily in the first fiscal quarter of 2011 and by the impact of

unfavorable economic conditions in the country These operating results remain part of the repoi ted segment totals The

segment impacts of the Venezuela devaluation and the unfavorable economic impact on operating results are shown separately

in the tablcs provided in the division discussions

On May 19 2011 the Company completed the issuance of $600.0 principal amount of 7% Senior Notes due May 2021 with

interest paid semi-annually beginning November 2011 The vast majority of the proceeds of the offering were sed to repay

existing indebtedness including the early redemption of certain private placement notes The early retirement of the certain

private placement notes resulted in the payment of make whole premiums totaling $19 pre tax which are reflected as

separate line item on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings as well as the reconciliation of segment results to total earnings

before income taxes included in this footnote See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company implemented voluntary employee retirement option VERO for eligible
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LDill4i in mdhqegtper share and entgggt

colleagues he decision to accept the cash benefits offered under the VJaRO was at the dc non of the colleague and was

irrevocable Payment under the VI RU were cash only md did not include any enhancement 10 pension or retireim nt benefits

In addition the Company implemented Rh program primarily In the to further adju the organizational struct ic Ihe

total charge for the VRO and Rh in the fourtf quarter of fiscal 2009 vas $38 and was mcludcd in SG Fhi pr ozam

mich was prunarily in the Hous mid Products busmne is presented as separate hr below scgmei pm oft

Also in fise ii 2009 we recor led ivorabic mdjustment $24 resulting from change in the policy under hmch colleagues

cain and wt in the Cc mpany paid ne ofT P10 benefit Pr ar to the change cot Ic agues weic granted at ested ii their

total Pt days at th heinrung of lb alcndar sear and received cash payment loi unuscd days in the esent of tenri nation

dui ing the year As such the value of full
year

of 10 net of days used was accm ued at any given balance sheet date As part

of vmew of certmin benefit program th policy was cc wed in fur al 2009 to more merkel policy for P1 rev scd

hey has an earn as you go approach under which colleagues earn current year PlO on piortata basis ma they rk during

the year As it cult of this change an previously emrncd and vested benefit under the prior polics was fomfeited md the

required liability at the date of the policy changc was adjusted to reflect the revised benefit This favorabk adjustment is rot

reflected in the Household Products Personal Care segm mIs but rather presented eparaw line item bel segmcnt

prflt it us nct cmmJcre ryreaonal iii natur

Ihe presentation for inventory write up acquisition ntegration and other costs cost of early debt retirements VI RU RH- costa

and favor lO adjustmcnt reflects manacements view t.n how it evaluates segm nt per formance

Corporate assets shown in the filowing table include -ill cash and cash equivalents Imancial intrumcnts and drlerred tax

assets that are managed outside of opriating segments
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NOTES 10 CONSOLIEAI INANC AL SI END

ffflgrs ilhionsexcgytjer share erqejJjfiQ

Operating Profit

Household Products

General corporate
and other expenses

ASR transaction costs/integration

Cost of early debt retirements

PTO policy change

44h4

4I06

1I99

135

l99

2L1

4060

24.1

136

5434 443

Net Sales

Household Products

2011 2010
..

2019

21961

4$
2199 21095

4/4

2Oi

3666

451

3451

398.6

084 974

Amortization

otal earnings before ineorn taxes

Depreciation and Amortization

145t$t4 13 739 519 50

household Pioducts
635 65 65

rrna41 o41 i4
Coiporate

389 155 39

Nd
Peisonal Care 13180 11561

i914116tF 129aa aaóa aa rnw
1otal segment assets 25755 2455

t1 7344 543

Goodwill and other intangible assets net 33531 3090rrfl -r

1W ptiMIV$
Household Products

61 692 80

P4i14ot 364 $679

Total egment capital expenditures
976 107 13

94 34
aM$4aaaa wa4k 4W aMa

lotal capital expenditures
980 108.7 139
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NOTES 10 CONSOLIDA fED FINANCIAL IATEMEN1

lIionsexcesercengg

olraplIc segment information on Iegu1 entity basis

106

149

he Companys international net sales are derived from customers in numerous countries with sales 10 customers in an da
repiesenting 5JV0 7% and 1% of the Companys total net sales in fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 itspertivUy Net calm to

customers mall flhcr single foreign countries represented less than 5% of the ompany total net sales foi each of the thiec

years presented

Supplemental product infomiatron is piesented below for net sales

2010

United Stares 234L9 2l968 100

otal net sales 46457 4248$ 9998

2010

LongLived Assets

Germany

Other International

8%$
93

I267

2011 2009

Wet Shave 1637A 265 1118

Wiq4lw
Other batteries and lighting products 8843 871 845

pl%
feminine Care 195J L988 fl4

other personal care products .6



20 Quarteily Hnancial Information linaudfted

ihe Rsults of any single quarter are not necessarily indicative of the Company results for the full ycai Net eaimngs of tie

Company are impacted in the first quartel by the additional battery product sales volume associatcd with the Dcci ml er holid is

season Data are computed independently
for each of the periods piesented As memit thi sum of the amounts for the quairim

may not equal the total for the year

Gross profit

Basic earnings per share

3km 1t94 134.$

555.6 471.1 5730

Household Products restructuring

ASR transaction costs/integration

4%S1d
Other realignment/integration costs

v._ f_t
Valuation allowance other tax adjustments prior year

foreign tax benefits

1.3 30.0 16.9

3.8 2.5

0.2

tj

Net earnings
l257 l040

Basic earnings per share 180

L7S

127 148

US k17

121

120

NL RG71 1101 DINGS INC

NO IFS 10 CONSOL ID VI FD FINANCI yl STVII MFN1

ar gceijmgg dat

First

Net earnings

bird 1oui th

1756

39.1 6.9 4c.8

056 095 0M7

a.e L94 967

1c.3

1.9

.1

95

piof it

First Second

1.1 ILS

Ihird ouith

116J g5i Q79$ 1o5

5O02 447 5110

1i9h W$0es0%g qt t0gu

Venezuela devaluation other impacts 255 57

0.1
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ihibit 21
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Sun Pharmaceuticals LLC Delaware 100%

Tanning Research Laboratories LLC Delaware 100%

TH Marketing Corp Delaware 100%

Dominican

Energizer Group Dominican Republic S.A Republic 100%

Eveready Ecuador C.A Ecuador 100%

Energizer Egypt S.A.E Egypt 70.02%

Schick Egypt LLC Egypt 100%

Hawaiian Tropic Europe Inc Florida 100%

COREPILE S.A France 20%

Energizer Group France SAS France 100%

Energizer Deutschland G.m.b.H Co KG Germany 100% Partnership

Energizer Finanzierungs GbR Germany 100% Partnership

Energizer Management Holding Verwaltungs GmbH Germany 100%

Wilkinson Sword GmbH Germany 100%

AFISS.A Greece 40%

Energizer Hellas A.E Greece 100%

Energizer Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100%

Eveready Hong Kong Company Hong Kong 00%Partnership

Schick Asia Limited Hong Kong 100%

Sonca Products Limited Hong Kong 100%

Energizer Hungary Trading Ltd Hungary 100%

RELEM Public Benefit Company Hungary 33.3%

EBC India Company Private Limited India 100%

Energizer India Private Limited India 100%

PT Energizer Indonesia Indonesia 100%

Energizer Ireland Limited Ireland 100%

Personna International Israel Ltd Israel 100%

ASR Israel Holding Company Ltd Israel 100%

Energizer Group Italia S.p.A Italy 100%

Schick Japan K.K Japan 100%

Eveready East Africa Limited Kenya 10.51% Public

Energizer Korea Ltd Korea 100%

Energizer Malaysia SDN.BHD Malaysia
80%

Eveready de Mexico S.A de C.V Mexico 100%

Personna International de Mexico S.A de C.Y Mexico 100%

Energizer Group Holland B.V Netherlands 100%

Tropria Holding B.V Netherlands 100%

Wolco Holland B.V Netherlands 100%

Energizer NZ Limited New Zealand 100%

Carewell Industries Inc New York 100%

Energizer Group Panama Inc Panama 100%

Schick Energizer Peru S.A Peru 100%

Energizer Philippines Inc Philippines 100%

Energizer Group Polska Sp zo.o Poland 100%

REBA Organizacja Odzysku S.A Poland 25%

ECOPILHAS LDA Portugal
16.66%

Energizer Group Portugal Unipessoal Lda Portugal
100%

Energizer ASR Puerto Rico LLC Puerto Rico 100%

Energizer Puerto Rico Inc Puerto Rico 100%
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Energizer LLC Russia 100%

Energizer Singapore Pte Ltd
Singapore 100%

Energizer Slovakia Spol Sr.o Slovak Republic 100%

Energizer Group Espafla S.A
Spain 100%

Energizer Lanka Limited Sri Lanka 84.1% Public

Energizer Group Sweden AB Sweden 100%

Energizer SA Switzerland 100%

Energizer Thailand Limited Thailand 100%

Wilkinson Sword Tras Urunleri Ticaret Limited Sirketi Turkey 100%

Berec Overseas Investments Limited United Kingdom 100%

Energizer Trading Limited United Kingdom 100%

Energizer Holdings UK Co Limited United Kingdom 100%

Energizer Investments UK Limited United Kingdom 100%

Energizer Group Limited United Kingdom 100%

Energizer Trust Limited United Kingdom 100%

Ever Ready Limited United Kingdom 100%

Wilkinson Sword Limited United Kingdom 100%

Personna International UK Limited United Kingdom 100%

Personna Industrial UK Limited United Kingdom 100%

Eveready de Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100%

Energizer Group Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100%

Importadora Energizer C.A Venezuela 100%

Importadora Eveready C.A Venezuela 100%

Importadora Schick C.A Venezuela 100%

Schick de Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100%

In liquidation/in process of dissolution/closing/merger

Non-profit corporation
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Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 Nos 333-33690 333-33676

333-35116 333-157070 333-171921 of Energizer Holdings Inc of our report dated November 22 2011 relating to the

financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting which appears in the 2011 Annual Report

to Shareholders which is incorporated in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

St Louis Missouri

November 22 2011
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Exhibit 1i

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Ward Klein certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Energizer Holdings Inc
Based on my knowledge this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report

Based on myknowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

annual report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and

cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and proceduresas defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal

control over financial
reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the

registrant and have

adesigned such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this annual report is being prepared

bdesigned such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles

cevaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedure as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

ddisclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial
reporting that

occurred during the registrants fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely

to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

aall significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date November 22 2011

/s/ Ward Klein

Ward Klein

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31u

Certification of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Daniel Sescleifer certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Energizer Holdings Inc

Based on my knowledge this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

annual report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations
and

cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and 5d- 151 for

the registrant and have

adesigned such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared

bdesigned such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

cevaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedure as of the

end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

ddisclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely

to materially affect the registrants
internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifing officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

aall significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date November 22 2011

Is Daniel Sescleifer

Daniel Sescleifer

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32i

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Energizer Holdings Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year

ended September 30 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report
Ward Klein Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted

pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to my best knowledge

The Report filly complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

result of operations of the Company

Dated November 22 2011

Is Ward Klein

Ward Klein

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32u

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Energizer Holdings Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year

ended September 30 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report

Daniel Sescleifer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company certif pursuant to 18

U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to my best knowledge

The Report filly complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

result of operations of the Company

Dated November 22 2011

Is Daniel Sescleifer

Daniel Sescleifer

Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters

Energizer Holdings Inc

533 Maryville University Drive

Se LouisMO 63141

314 985-2000

www.energizer.com

Fiscal Year End

September 30

Shareholders

On September 30 2011 there were approximately

11100 shareholders of record

Independent Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

St Louis Missouri

Annual Meeting

The Companys annual meeting of shareholders

is scheduled for
January 302012 at 300 p.m

at Energizers
World Headquarters

533 Maryville University Drive

St Louis MO 63141

Financial Comanunity Information

Inquiries from institutional investors financial

analysts registered representatives porrfolio

managers and individual shareholders should be

directed to Investor Relations at Energizers

corporate headquarters
listed above

Common Stock Information

The table below sets forth fur the fiscal
quarter

indicated the reported high and low sale
prices

of

the Companys common stock as reported on the

New York Stock Exchange

Dividends

To date the Company has not declared nor paid any

cash dividend

SEC Form 10-K

Shareholders may receive copy of the Companys

Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange

Commission on Form 10-K free of
charge by writing

or calling
the Investor Relations Department at

Energizers corporate headquarters as hsted above or

by retrieving
this information from the Companys

website www.energizeeholdings.com

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted business practices
and

standards of conduct that are applicable to all

employees including
the Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

and Controller The Company has also adopted

code of business conduct applicable to the Board of

Directors Both codes are on the Companys website

at www.energizeeholdings.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Continental Stock Transfer Tmst Company is

Energizers
stock transfer agent

and
registrar

and

maintains the companys shareholder records

SharIholders needing information abour account

records stock certificates and change of addtess

should contact

Continental StockTransfer

Trust Company

17 Battery
Place South 8th Floor

New York NY 10004

888 509-5580

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We discuss expectations regarding
future performance events and outcomes such as our business outlook and

objectives
in this annual

report
All such statements are forward-looking statements and are based on financial

data and our business
plans

available as of the date of this annual
report

which may become out-of-date or

incomplete We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements as result of new information

future events or other factors Forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain and investors must recognize

that actual results could be
significantly

different from our expectations
Risks and uncertainties that could cause

results to differ from expectations are detailed in Energizers Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended

September 302011 and in our other
filings

with the Securities and Exchange Commission

Fiscal 2011

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Ouareer

Fourth Quartet

High Low

$77.09 $61.69

$75.97 $61.60

$77.47 $68.37

$84.94 $64.92



Energizer
Holdings Inc

533 Maryville University Drive St Louis MO 63141 314.985.2000
www.energizerho1dings.com

2011 Energizer Energizer Energizer Bunny design Eveready Schick and other marks included in this annual
report

are trademarks of Energizer its affiliates and its subsidiaries
Playtex is licensed trademark


